
City of Capitola Page 1 Updated 6/1/2018 4:00 PM  

 

AGENDA 

CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION 
Thursday, June 7, 2018 – 7:00 PM 

 Chairperson Sam Storey 

 Commissioners Linda Smith 

  Ed Newman 

  TJ Welch 

  Susan Westman 

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda 

B. Public Comments 

Short communications from the public concerning matters not on the Agenda.  
All speakers are requested to print their name on the sign-in sheet located at the podium so that their 
name may be accurately recorded in the Minutes. 

C. Commission Comments 

D. Staff Comments 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Planning Commission - Regular Meeting - Apr 5, 2018 7:00 PM 
 

2. Planning Commission - Regular Meeting - May 3, 2018 7:00 PM 
 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed under “Consent Calendar” are considered by the Planning Commission to be routine 
and will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below.  There will be no separate discussion on these 
items prior to the time the Planning Commission votes on the action unless members of the public or the 
Planning Commission request specific items to be discussed for separate review.  Items pulled for 
separate discussion will be considered in the order listed on the Agenda. 

 
A. 734 Orchid Avenue #18-0136 APN: 036-181-03 

Design Permit for an addition to a single-family home, located in the R-1 (Single-Family 
Residential) zoning district.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal Development Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Nora Seaman 
Representative: Derek Van Alstine, Designer, Filed: 03.27.2018 

 
B. 4795 Garnet Street #18-0154 APN: 034-037-16 

Design Permit to add new roofs to an existing nonconforming duplex and detached garage 
in the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) zoning district.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal Development 
Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA – June 7, 2018 2 
 

Property Owner: CBP Enterprises 
Representative: Heidi Anderson Spicer, Architect, Filed: 04.04.2018 

 

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

Public Hearings are intended to provide an opportunity for public discussion of each item listed as a 
Public Hearing.  The following procedure is as follows:  1) Staff Presentation; 2) Public Discussion; 3) 
Planning Commission Comments; 4) Close public portion of the Hearing; 5) Planning Commission 
Discussion; and 6) Decision. 

 
A. 620 Monterey Avenue #18-041 APN: 036-101-38 

Coastal Development Permit to demolish one classroom building and 12 existing portable 
buildings onsite and construct four new buildings for classrooms, art/woodshop rooms, 
physical education, and locker rooms at New Brighton Middle School.   
This project is in the Coastal Zone and requires a Coastal Development Permit that is not 
appealable to the Coastal Commission. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Soquel Union Elementary School District 
Representative: Madi Architecture and Planning 

 
B. 105 Stockton Avenue #18-0170 APN: 035-171-21 

Amendment to the Master Sign Program at 103/105 Stockton Avenue to allow an additional 
wall sign in the C-V (Central Village) Zoning District. 
This project is located within the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal Development 
Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Peter Hubback 
Representative: Vahan Tchakerian, Filed: 04.17.2018 

 
C. Retail Marijuana Sales in Regional Commercial Zoning District   

Amendment to Regional Commercial Zoning District to allow a new conditional use for a 
limited number of retail cannabis establishments, subject to regulations and review criteria, 
in compliance with state law.  The proposed ordinance shall only go into effect if a ballot 
measure for a cannabis tax is passed by Capitola voters in November 2018.  
This zoning amendment will not impact properties in the Coastal Zone and therefore does 
not require Coastal Commission adoption.  
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: All properties in the Regional Commercial zone 
Representative: Katie Herlihy, Community Development Director 

 
D. 4015 Capitola Road #17-019 APN: 034-261-40 

Design Permit to renovate the existing SEARS into three tenant spaces (Sears, 
TJ Maxx/Homegoods, and PetSmart) with remodeled exterior facades, two 4,000 
square foot building pads for a future development phase, and a Master Sign 
Program located for the three tenants within the CC (Community Commercial) 
zoning district.  
This project is not located in the Coastal Zone. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption, Section 15270 of the 
CEQA guidelines  
Property Owner: Seritage SRC Finance LLC 
Representative: Mark Rone, Cypress Equities   

 



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA – June 7, 2018 3 
 

6. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

7. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 

8. ADJOURNMENT 

 

APPEALS:  The following decisions of the Planning Commission can be appealed to the City Council 

within the (10) calendar days following the date of the Commission action:  Conditional Use Permit, 

Variance, and Coastal Permit.  The decision of the Planning Commission pertaining to an Architectural 

and Site Review Design Permit can be appealed to the City Council within the (10) working days following 

the date of the Commission action.  If the tenth day falls on a weekend or holiday, the appeal period is 

extended to the next business day. 
 

All appeals must be in writing, setting forth the nature of the action and the basis upon which the action is 

considered to be in error, and addressed to the City Council in care of the City Clerk.  An appeal must be 

accompanied by a five hundred dollar ($500) filing fee, unless the item involves a Coastal Permit that is 

appealable to the Coastal Commission, in which case there is no fee.  If you challenge a decision of the 

Planning Commission in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else 

raised at the public hearing described in this agenda, or in written correspondence delivered to the City 

at, or prior to, the public hearing. 
 

Notice regarding Planning Commission meetings:  The Planning Commission meets regularly on the 

1st Thursday of each month at 7 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 Capitola Avenue, 

Capitola. 
 

Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials:  The Planning Commission Agenda and complete Agenda 

Packet are available on the Internet at the City's website:  www.cityofcapitola.org.  Agendas are also 

available at the Capitola Branch Library, 2005 Wharf Road, Capitola, on the Monday prior to the Thursday 

meeting.  Need more information?  Contact the Community Development Department at (831) 475-7300. 
 

Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet:  Materials that are a public 

record under Government Code § 54957.5(A) and that relate to an agenda item of a regular meeting of 

the Planning Commission that are distributed to a majority of all the members of the Planning 

Commission more than 72 hours prior to that meeting shall be available for public inspection at City Hall 

located at 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, during normal business hours. 
 

Americans with Disabilities Act:  Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons with 

a disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 

1990.  Assisted listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting in 

the City Council Chambers.  Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting 

due to a disability, please contact the Community Development Department at least 24 hours in advance 

of the meeting at (831) 475-7300.  In an effort to accommodate individuals with environmental 

sensitivities, attendees are requested to refrain from wearing perfumes and other scented products. 
 

Televised Meetings:  Planning Commission meetings are cablecast "Live" on Charter Communications 

Cable TV Channel 8 and are recorded to be replayed on the following Monday and Friday at 1:00 p.m. on 

Charter Channel 71 and Comcast Channel 25.  Meetings can also be viewed from the City's website:  

www.cityofcapitola.org. 

http://www.cityofcapitola.org/
http://www.cityofcapitola.org/


City of Capitola Page 1 Updated 4/6/2018 5:06 PM  

DRAFT FINAL MINUTES 
CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

THURSDAY, APRIL 5, 2018 
7 P.M. – CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 
 

 
 

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 Commissioner Newman: Present; Commissioner Smith: Present; Chairperson Storey: Present; 
Commissioner Welch: Present; and Commissioner Westman: Present. 

2. NEW BUSINESS – NONE 

3. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS  

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda – None 

B. Public Comments – None 

C. Commission Comments 

Chairperson Storey thanked Community Development Director Rich Grunow and 
announced that after five years with the City of Capitola, Director Grunow will be moving on 
to the City of Coronado at the end of the month. Chairperson Storey also congratulated 
Senior Planner Katie Herlihy, who will be taking over as Community Development Director. 
 
Commissioner Welch expressed his appreciation to Director Grunow for his work with the 
City of Capitola. Commissioner Smith added her congratulations to Senior Planner Herlihy. 

D. Staff Comments 

Director Grunow expressed his gratitude to each of the Planning Commissioner and thanked 
them for their kind words. He was confident that Senior Planner Herlihy will do a great job as 
the new Community Development Director and will help keep the continuity in the 
department. 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. Approval of draft March 1, 2018, Planning Commission minutes 

1. Planning Commission - Regular Meeting - March 1, 2018 7:00 PM 

Commissioner Westman abstained due to her absence at the meeting of March 1. 
 

MOTION: Accept minutes of March 1, 2018. 

RESULT: ACCEPTED [4 TO 0] 

MOVER: Linda Smith, Commissioner 

SECONDER: TJ Welch, Chairperson 

AYES: Smith, Newman, Welch, Storey 

ABSTAIN: Westman 

 

 

3.1

Packet Pg. 4

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

5,
 2

01
8 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – April 5, 2018 2 
 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
A. 110 Hollister Avenue #18-0085 APN: 036-144-10 

Design Permit to demolish an existing, one-story single-family residence and construct a 
new two-story single-family residence in the R-1 Single-Family Zoning District.   
This project is in the Coastal Zone and requires a Coastal Development Permit that is 
appealable to the California Coastal Commission.  
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Lisa and Mark Garrigues 
Representative: Clark E Shultes 
 
Chairperson Storey and Commissioner Welch recused themselves due to proximity and the 
meeting was turned over to Vice Chair Westman. 
 

MOTION: Approve Design Permit and Coastal Development Permit with the following 
conditions: 

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
1. The project approval consists of demolition of the existing home and construction of a 

new 2,152-square-foot single-family residence. The maximum Floor Area Ratio for the 
4,000-square-foot property is 54% (2,160 square feet).  The total FAR of the project is 
54% with a total of 2,154 square feet, compliant with the maximum FAR within the zone. 
The proposed project is approved as indicated on the final plans reviewed and approved 
by the Planning Commission on April 5, 2018, except as modified through conditions 
imposed by the Planning Commission during the hearing. 
 

2. Prior to construction, a building permit shall be secured for any new construction or 
modifications to structures authorized by this permit. Final building plans shall be 
consistent with the plans approved by the Planning Commission.  All construction and 
site improvements shall be completed according to the approved plans 
 

3. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be 
printed in full on the cover sheet of the construction plans.  
 

4. At time of submittal for building permit review, Public Works Standard Detail SMP STRM 
shall be printed in full and incorporated as a sheet into the construction plans.  All 
construction shall be done in accordance with the Public Works Standard Detail BMP 
STRM.   

 
5. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically 

requested and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department.  Any 
significant changes to the size or exterior appearance of the structure shall require 
Planning Commission approval.   
 

6. Prior to issuance of building permit, a final landscape plan shall be submitted and 
approved by the Community Development Department.  Landscape plans shall reflect 
the Planning Commission approval and shall identify type, size, and location of species 
and details of irrigation systems.   

 
7. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit #18-0085 

shall be paid in full. 
 

3.1

Packet Pg. 5

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

5,
 2

01
8 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – April 5, 2018 3 
 

8. Prior to issuance of building permit, Affordable housing in-lieu fees shall be paid as 
required to assure compliance with the City of Capitola Affordable (Inclusionary) Housing 
Ordinance.   
 

9. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant must provide documentation of plan 
approval by the following entities: Santa Cruz County Sanitation Department, Soquel 
Creek Water District, and Central Fire Protection District.   
 

10. Prior to issuance of building permits, a drainage plan, grading, sediment and erosion 
control plan, shall be submitted to the City and approved by Public Works.  The plans 
shall be in compliance with the requirements specified in Capitola Municipal Code 
Chapter 13.16 Storm Water Pollution Prevention and Protection. 
 

11. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall submit a stormwater 
management plan to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works which implements 
all applicable Post Construction Requirements (PCRs) and Public Works Standard 
Details, including all standards relating to low impact development (LID). 
 

12. Prior to any land disturbance, a pre-site inspection must be conducted by the grading 
official to verify compliance with the approved erosion and sediment control plan.  
 

13. Prior to any work in the City road right of way, an encroachment permit shall be acquired 
by the contractor performing the work.  No material or equipment storage may be placed 
in the road right-of-way. 
 

14. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise 
curfew, except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City.  
Construction noise shall be prohibited between the hours of nine p.m. and seven-thirty 
a.m. on weekdays. Construction noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the 
exception of Saturday work between nine a.m. and four p.m. or emergency work 
approved by the building official. §9.12.010B 
 

15. Prior to a project final, all cracked or broken driveway approaches, curb, gutter, or 
sidewalk shall be replaced per the Public Works Standard Details and to the satisfaction 
of the Public Works Department.  All replaced driveway approaches, curb, gutter or 
sidewalk shall meet current Accessibility Standards. 

    
16. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, compliance with all conditions of 

approval shall be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director.  Upon evidence of non-compliance with conditions of approval or applicable 
municipal code provisions, the applicant shall remedy the non-compliance to the 
satisfaction of the Community Development Director or shall file an application for a 
permit amendment for Planning Commission consideration. Failure to remedy a non-
compliance in a timely manner may result in permit revocation. 
 

17. This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance.   The applicant shall have 
an approved building permit and construction underway before this date to prevent 
permit expiration.   Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to 
expiration pursuant to Municipal Code section 17.81.160. 
 

18. The planning and infrastructure review and approval are transferable with the title to the 
underlying property so that an approved project may be conveyed or assigned by the 

3.1

Packet Pg. 6

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

5,
 2

01
8 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – April 5, 2018 4 
 

applicant to others without losing the approval. The permit cannot be transferred off the 
site on which the approval was granted. 
 

19. Upon receipt of certificate of occupancy, garbage and recycling containers shall be 
placed out of public view on non-collection days.  
 

20. Prior to issuance of building permits, the building plans must show that the existing 
overhead utility lines will be underground to the nearest utility pole.   

 
COASTAL FINDINGS 
D. Findings Required.  
1. A coastal permit shall be granted only upon adoption of specific written factual 

findings supporting the conclusion that the proposed development conforms to 
the certified Local Coastal Program, including, but not limited to: 
a. A statement of the individual and cumulative burdens imposed on public access and 

recreation opportunities based on applicable factors identified pursuant to subsection 
(D)(2) of this section. The type of affected public access and recreation opportunities 
shall be clearly described; 

b. An analysis based on applicable factors identified in subsection (D)(2) of this section 
of the necessity for requiring public access conditions to find the project consistent 
with the public access provisions of the Coastal Act; 

c. A description of the legitimate governmental interest furthered by any access 
conditioned required; 

d. An explanation of how imposition of an access dedication requirement alleviates the 
access burdens identified. 

 

• The proposed development conforms to the City’s certified Local Coastal Plan 
(LCP).  The specific, factual findings, as per CMC Section 17.46.090(D) are as 
follows: 

 
2. Require Project-Specific Findings. In determining any requirement for public 

access, including the type of access and character of use, the city shall 
evaluate and document in written findings the factors identified in subsections 
(D)(2)(a) through (e), to the extent applicable. The findings shall explain the 
basis for the conclusions and decisions of the city and shall be supported by 
substantial evidence in the record. If an access dedication is required as a 
condition of approval, the findings shall explain how the adverse effects which 
have been identified will be alleviated or mitigated by the dedication. As used in 
this section, “cumulative effect” means the effect of the individual project in 
combination with the effects of past projects, other current projects, and 
probable future projects, including development allowed under applicable 
planning and zoning. 
a. Project Effects on Demand for Access and Recreation. Identification of existing and 

open public access and coastal recreation areas and facilities in the regional and 
local vicinity of the development. Analysis of the project’s effects upon existing 
public access and recreation opportunities. Analysis of the project’s cumulative 
effects upon the use and capacity of the identified access and recreation 
opportunities, including public tidelands and beach resources, and upon the 
capacity of major coastal roads from subdivision, intensification or cumulative 
buildout. Projection for the anticipated demand and need for increased coastal 
access and recreation opportunities for the public. Analysis of the contribution of 
the project’s cumulative effects to any such projected increase. Description of the 
physical characteristics of the site and its proximity to the sea, tideland viewing 

3.1

Packet Pg. 7

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

5,
 2

01
8 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – April 5, 2018 5 
 

points, upland recreation areas, and trail linkages to tidelands or recreation areas. 
Analysis of the importance and potential of the site, because of its location or other 
characteristics, for creating, preserving or enhancing public access to tidelands or 
public recreation opportunities; 

 

•  The proposed project is located at 110 Hollister.  The home is not located in an 
area with coastal access.  The home will not have an effect on public trails or 
beach access. 

 
b. Shoreline Processes. Description of the existing shoreline conditions, including 

beach profile, accessibility and usability of the beach, history of erosion or 
accretion, character and sources of sand, wave and sand movement, presence of 
shoreline protective structures, location of the line of mean high tide during the 
season when the beach is at its narrowest (generally during the late winter) and the 
proximity of that line to existing structures, and any other factors which 
substantially characterize or affect the shoreline processes at the site. Identification 
of anticipated changes to shoreline processes at the site. Identification of 
anticipated changes to shoreline processes and beach profile unrelated to the 
proposed development. Description and analysis of any reasonably likely changes, 
attributable to the primary and cumulative effects of the project, to: wave and sand 
movement affecting beaches in the vicinity of the project; the profile of the beach; 
the character, extent, accessibility and usability of the beach; and any other factors 
which characterize or affect beaches in the vicinity. Analysis of the effect of any 
identified changes of the project, alone or in combination with other anticipated 
changes, will have upon the ability of the public to use public tidelands and 
shoreline recreation areas; 

 

•  The proposed project is located along Hollister Avenue.  No portion of the 
project is located along the shoreline or beach. 

 
c. Historic Public Use. Evidence of use of the site by members of the general public 

for a continuous five-year period (such use may be seasonal). Evidence of the type 
and character of use made by the public (vertical, lateral, blufftop, etc., and for 
passive and/or active recreational use, etc.). Identification of any agency (or 
person) who has maintained and/or improved the area subject to historic 
public use and the nature of the maintenance performed and improvements made. 
Identification of the record owner of the area historically used by the public and any 
attempts by the owner to prohibit public use of the area, including the success or 
failure of those attempts. Description of the potential for adverse impact on 
public use of the area from the proposed development (including but not limited to, 
creation of physical or psychological impediments to public use); 

 

•  There is not a history of public use on the subject lot. 
 

d. Physical Obstructions. Description of any physical aspects of the development 
which block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the tidelands, 
public recreation areas, or other public coastal resources or to see the shoreline; 

 

•  The proposed project is located on private property on Hollister Avenue.  The 
project will not block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the 
tidelands, public recreation areas, or views to the shoreline. 

 

3.1

Packet Pg. 8

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

5,
 2

01
8 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – April 5, 2018 6 
 

e. Other Adverse Impacts on Access and Recreation. Description of the 
development’s physical proximity and relationship to the shoreline and any public 
recreation area. Analysis of the extent of which buildings, walls, signs, streets or 
other aspects of the development, individually or cumulatively, are likely to diminish 
the public’s use of tidelands or lands committed to public recreation. Description of 
any alteration of the aesthetic, visual or recreational value of public use areas, and 
of any diminution of the quality or amount of recreational use of public lands which 
may be attributable to the individual or cumulative effects of the development. 

 

•  The proposed project is located on private property that will not impact access 
and recreation.  The project does not diminish the public’s use of tidelands or 
lands committed to public recreation nor alter the aesthetic, visual, or 
recreational value of public use areas. 

 
3. Required Findings for Public Access Exceptions. Any determination that one of 

the exceptions of subsection (F)(2) applies to a development shall be supported 
by written findings of fact, analysis and conclusions which address all of the 
following: 
a. The type of access potentially applicable to the site involved (vertical, 

lateral, bluff top, etc.) and its location in relation to the fragile coastal resource to be 
protected, the agricultural use, the public safety concern, or the military facility 
which is the basis for the exception, as applicable; 

b. Unavailability of any mitigating measures to manage the type, character, intensity, 
hours, season or location of such use so that agricultural resources, fragile coastal 
resources, public safety, or military security, as applicable, are protected; 

c. Ability of the public, through another reasonable means, to reach the same area of 
public tidelands as would be made accessible by an accessway on the subject 
land. 

 

•  The project is not requesting a Public Access Exception, therefore these 
findings do not apply. 

 
4. Findings for Management Plan Conditions. Written findings in support of a 

condition requiring a management plan for regulating the time and manner or 
character of public access use must address the following factors, as 
applicable: 
a. Identification and protection of specific habitat values including the reasons 

supporting the conclusions that such values must be protected by limiting the 
hours, seasons, or character of public use; 

 

• The project is located in a residential area without sensitive habitat areas. 
 

b. Topographic constraints of the development site; 
 

• The project is located on a flat lot. 
 

c. Recreational needs of the public; 
 

• The project does not impact the recreational needs of the public. 
 

d. Rights of privacy of the landowner which could not be mitigated by setting the 
project back from the access way or otherwise conditioning the development; 

3.1

Packet Pg. 9

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

5,
 2

01
8 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – April 5, 2018 7 
 

e. The requirements of the possible accepting agency, if an offer of dedication is the 
mechanism for securing public access; 

f. Feasibility of adequate setbacks, fencing, landscaping, and other methods as part 
of a management plan to regulate public use. 

 
5. Project complies with public access requirements, including submittal of 

appropriate legal documents to ensure the right of public access whenever, 
and as, required by the certified land use plan and Section 17.46.010 (coastal 
access requirements); 

 

•  No legal documents to ensure public access rights are required for the 
proposed project. 

 
6. Project complies with visitor-serving and recreational use policies; 

 
SEC. 30222 
The use of private lands suitable for visitor-serving commercial recreational 
facilities designed to enhance public opportunities for coastal recreation shall 
have priority over private residential, general industrial, or general commercial 
development, but not over agriculture or coastal-dependent industry. 

 

•  The project involves a single-family home on a residential lot of record. 
 

SEC. 30223 
Upland areas necessary to support coastal recreational uses shall be reserved 
for such uses, where feasible. 
 

•  The project involves a single-family home on a residential lot of record. 
 
c) Visitor-serving facilities that cannot be feasibly located in existing developed 
areas shall be located in existing isolated developments or at selected points of 
attraction for visitors. 
 

•  The project involves a single-family home on a residential lot of record. 
 
7. Project complies with applicable standards and requirements for provision of 

public and private parking, pedestrian access, alternate means of 
transportation and/or traffic improvements; 

 

•  The project involves the construction of a single-family home. The project 
complies with applicable standards and requirements for provision for parking, 
pedestrian access, alternate means of transportation, and/or traffic 
improvements. 

 
8. Review of project design, site plan, signing, lighting, landscaping, etc., by the 

city’s architectural and site review committee, and compliance with adopted 
design guidelines and standards, and review committee recommendations; 

 

•  The project complies with the design guidelines and standards established by 
the Municipal Code. 

 

3.1

Packet Pg. 10

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

5,
 2

01
8 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – April 5, 2018 8 
 

9. Project complies with LCP policies regarding protection of public landmarks, 
protection or provision of public views; and shall not block or detract from 
public views to and along Capitola’s shoreline; 

 

•  The project will not negatively impact public landmarks and/or public views. 
The project will not block or detract from public views to and along Capitola’s 
shoreline. 

 
10. Demonstrated availability and adequacy of water and sewer services; 

 

•  The project is located on a legal lot of record with available water and sewer 
services. 

 
11. Provisions of minimum water flow rates and fire response times; 

 

•  The project is located several blocks from the Capitola fire department. Water 
is available at the location. 

 
12. Project complies with water and energy conservation standards; 

 

•  The project is for a single-family home. The GHG emissions for the project are 
projected at less than significant impact. All water fixtures must comply with the 
low-flow standards of the Soquel Creek Water District. 

 
13. Provision of park dedication, school impact, and other fees as may be required; 

 

•  The project will be required to pay appropriate fees prior to building permit 
issuance. 

 
14. Project complies with coastal housing policies, and applicable ordinances 

including condominium conversion and mobile home ordinances; 
 

•  The project does not involve a condo conversion or mobile homes. 
 
15. Project complies with natural resource, habitat, and archaeological protection 

policies; 
 

•  Conditions of approval have been included to ensure compliance with 
established policies. 

 
16. Project complies with Monarch butterfly habitat protection policies; 

 

•  The project is outside of any identified sensitive habitats, specifically areas 
where Monarch Butterflies have been encountered, identified and documented. 

 
17. Project provides drainage and erosion and control measures to protect marine, 

stream, and wetland water quality from urban runoff and erosion; 
 

•  Conditions of approval have been included to ensure compliance with 
applicable erosion control measures. 

 

3.1

Packet Pg. 11

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

5,
 2

01
8 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – April 5, 2018 9 
 

18. Geologic/engineering reports have been prepared by qualified professional for 
projects in seismic areas, geologically unstable areas, or coastal bluffs, and 
project complies with hazard protection policies including provision of 
appropriate setbacks and mitigation measures; 

 

•  Geologic/engineering reports have been prepared by qualified professionals for 
this project. Conditions of approval have been included to ensure the project 
applicant shall comply with all applicable requirements of the most recent 
version of the California Building Standards Code. 

 
19. All other geological, flood and fire hazards are accounted for and mitigated in 

the project design; 
 

•  Conditions of approval have been included to ensure the project complies with 
geological, flood, and fire hazards and are accounted for and will be mitigated 
in the project design. 

 
20. Project complies with shoreline structure policies; 

 

•  The proposed project is not located along a shoreline. 
 
21. The uses proposed are consistent with the permitted or conditional uses of the 

zoning district in which the project is located; 
 

•  This use is an allowed use consistent with the Single-Family zoning district. 
 
22. Conformance to requirements of all other city ordinances, zoning requirements, 

and project review procedures; and 
 

•  The project conforms to the requirements of all city ordinances, zoning 
requirements, and project development review and development procedures. 

 
23. Project complies with the Capitola parking permit program as follows: 

a. The village area preferential parking program areas and conditions as established 
in Resolution No. 2596 and no permit parking of any kind shall be allowed on 
Capitola Avenue. 

b. The neighborhood preferential parking program areas are as established in 
Resolution Numbers 2433 and 2510. 

c. The village area preferential parking program shall be limited to three hundred fifty 
permits. 

d. Neighborhood permit areas are only in force when the shuttle bus is operating 
except that: 
i. The Fanmar area (Resolution No. 2436) program may operate year-round, 

twenty-four hours a day on weekends, 
ii. The Burlingame, Cliff Avenue/Grand Avenue area (Resolution No. 2435) have 

year-round, twenty-four hour per day “no public parking.” 
e. Except as specifically allowed under the village parking program, no preferential 

residential parking may be allowed in the Cliff Drive parking areas. 
f. Six Depot Hill twenty-four minute “Vista” parking spaces (Resolution No. 2510) 

shall be provided as corrected in Exhibit A attached to the ordinance codified in this 
section and found on file in the office of the city clerk. 

g. A limit of fifty permits for the Pacific Cove parking lot may be issued to village 
permit holders and transient occupancy permit holders. 

3.1

Packet Pg. 12

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

5,
 2

01
8 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – April 5, 2018 10 
 

h. No additional development in the village that intensifies use and requires additional 
parking shall be permitted. Changes in use that do not result in additional parking 
demand can be allowed and exceptions for onsite parking as allowed in the 
land use plan can be made. 

 

•  The project site is not located within the area of the Capitola parking permit 
program. 

 

RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 0] 

MOVER: Edward Newman, Commissioner 

SECONDER: Linda Smith, Commissioner 

AYES: Smith, Newman, Westman 

RECUSED: Welch, Storey 

 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. 1098 38th Avenue #18-0052 APN: 034-172-01 
Fence exception to permit a six-foot high fence in the front yard along the side property line 
and an eight-foot high solid fence on the side property line extending to the rear property 
line. This project is located in the RM-M (Multi-Family Medium Density) zoning district. 
This project is in the Coastal Zone and does not require a Coastal Development Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Central California Alliance for Health 
 
Senior Planner Herlihy gave the presentation. Commissioner Newman recused himself and 
left the dais due to a financial relationship with the applicant. 
 
Christopher Barlow with Wald Ruhnke & Dost Architects spoke as the representative of the 
Central California Alliance for Health and confirmed that his client agrees with the staff 
recommendations. The Alliance is the owner of the property and currently in negotiations to 
bring in a tenant who will serve as the operator for the facility to provide needed senior care 
services to the community. Chairperson Storey asked about the reason for requesting an 
exception not to have the lattice on the top of the eight-foot fence and Mr. Barlow 
responded that it was due to security concerns. 
 

MOTION: Approve fence exception with the following conditions and findings: 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
1. The project approval consists of a new fence on the north and south property lines of 

1098 38th Avenue.  The fence on the north property line may extend 30-inches in height 
for the first 30-feet, then extend to six feet of height to the front façade of the main 
building, and then extend 8-feet in height, with no required lattice, to the rear property 
line.  Along the south property line, the fence may extend 42-inches in height to the front 
façade of the first mobile home on the adjacent property, then extend to six feet of height 
to the front façade of the main building on 1098 38th Avenue, and then extend to 8-feet in 
height, with no required lattice, to the rear property line.  A fence permit with an 
exception to the height and material requirements has been approved within this 
application.   

 

3.1

Packet Pg. 13

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

5,
 2

01
8 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – April 5, 2018 11 
 

2. Compliance with all conditions of approval shall be demonstrated to the satisfaction of 

the Community Development Director.  Upon evidence of non-compliance with 

conditions of approval or applicable municipal code provisions, the applicant shall 

remedy the non-compliance to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director 

or shall file an application for a permit amendment for Planning Commission 

consideration. Failure to remedy a non-compliance in a timely manner may result in 

permit revocation. 

3. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit #18-052 
shall be paid in full. 
 

4. This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance.   The applicant shall have 

construction underway before this date to prevent permit expiration.   Applications for 

extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to expiration pursuant to Municipal 

Code section 17.81.160. 

5. The planning and infrastructure review and approval are transferable with the title to the 

underlying property so that an approved project may be conveyed or assigned by the 

applicant to others without losing the approval. The permit cannot be transferred off the 

site on which the approval was granted. 

FINDINGS 
A.  The application, subject to the conditions imposed, secures the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
Community Development Staff, and the Planning Commission have all reviewed the 
proposed fence exceptions.  The fence conforms to the requirements of the Local 
Coastal Program and conditions of approval have been included to carry out the 
objectives of the Zoning Ordinance, General Plan and Local Coastal Plan. 

 
B.  This project is categorically exempt under Section 15304 of the California    

Environmental Quality Act and is subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 
Section 15304 of the CEQA Guidelines exempts minor alterations to land.  No adverse 
environmental impacts were discovered during review of the proposed project. 
 

RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 0] 

MOVER: Linda Smith, Commissioner 

SECONDER: Susan Westman, Commissioner 

AYES: Smith, Welch, Westman, Storey 

RECUSED: Newman 

 
 

 
B. 1725 48th Avenue #17-0403 APN: 034-022-41 

Design Permit and Conditional Use Permit to convert an existing historic barn into an 
Accessory Dwelling Unit and build a new single car garage in the R-1 (Single-Family 
Residential) zoning district.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone and requires a Coastal Development Permit that is not 
appealable to the California Coastal Commission. 

3.1

Packet Pg. 14

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

5,
 2

01
8 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – April 5, 2018 12 
 

Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Michael and Elizabeth Adams 
Representative: Dennis Norton Filed: 10/10/17 
 
Assistant Planner Orbach gave the presentation. 
 
Representative Dennis Norton reviewed the project proposal and responded to the 
questions from the Planning Commissioners. 
 
The commissioners discussed amendments and additional language to the conditions, 
historical context, and short-term rental restrictions. 

 
MOTION: Approve Design Permit, Conditional Use Permit, and Coastal Development Permit 
with the following amended conditions and findings: 

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
1. The project approval consists of the conversion of an existing historic barn into an 

Accessory Dwelling Unit and construction of a new single-car garage. The maximum 
Floor Area Ratio for the 8,000-square foot property is 60% (4,800 square feet) with the 
addition of the accessory dwelling unit.  The total FAR of the project is 45% with a total 
of 3,631 square feet, compliant with the maximum FAR within the zone. The staircase 
and loft will be removed to comply with the secondary dwelling unit single story limit and 
640 square feet maximum floor area. The proposed project is approved as indicated on 
the final plans reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on April 5, 2018, 
except as modified through conditions imposed by the Planning Commission during the 
hearing. 
 

2. Prior to construction, a building permit shall be secured for any new construction or 
modifications to structures authorized by this permit. Final building plans shall be 
consistent with the plans approved by the Planning Commission.  All construction and 
site improvements shall be completed according to the approved plans 
 

3. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be 
printed in full on the cover sheet of the construction plans.  
 

4. At time of submittal for building permit review, Public Works Standard Detail SMP STRM 
shall be printed in full and incorporated as a sheet into the construction plans.  All 
construction shall be done in accordance with the Public Works Standard Detail BMP 
STRM.   

 
5. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically 

requested and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department.  Any 
significant changes to the size or exterior appearance of the structure shall require 
Planning Commission approval.   
 

6. Prior to issuance of building permit, a final landscape plan shall be submitted and 
approved by the Community Development Department.  Landscape plans shall reflect 
the Planning Commission approval and shall identify type, size, and location of species 
and details of irrigation systems.   

 
7. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit #17-0403 

shall be paid in full. 
 

3.1

Packet Pg. 15

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

5,
 2

01
8 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – April 5, 2018 13 
 

8. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant must provide documentation of plan 
approval by the following entities: Santa Cruz County Sanitation Department, Soquel 
Creek Water District, and Central Fire Protection District.   
 

9. Prior to issuance of building permits, a drainage plan, grading, sediment and erosion 
control plan, shall be submitted to the City and approved by Public Works.  The plans 
shall be in compliance with the requirements specified in Capitola Municipal Code 
Chapter 13.16 Storm Water Pollution Prevention and Protection. 
 

10. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall submit a stormwater 
management plan to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works which implements 
all applicable Post Construction Requirements (PCRs) and Public Works Standard 
Details, including all standards relating to low impact development (LID). 

 
11. Prior to any land disturbance, a pre-site inspection must be conducted by the grading 

official to verify compliance with the approved erosion and sediment control plan.  
 

12. Prior to any work in the City road right of way, an encroachment permit shall be acquired 
by the contractor performing the work.  No material or equipment storage may be placed 
in the road right-of-way. 
 

13. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise 
curfew, except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City.  
Construction noise shall be prohibited between the hours of nine p.m. and seven-thirty 
a.m. on weekdays. Construction noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the 
exception of Saturday work between nine a.m. and four p.m. or emergency work 
approved by the building official. §9.12.010B 
 

14. Prior to a project final, all cracked or broken driveway approaches, curb, gutter, or 
sidewalk shall be replaced per the Public Works Standard Details and to the satisfaction 
of the Public Works Department.  All replaced driveway approaches, curb, gutter or 
sidewalk shall meet current Accessibility Standards. 

    
15. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, compliance with all conditions of 

approval shall be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director.  Upon evidence of non-compliance with conditions of approval or applicable 
municipal code provisions, the applicant shall remedy the non-compliance to the 
satisfaction of the Community Development Director or shall file an application for a 
permit amendment for Planning Commission consideration. Failure to remedy a non-
compliance in a timely manner may result in permit revocation. 
 

16. This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance.  The applicant shall have 
an approved building permit and construction underway before this date to prevent 
permit expiration.  Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to 
expiration pursuant to Municipal Code section 17.81.160. 
 

17. The planning and infrastructure review and approval are transferable with the title to the 
underlying property so that an approved project may be conveyed or assigned by the 
applicant to others without losing the approval. The permit cannot be transferred off the 
site on which the approval was granted. 
 

18. Upon receipt of certificate of occupancy, garbage and recycling containers shall be 
placed out of public view on non-collection days.  

3.1

Packet Pg. 16

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

5,
 2

01
8 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – April 5, 2018 14 
 
 

19. The floor area for secondary dwelling unit shall not exceed 580 square feet as approved 
by the Planning Commission.  
 

20. At time of submittal for building permit review, a water will serve letter for the second 
dwelling unit must be submitted to the City. 
 

21. Before obtaining a building permit for a secondary dwelling unit, the property owner shall 
file with the county recorder a declaration of restrictions containing a reference to the 
deed under which the property was acquired by the present owner and stating that: 
 
a. The secondary dwelling unit shall not be sold separately; 
b. The unit is restricted to the approved size and no loft will be permitted; 
c. The administrative review or the design permit, whichever applies, for the secondary 

dwelling unit shall be in effect only so long as the owner of record occupies either the 
main residence or the secondary dwelling unit; 

d. The above declarations are binding upon any successor in ownership of the 
property. Lack of compliance shall be cause for code enforcement and/or revoking 
the administrative review or the architecture and site review permit, whichever 
applies; 

e. The deed restrictions shall lapse upon removal of the secondary dwelling unit. 
f. The secondary dwelling unit shall not be rented for less than 30 days.  
 

22. Secretary of the Interior’s Standards and Guidelines for preservation, rehabilitation, 
restoration, or reconstruction shall be followed. 
a. Prior to disassembly of the barn, the applicant shall catalog all existing details of the 

structure.  Once the existing structure is ready to be disassembled, the applicant is 
required to have an inspection by the City Planner and Building Inspector to ensure 
all existing materials are documented in accordance with the preservation plan.  
Existing materials must be stored in a weather proof area.  

b. Any removal of existing building materials or features on historic buildings shall be 
approved by the Community Development Department prior to removal. 

c. The applicant and/or contractor shall field verify all existing conditions on historic 
buildings and match replacement elements and materials according to the approved 
plans.  Any discrepancies found between approved plans, replacement features and 
existing elements must be reported to the Community Development Department for 
further direction, prior to construction. 

 
FINDINGS 
A. The project, subject to the conditions imposed, secures the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have all reviewed the project. The proposed conversion of an 
existing historic barn into an Accessory Dwelling Unit and construction of a new single-
car garage complies with the development standards of the R-1 (Single-Family) District.  
Specifically, all of the requirements of Capitola Municipal Code §17.99.050 have been 
met.  The project secures the purpose of the Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local 
Coastal Plan 

 
B. The project will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 

Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have all reviewed the application for the conversion of an existing 
historic barn into an Accessory Dwelling Unit and construction of a new single-car 

3.1

Packet Pg. 17

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

5,
 2

01
8 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – April 5, 2018 15 
 

garage.  The design of the garage, with its bead board siding and composite shingle 
roof, will fit in nicely with the historic house and barn and the existing neighborhood. The 
project will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood.   

 
C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15303(e) of the California 

Environmental Quality Act and is subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 
Section 15303(e) of the CEQA Guidelines exempts accessory structures including 
garages. This project involves the conversion of an existing historic barn into an 
Accessory Dwelling Unit and construction of a new single-car garage within the R-1 
(Single-Family) zoning district. No adverse environmental impacts were discovered 
during review of the proposed project.  

 

Coastal Findings 
D. Findings Required 

1. A coastal permit shall be granted only upon adoption of specific written factual 
findings supporting the conclusion that the proposed development conforms to 
the certified Local Coastal Program, including, but not limited to: 
a. A statement of the individual and cumulative burdens imposed on public access 

and recreation opportunities based on applicable factors identified pursuant to 
subsection (D)(2) of this section. The type of affected public access and recreation 
opportunities shall be clearly described; 

b. An analysis based on applicable factors identified in subsection (D)(2) of this 
section of the necessity for requiring public access conditions to find the project 
consistent with the public access provisions of the Coastal Act; 

c. A description of the legitimate governmental interest furthered by any access 
conditioned required; 

d. An explanation of how imposition of an access dedication requirement alleviates 
the access burdens identified. 

• The proposed development conforms to the City’s certified Local Coastal 
Plan (LCP).  The specific, factual findings, as per CMC Section 17.46.090(D) 
are as follows: 

 
2. Require Project-Specific Findings. In determining any requirement for public 

access, including the type of access and character of use, the city shall 
evaluate and document in written findings the factors identified in subsections 
(D)(2)(a) through (e), to the extent applicable. The findings shall explain the 
basis for the conclusions and decisions of the city and shall be supported by 
substantial evidence in the record. If an access dedication is required as a 
condition of approval, the findings shall explain how the adverse effects which 
have been identified will be alleviated or mitigated by the dedication. As used in 
this section, “cumulative effect” means the effect of the individual project in 
combination with the effects of past projects, other current projects, and 
probable future projects, including development allowed under applicable 
planning and zoning. 
a. Project Effects on Demand for Access and Recreation. Identification of existing 

and open public access and coastal recreation areas and facilities in the regional 
and local vicinity of the development. Analysis of the project’s effects upon 
existing public access and recreation opportunities. Analysis of the project’s 
cumulative effects upon the use and capacity of the identified access and 
recreation opportunities, including public tidelands and beach resources, and 
upon the capacity of major coastal roads from subdivision, intensification or 
cumulative buildout. Projection for the anticipated demand and need for 

3.1

Packet Pg. 18

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

5,
 2

01
8 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – April 5, 2018 16 
 

increased coastal access and recreation opportunities for the public. Analysis of 
the contribution of the project’s cumulative effects to any such projected 
increase. Description of the physical characteristics of the site and its proximity to 
the sea, tideland viewing points, upland recreation areas, and trail linkages to 
tidelands or recreation areas. Analysis of the importance and potential of the site, 
because of its location or other characteristics, for creating, preserving or 
enhancing public access to tidelands or public recreation opportunities; 

 

• The proposed project is located at 1725 48th Avenue.  The home is not 
located in an area with coastal access.  The home will not have an effect on 
public trails or beach access. 

 
b. Shoreline Processes. Description of the existing shoreline conditions, including 

beach profile, accessibility and usability of the beach, history of erosion or 
accretion, character and sources of sand, wave and sand movement, presence 
of shoreline protective structures, location of the line of mean high tide during the 
season when the beach is at its narrowest (generally during the late winter) and 
the proximity of that line to existing structures, and any other factors which 
substantially characterize or affect the shoreline processes at the site. 
Identification of anticipated changes to shoreline processes at the site. 
Identification of anticipated changes to shoreline processes and beach profile 
unrelated to the proposed development. Description and analysis of any 
reasonably likely changes, attributable to the primary and cumulative effects of 
the project, to: wave and sand movement affecting beaches in the vicinity of the 
project; the profile of the beach; the character, extent, accessibility and usability 
of the beach; and any other factors which characterize or affect beaches in the 
vicinity. Analysis of the effect of any identified changes of the project, alone or in 
combination with other anticipated changes, will have upon the ability of the 
public to use public tidelands and shoreline recreation areas; 

 

• The proposed project is located along 48th Avenue.  No portion of the project 
is located along the shoreline or beach. 

 
c. Historic Public Use. Evidence of use of the site by members of the general public 

for a continuous five-year period (such use may be seasonal). Evidence of the 
type and character of use made by the public (vertical, lateral, blufftop, etc., and 
for passive and/or active recreational use, etc.). Identification of any agency (or 
person) who has maintained and/or improved the area subject to historic 
public use and the nature of the maintenance performed and improvements 
made. Identification of the record owner of the area historically used by the public 
and any attempts by the owner to prohibit public use of the area, including the 
success or failure of those attempts. Description of the potential for adverse 
impact on public use of the area from the proposed development (including but 
not limited to, creation of physical or psychological impediments to public use); 

 

• There is not a history of public use on the subject lot. 
 
d. Physical Obstructions. Description of any physical aspects of the development 

which block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the tidelands, 
public recreation areas, or other public coastal resources or to see the shoreline; 

 

3.1

Packet Pg. 19

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

5,
 2

01
8 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – April 5, 2018 17 
 

• The proposed project is located on private property on 48th Avenue.  The 
project will not block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the 
tidelands, public recreation areas, or views to the shoreline. 

 
e. Other Adverse Impacts on Access and Recreation. Description of the 

development’s physical proximity and relationship to the shoreline and any public 
recreation area. Analysis of the extent of which buildings, walls, signs, streets or 
other aspects of the development, individually or cumulatively, are likely to 
diminish the public’s use of tidelands or lands committed to public recreation. 
Description of any alteration of the aesthetic, visual or recreational value of 
public use areas, and of any diminution of the quality or amount of 
recreational use of public lands which may be attributable to the individual or 
cumulative effects of the development. 

 

• The proposed project is located on private property that will not impact 
access and recreation.  The project does not diminish the public’s use of 
tidelands or lands committed to public recreation nor alter the aesthetic, 
visual, or recreational value of public use areas. 

 
3. Required Findings for Public Access Exceptions. Any determination that 

one of the exceptions of subsection (F)(2) applies to a development shall 
be supported by written findings of fact, analysis and conclusions which 
address all of the following: 

a. The type of access potentially applicable to the site involved (vertical, 
lateral, bluff top, etc.) and its location in relation to the fragile coastal resource to 
be protected, the agricultural use, the public safety concern, or the military facility 
which is the basis for the exception, as applicable; 

b. Unavailability of any mitigating measures to manage the type, character, 
intensity, hours, season or location of such use so that agricultural resources, 
fragile coastal resources, public safety, or military security, as applicable, are 
protected; 

c. Ability of the public, through another reasonable means, to reach the same area 
of public tidelands as would be made accessible by an accessway on the subject 
land. 

 

• The project is not requesting a Public Access Exception, therefore these 
findings do not apply. 

 
4. Findings for Management Plan Conditions. Written findings in support of a 

condition requiring a management plan for regulating the time and manner 
or character of public access use must address the following factors, as 
applicable: 
a. Identification and protection of specific habitat values including the reasons 

supporting the conclusions that such values must be protected by limiting the 
hours, seasons, or character of public use; 

 

• The project is located in a residential area without sensitive habitat areas. 
 

b. Topographic constraints of the development site; 
 

• The project is located on a flat lot. 
 

c. Recreational needs of the public; 

3.1

Packet Pg. 20

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

5,
 2

01
8 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – April 5, 2018 18 
 

 

• The project does not impact the recreational needs of the public. 
 

d. Rights of privacy of the landowner which could not be mitigated by setting the 
project back from the access way or otherwise conditioning the development; 

e. The requirements of the possible accepting agency, if an offer of dedication is 
the mechanism for securing public access; 

f. Feasibility of adequate setbacks, fencing, landscaping, and other methods as 
part of a management plan to regulate public use. 

 
5. Project complies with public access requirements, including submittal of 

appropriate legal documents to ensure the right of public access whenever, 
and as, required by the certified land use plan and 
Section 17.46.010 (coastal access requirements); 

 

• No legal documents to ensure public access rights are required for the 
proposed project. 

 
6. Project complies with visitor-serving and recreational use policies; 
 

SEC. 30222 
The use of private lands suitable for visitor-serving commercial recreational 
facilities designed to enhance public opportunities for coastal recreation shall 
have priority over private residential, general industrial, or general commercial 
development, but not over agriculture or coastal-dependent industry. 
 

• The project involves the conversion of an existing historic barn into an Accessory 
Dwelling Unit and construction of a new single-car garage on a residential lot of 
record. 

 

SEC. 30223 
Upland areas necessary to support coastal recreational uses shall be reserved 
for such uses, where feasible. 
 

• The project involves the conversion of an existing historic barn into an Accessory 
Dwelling Unit and construction of a new single-car garage on a residential lot of 
record. 

 
c) Visitor-serving facilities that cannot be feasibly located in existing developed 

areas shall be located in existing isolated developments or at selected 
points of attraction for visitors. 

 

• The project involves the conversion of an existing historic barn into an 
Accessory Dwelling Unit and construction of a new single-car garage on a 
residential lot of record. 

 
7. Project complies with applicable standards and requirements for provision 

of public and private parking, pedestrian access, alternate means of 
transportation and/or traffic improvements; 

 

3.1

Packet Pg. 21

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

5,
 2

01
8 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – April 5, 2018 19 
 

• The project involves the conversion of an existing historic barn into an 
Accessory Dwelling Unit and construction of a new single-car garage on a 
residential lot of record.  The project complies with applicable standards and 
requirements for provision for parking, pedestrian access, alternate means of 
transportation, and/or traffic improvements. 

 
8. Review of project design, site plan, signing, lighting, landscaping, etc., by 

the city’s architectural and site review committee, and compliance with 
adopted design guidelines and standards, and review committee 
recommendations; 

 

• The project complies with the design guidelines and standards established by 
the Municipal Code. 

 
9. Project complies with LCP policies regarding protection of public 

landmarks, protection or provision of public views; and shall not block or 
detract from public views to and along Capitola’s shoreline; 

 

• The project will not negatively impact public landmarks and/or public views. 
The project will not block or detract from public views to and along Capitola’s 
shoreline. 

 
10. Demonstrated availability and adequacy of water and sewer services; 
 

• The project is located on a legal lot of record with available water and sewer 
services. 

 
11. Provisions of minimum water flow rates and fire response times; 
 

• The project is located a short distance from the Capitola fire department. 
Water is available at the location. 

 
12. Project complies with water and energy conservation standards; 

 

• The project is for the conversion of an existing historic barn into an Accessory 
Dwelling Unit and construction of a new single-car garage on a residential lot 
of record.  The GHG emissions for the project are projected at less than 
significant impact. All water fixtures must comply with the low-flow standards 
of the Soquel Creek Water District. 

 
13. Provision of park dedication, school impact, and other fees as may be 

required; 
 

• The project will be required to pay appropriate fees prior to building permit 
issuance. 

 
14. Project complies with coastal housing policies, and applicable ordinances 

including condominium conversion and mobile home ordinances; 
 

• The project does not involve a condo conversion or mobile homes. 
 

3.1

Packet Pg. 22

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

5,
 2

01
8 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – April 5, 2018 20 
 

15. Project complies with natural resource, habitat, and archaeological 
protection policies; 

 

• Conditions of approval have been included to ensure compliance with 
established policies. 

 
16. Project complies with Monarch butterfly habitat protection policies; 
 

• The project is outside of any identified sensitive habitats, specifically areas 
where Monarch Butterflies have been encountered, identified and 
documented. 

 
17. Project provides drainage and erosion and control measures to protect 

marine, stream, and wetland water quality from urban runoff and erosion; 
 

• Conditions of approval have been included to ensure compliance with 
applicable erosion control measures. 

 
18. Geologic/engineering reports have been prepared by qualified professional 

for projects in seismic areas, geologically unstable areas, or coastal bluffs, 
and project complies with hazard protection policies including provision of 
appropriate setbacks and mitigation measures; 

 

• The project is not located in seismic areas, geologically unstable areas, or 
coastal bluffs.  Conditions of approval have been included to ensure the 
project applicant shall comply with all applicable requirements of the most 
recent version of the California Building Standards Code. 

 
19. All other geological, flood and fire hazards are accounted for and mitigated 

in the project design; 
 

• Conditions of approval have been included to ensure the project complies 
with geological, flood, and fire hazards and are accounted for and will be 
mitigated in the project design. 

 
20. Project complies with shoreline structure policies; 
 

• The proposed project is not located along a shoreline. 
 
21. The uses proposed are consistent with the permitted or conditional uses of 

the zoning district in which the project is located; 
 

• This use is an allowed use consistent with the Single-Family zoning district. 
 
22. Conformance to requirements of all other city ordinances, zoning 

requirements, and project review procedures; and 
 

• The project conforms to the requirements of all city ordinances, zoning 
requirements, and project development review and development procedures. 

 
23. Project complies with the Capitola parking permit program as follows: 

3.1

Packet Pg. 23

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

5,
 2

01
8 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – April 5, 2018 21 
 

a. The village area preferential parking program areas and conditions as 
established in Resolution No. 2596 and no permit parking of any kind shall be 
allowed on Capitola Avenue. 

b. The neighborhood preferential parking program areas are as established in 
Resolution Numbers 2433 and 2510. 

c. The village area preferential parking program shall be limited to three 
hundred fifty permits. 

d. Neighborhood permit areas are only in force when the shuttle bus is 
operating except that: 
i. The Fanmar area (Resolution No. 2436) program may operate year-round, 

twenty-four hours a day on weekends, 
ii. The Burlingame, Cliff Avenue/Grand Avenue area (Resolution No. 2435) 

have year-round, twenty-four hour per day “no public parking.” 
e. Except as specifically allowed under the village parking program, no 

preferential residential parking may be allowed in the Cliff Drive parking 
areas. 

f. Six Depot Hill twenty-four minute “Vista” parking spaces (Resolution No. 
2510) shall be provided as corrected in Exhibit A attached to the ordinance 
codified in this section and found on file in the office of the city clerk. 

g. A limit of fifty permits for the Pacific Cove parking lot may be issued to village 
permit holders and transient occupancy permit holders. 

h. No additional development in the village that intensifies use and requires 
additional parking shall be permitted. Changes in use that do not result in 
additional parking demand can be allowed and exceptions for onsite parking 
as allowed in the land use plan can be made. 

 

• The project site is not located within the area of the Capitola parking 
permit program. 

 

RESULT: APPROVED AS AMENDED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Linda Smith, Commissioner 

SECONDER: TJ Welch, Chairperson 

AYES: Smith, Newman, Welch, Westman, Storey 

 
 
C. 4201 Capitola Road #17-0441 APN: 034-121-36 & 37 

Tentative Map for a three-lot subdivision, Design Permit for three new single-
family homes, Variance request to allow encroachments into side yard setbacks, 
and demolition of two existing structures located at 4201 Capitola Road within 
the CN (Neighborhood Commercial) zoning district. 
This project is in the Coastal Zone and requires a Coastal Development Permit 
which is not appealable to the California Coastal Commission after all possible 
appeals are exhausted through the City. 
Property Owner: Magnolia Tree Investments 
Representative: Matthew Thompson, Architect.  Filed: 11.09.2017  
 

Assistant Planner Orbach provided the presentation. He noted that an alternative set of 
plans that would not require the variance to the setback encroachments were submitted 
earlier in the day. 
 

3.1

Packet Pg. 24

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

5,
 2

01
8 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – April 5, 2018 22 
 

Representative Matthew Thompson of Thacher & Thompson Architects addressed the 
Planning Commission and provided the background on the proposed project. 
 
Commissioner Smith stated that she thought that this was the wrong project for the 
location. 

 
Chairperson Storey requested a roll call vote. 
 

MOTION: Approve a Design Permit and Coastal Development Permit for the alternate plans 
submitted on April 5, 2018, and deny the variance, with the following amended conditions and 
findings: 

 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
1. The project approval consists of a design permit for three new single-family homes, 

including demolition of one existing home, and a tentative parcel map for a three-lot 
subdivision located at 4201 Capitola Road.  The proposed project is approved as 
indicated on the final alternative plans submitted, reviewed, and approved by the 
Planning Commission on April 5, 2018, except as modified through conditions imposed 
by the Planning Commission during the hearing.  The request for a variance for 
encroachments into the side yard setbacks was denied. 
 

2. Prior to construction, a building permit shall be secured for any new construction or 
modifications to structures authorized by this permit. Final building plans shall be 
consistent with the plans approved by the Planning Commission.  All construction and 
site improvements shall be completed according to the approved plans 
 

3. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be 
printed in full on the cover sheet of the construction plans.  
 

4. At time of submittal for building permit review, Public Works Standard Detail SMP STRM 
shall be printed in full and incorporated as a sheet into the construction plans.  All 
construction shall be done in accordance with the Public Works Standard Detail BMP 
STRM.   

 
5. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically 

requested and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department.  Any 
significant changes to the size or exterior appearance of the structure shall require 
Planning Commission approval.   
 

6. Prior to issuance of building permit, a final landscape plan shall be submitted and 
approved by the Community Development Department.  Landscape plans shall reflect 
the Planning Commission approval and shall identify type, size, and location of species 
and details of irrigation systems.   

 
7. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit #17-0441 

shall be paid in full. 
 

8. Prior to issuance of building permit, Affordable housing in-lieu fees shall be paid as 
required to assure compliance with the City of Capitola Affordable (Inclusionary) Housing 
Ordinance.   
 

3.1

Packet Pg. 25

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

5,
 2

01
8 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – April 5, 2018 23 
 

9. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant must provide documentation of plan 
approval by the following entities: Santa Cruz County Sanitation Department, Soquel 
Creek Water District, and Central Fire Protection District.   
 

10. Prior to issuance of building permits, a drainage plan, grading, sediment and erosion 
control plan, shall be submitted to the City and approved by Public Works.  The plans 
shall be in compliance with the requirements specified in Capitola Municipal Code 
Chapter 13.16 Storm Water Pollution Prevention and Protection. 
 

11. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall submit a stormwater 
management plan to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works which implements 
all applicable Post Construction Requirements (PCRs) and Public Works Standard 
Details, including all standards relating to low impact development (LID). 

 
12. Prior to any land disturbance, a pre-site inspection must be conducted by the grading 

official to verify compliance with the approved erosion and sediment control plan.  
 

13. Prior to any work in the City road right of way, an encroachment permit shall be acquired 
by the contractor performing the work.  No material or equipment storage may be placed 
in the road right-of-way. 
 

14. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise 
curfew, except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City.  
Construction noise shall be prohibited between the hours of nine p.m. and seven-thirty 
a.m. on weekdays. Construction noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the 
exception of Saturday work between nine a.m. and four p.m. or emergency work 
approved by the building official. §9.12.010B 
 

15. Prior to a project final, all cracked or broken driveway approaches, curb, gutter, or 
sidewalk shall be replaced per the Public Works Standard Details and to the satisfaction 
of the Public Works Department.  All replaced driveway approaches, curb, gutter or 
sidewalk shall meet current Accessibility Standards. 
 

16. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, the applicant shall demonstrate 
compliance with the tree removal permit authorized by this permit for 3 trees to be 
removed from the property.  Replacement trees shall be planted at a 2:1 ratio. Required 
replacement trees shall be of the same size, species, and planted on the site as shown 
on the approved plans.  
    

17. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, compliance with all conditions of 
approval shall be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director.  Upon evidence of non-compliance with conditions of approval or applicable 
municipal code provisions, the applicant shall remedy the non-compliance to the 
satisfaction of the Community Development Director or shall file an application for a 
permit amendment for Planning Commission consideration. Failure to remedy a non-
compliance in a timely manner may result in permit revocation. 
 

18. This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance.  The applicant shall have 
an approved building permit and construction underway before this date to prevent 
permit expiration.   Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to 
expiration pursuant to Municipal Code section 17.81.160. 
 

3.1

Packet Pg. 26

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

5,
 2

01
8 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – April 5, 2018 24 
 

19. The planning and infrastructure review and approval are transferable with the title to the 
underlying property so that an approved project may be conveyed or assigned by the 
applicant to others without losing the approval. The permit cannot be transferred off the 
site on which the approval was granted. 
 

20. Upon receipt of certificate of occupancy, garbage and recycling containers shall be 
placed out of public view on non-collection days.  
 

21. Prior to issuance of building permits, the building plans must show that the existing 
overhead utility lines will be underground to the nearest utility pole.   

 
22. Applicant shall have prepared a final parcel map by a licensed surveyor and shall submit 

the final map for review, approval, and recording by the City’s surveyor and the Public 
Works Department.   

 
23. All plans and profiles of improvements shall be approved by the Director of Public Works 

prior to the filing of the final map, and the construction of said improvements shall be in 
accordance with the City Specifications and shall be inspected by the Director of Public 
Works or his authorized agent, subject to fees appropriate for the services.   

 
24. Prior to the recordation of the parcel map, the applicant shall submit new legal 

descriptions for the three lots for review by the Community Development Director. 
 

25. Available and necessary utilities, including CATV hookup facilities, with connections to 
each lot within the subdivision, shall be constructed in accordance with the utility’s 
requirements. All utilities shall be underground. 

 
26. During construction, applicant shall follow the required procedures for tree protection in 

the Tree Resource Analysis/Construction Impact Assessment/Tree Protection Plan by 
James P. Allen & Associates, including: tree protection structures, demolition, backhoe 
operating requirements, site stabilization, preconstruction root exploration, 
preconstruction root pruning, necessary tree removal, tree canopy clearance pruning, 
required tree replacement, and supplemental irrigation.  Also, to ensure the survivability 
and proper growth of replacement trees, applicant shall implement the success criteria 
found in the maintenance and monitoring program criteria section: 

a. A qualified professional will monitor the newly planted trees at one (1) month 
intervals for the first year of growth and every 3 months thereafter for an 
additional 4-year period 

b. Tree health and growth rates will be assessed 
c. Trees suffering poor growth rates or declining health will be identified 
d. Invigoration treatments will be provided 
e. Dead trees or trees in an irreversible state of decline will be replaced 
f. At the end of the five-year period the status of the new plantings will be assessed 

to make certain that success criteria have been met and all replacement trees 
planted are performing well 

 
FINDINGS 
A. The project, subject to the conditions imposed, secures the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have all reviewed the project. The proposed design permit for 
three new single-family homes, including demolition of one existing home, and a 
tentative parcel map for a three-lot subdivision comply with the development standards 

3.1

Packet Pg. 27

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

5,
 2

01
8 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – April 5, 2018 25 
 

of the CN (Neighborhood Commercial) District.  The project secures the purpose of the 
Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan 
 

B. The project will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have all reviewed the application for the design permit for three 
new single-family homes, including demolition of one existing home, and tentative parcel 
map for a three-lot subdivision.  The design of the homes, with three different siding 
types, open rafters in the eaves, timber detailing for porch work, klinker brick bases on 
the porch columns, and clad wood windows, will fit in nicely with the existing 
neighborhood. The project will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood.   

 
C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15303(a) of the California    

Environmental Quality Act and is subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 
Section 15303(a) of the CEQA Guidelines exempts one single-family residence, or a 
second dwelling unit in a residential zone, and in urbanized areas, up to three single-
family residences may be constructed under this exemption. This project involves a 
design permit for three new single-family homes, including demolition of one existing 
home, and a tentative parcel map for a three-lot subdivision within the CN 
(Neighborhood Commercial) zoning district. No adverse environmental impacts were 
discovered during review of the proposed project.  

 
COASTAL FINDINGS 
D. Findings Required.  

24. A coastal permit shall be granted only upon adoption of specific written factual 
findings supporting the conclusion that the proposed development conforms to 
the certified Local Coastal Program, including, but not limited to: 
a. A statement of the individual and cumulative burdens imposed on public access 

and recreation opportunities based on applicable factors identified pursuant to 
subsection (D)(2) of this section. The type of affected public access and recreation 
opportunities shall be clearly described; 

b. An analysis based on applicable factors identified in subsection (D)(2) of this 
section of the necessity for requiring public access conditions to find the project 
consistent with the public access provisions of the Coastal Act; 

c. A description of the legitimate governmental interest furthered by any access 
conditioned required; 

d. An explanation of how imposition of an access dedication requirement alleviates 
the access burdens identified. 

 

• The proposed development conforms to the City’s certified Local Coastal Plan 
(LCP).  The specific, factual findings, as per CMC Section 17.46.090(D) are as 
follows: 

 
25. Require Project-Specific Findings. In determining any requirement for public 

access, including the type of access and character of use, the city shall evaluate 
and document in written findings the factors identified in subsections (D)(2)(a) 
through (e), to the extent applicable. The findings shall explain the basis for the 
conclusions and decisions of the city and shall be supported by substantial 
evidence in the record. If an access dedication is required as a condition of 
approval, the findings shall explain how the adverse effects which have been 
identified will be alleviated or mitigated by the dedication. As used in this 
section, “cumulative effect” means the effect of the individual project in 

3.1

Packet Pg. 28

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

5,
 2

01
8 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – April 5, 2018 26 
 

combination with the effects of past projects, other current projects, and 
probable future projects, including development allowed under applicable 
planning and zoning. 

a. Project Effects on Demand for Access and Recreation. Identification of existing 
and open public access and coastal recreation areas and facilities in the regional 
and local vicinity of the development. Analysis of the project’s effects upon 
existing public access and recreation opportunities. Analysis of the project’s 
cumulative effects upon the use and capacity of the identified access and 
recreation opportunities, including public tidelands and beach resources, and 
upon the capacity of major coastal roads from subdivision, intensification or 
cumulative buildout. Projection for the anticipated demand and need for 
increased coastal access and recreation opportunities for the public. Analysis of 
the contribution of the project’s cumulative effects to any such projected 
increase. Description of the physical characteristics of the site and its proximity to 
the sea, tideland viewing points, upland recreation areas, and trail linkages to 
tidelands or recreation areas. Analysis of the importance and potential of the site, 
because of its location or other characteristics, for creating, preserving or 
enhancing public access to tidelands or public recreation opportunities; 

 

• The proposed project is located at 4201 Capitola Road.  The homes are not 
located in an area with coastal access.  The homes will not have an effect on 
public trails or beach access. 

 
b. Shoreline Processes. Description of the existing shoreline conditions, including 

beach profile, accessibility and usability of the beach, history of erosion or 
accretion, character and sources of sand, wave and sand movement, presence 
of shoreline protective structures, location of the line of mean high tide during the 
season when the beach is at its narrowest (generally during the late winter) and 
the proximity of that line to existing structures, and any other factors which 
substantially characterize or affect the shoreline processes at the site. 
Identification of anticipated changes to shoreline processes at the site. 
Identification of anticipated changes to shoreline processes and beach profile 
unrelated to the proposed development. Description and analysis of any 
reasonably likely changes, attributable to the primary and cumulative effects of 
the project, to: wave and sand movement affecting beaches in the vicinity of the 
project; the profile of the beach; the character, extent, accessibility and usability 
of the beach; and any other factors which characterize or affect beaches in the 
vicinity. Analysis of the effect of any identified changes of the project, alone or in 
combination with other anticipated changes, will have upon the ability of the 
public to use public tidelands and shoreline recreation areas; 

 

• The proposed project is located along Capitola Road and 42nd Avenue.  No 
portion of the project is located along the shoreline or beach. 

 
c. Historic Public Use. Evidence of use of the site by members of the general public 

for a continuous five-year period (such use may be seasonal). Evidence of the 
type and character of use made by the public (vertical, lateral, blufftop, etc., and 
for passive and/or active recreational use, etc.). Identification of any agency (or 
person) who has maintained and/or improved the area subject to historic 
public use and the nature of the maintenance performed and improvements 
made. Identification of the record owner of the area historically used by the public 
and any attempts by the owner to prohibit public use of the area, including the 
success or failure of those attempts. Description of the potential for adverse 

3.1

Packet Pg. 29

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

5,
 2

01
8 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – April 5, 2018 27 
 

impact on public use of the area from the proposed development (including but 
not limited to, creation of physical or psychological impediments to public use); 

 

• There is not a history of public use on the subject lot. 
 

d. Physical Obstructions. Description of any physical aspects of the development 
which block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the tidelands, 
public recreation areas, or other public coastal resources or to see the shoreline; 

 

• The proposed project is located on private property on Capitola Road.  The 
project will not block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the 
tidelands, public recreation areas, or views to the shoreline. 

 
e. Other Adverse Impacts on Access and Recreation. Description of the 

development’s physical proximity and relationship to the shoreline and any public 
recreation area. Analysis of the extent of which buildings, walls, signs, streets or 
other aspects of the development, individually or cumulatively, are likely to 
diminish the public’s use of tidelands or lands committed to public recreation. 
Description of any alteration of the aesthetic, visual or recreational value of 
public use areas, and of any diminution of the quality or amount of 
recreational use of public lands which may be attributable to the individual or 
cumulative effects of the development. 

 

• The proposed project is located on private property that will not impact 
access and recreation.  The project does not diminish the public’s use of 
tidelands or lands committed to public recreation nor alter the aesthetic, 
visual, or recreational value of public use areas. 

 
26. Required Findings for Public Access Exceptions. Any determination that one of 

the exceptions of subsection (F)(2) applies to a development shall be supported 
by written findings of fact, analysis and conclusions which address all of the 
following: 

a. The type of access potentially applicable to the site involved (vertical, 
lateral, bluff top, etc.) and its location in relation to the fragile coastal resource to 
be protected, the agricultural use, the public safety concern, or the military facility 
which is the basis for the exception, as applicable; 

b. Unavailability of any mitigating measures to manage the type, character, 
intensity, hours, season or location of such use so that agricultural resources, 
fragile coastal resources, public safety, or military security, as applicable, are 
protected; 

c. Ability of the public, through another reasonable means, to reach the same area 
of public tidelands as would be made accessible by an accessway on the subject 
land. 

 

• The project is not requesting a Public Access Exception, therefore these 
findings do not apply. 

 
27. Findings for Management Plan Conditions. Written findings in support of a 

condition requiring a management plan for regulating the time and manner or 
character of public access use must address the following factors, as applicable: 

a. Identification and protection of specific habitat values including the reasons 
supporting the conclusions that such values must be protected by limiting the 
hours, seasons, or character of public use; 

3.1

Packet Pg. 30

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

5,
 2

01
8 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – April 5, 2018 28 
 

 

• The project is located in a commercial/residential area without sensitive 
habitat areas. 

 
b. Topographic constraints of the development site; 

 

• The project is located on a flat lot. 
 

c. Recreational needs of the public; 
 

• The project does not impact the recreational needs of the public. 
 

d. Rights of privacy of the landowner which could not be mitigated by setting the 
project back from the access way or otherwise conditioning the development; 

e. The requirements of the possible accepting agency, if an offer of dedication is the 
mechanism for securing public access; 

f. Feasibility of adequate setbacks, fencing, landscaping, and other methods as 
part of a management plan to regulate public use. 

 
28. Project complies with public access requirements, including submittal of 

appropriate legal documents to ensure the right of public access whenever, and 
as, required by the certified land use plan and Section 17.46.010 (coastal access 
requirements); 

 

• No legal documents to ensure public access rights are required for the proposed 
project. 

 
29. Project complies with visitor-serving and recreational use policies; 
 

SEC. 30222 
The use of private lands suitable for visitor-serving commercial recreational 
facilities designed to enhance public opportunities for coastal recreation shall 
have priority over private residential, general industrial, or general commercial 
development, but not over agriculture or coastal-dependent industry. 

 

• The project involves single-family homes on residential lots of record. 
 

SEC. 30223 
Upland areas necessary to support coastal recreational uses shall be reserved 
for such uses, where feasible. 
 

• The project involves single-family homes on residential lots of record. 
 
c) Visitor-serving facilities that cannot be feasibly located in existing developed 
areas shall be located in existing isolated developments or at selected points of 
attraction for visitors. 
 

• The project involves single-family homes on residential lots of record. 
 

30. Project complies with applicable standards and requirements for provision of 
public and private parking, pedestrian access, alternate means of transportation 
and/or traffic improvements; 

3.1

Packet Pg. 31

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

5,
 2

01
8 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – April 5, 2018 29 
 

 

• The project involves the construction of three single-family homes. The project 
complies with applicable standards and requirements for provision for parking, 
pedestrian access, alternate means of transportation, and/or traffic 
improvements. 

 
31. Review of project design, site plan, signing, lighting, landscaping, etc., by the 

city’s architectural and site review committee, and compliance with adopted 
design guidelines and standards, and review committee recommendations; 

 

• The project complies with the design guidelines and standards established by the 
Municipal Code. 

 
32. Project complies with LCP policies regarding protection of public landmarks, 

protection or provision of public views; and shall not block or detract from public 
views to and along Capitola’s shoreline; 

 

• The project will not negatively impact public landmarks and/or public views. The 
project will not block or detract from public views to and along Capitola’s 
shoreline. 

 
33. Demonstrated availability and adequacy of water and sewer services; 
 

• The project is located on legal lots of record with available water and sewer 
services. 

 
34. Provisions of minimum water flow rates and fire response times; 
 

• The project is located a short distance from the Capitola Fire Department. Water 
is available at the location. 

 
35. Project complies with water and energy conservation standards; 
 

• The project is for three single-family homes. The GHG emissions for the project 
are projected at less than significant impact. All water fixtures must comply with 
the low-flow standards of the Soquel Creek Water District. 

 
36. Provision of park dedication, school impact, and other fees as may be required; 
 

• The project will be required to pay appropriate fees prior to building permit 
issuance. 

 
37. Project complies with coastal housing policies, and applicable ordinances 

including condominium conversion and mobile home ordinances; 
 

• The project does not involve a condo conversion or mobile homes. 
 

38. Project complies with natural resource, habitat, and archaeological protection 
policies; 

 

• Conditions of approval have been included to ensure compliance with 
established policies. 

3.1

Packet Pg. 32

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

5,
 2

01
8 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – April 5, 2018 30 
 

 
39. Project complies with Monarch butterfly habitat protection policies; 
 

• The project is outside of any identified sensitive habitats, specifically areas where 
Monarch Butterflies have been encountered, identified and documented. 

 
40. Project provides drainage and erosion and control measures to protect marine, 

stream, and wetland water quality from urban runoff and erosion; 
 

• Conditions of approval have been included to ensure compliance with applicable 
erosion control measures. 

 
41. Geologic/engineering reports have been prepared by qualified professional for 

projects in seismic areas, geologically unstable areas, or coastal bluffs, and 
project complies with hazard protection policies including provision of 
appropriate setbacks and mitigation measures; 

 

• The project is not in a seismic area, geologically unstable area, or coastal bluffs.  
Conditions of approval have been included to ensure the project applicant shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the most recent version of the 
California Building Standards Code. 

 
42. All other geological, flood and fire hazards are accounted for and mitigated in the 

project design; 
 

• Conditions of approval have been included to ensure the project complies with 
geological, flood, and fire hazards and are accounted for and will be mitigated in 
the project design. 

 
43. Project complies with shoreline structure policies; 
 

• The proposed project is not located along a shoreline. 
 

44. The uses proposed are consistent with the permitted or conditional uses of the 
zoning district in which the project is located; 

 

• This use is an allowed use consistent with the Neighborhood Commercial zoning 
district. 

 
45. Conformance to requirements of all other city ordinances, zoning requirements, 

and project review procedures; and 
 

• The project conforms to the requirements of all city ordinances, zoning 
requirements, and project development review and development procedures. 

 
46. Project complies with the Capitola parking permit program as follows: 

a. The village area preferential parking program areas and conditions as 
established in Resolution No. 2596 and no permit parking of any kind shall be 
allowed on Capitola Avenue. 

b. The neighborhood preferential parking program areas are as established in 
Resolution Numbers 2433 and 2510. 

3.1

Packet Pg. 33

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

5,
 2

01
8 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – April 5, 2018 31 
 

c. The village area preferential parking program shall be limited to three hundred 
fifty permits. 

d. Neighborhood permit areas are only in force when the shuttle bus is operating 
except that: 
i. The Fanmar area (Resolution No. 2436) program may operate year-round, 

twenty-four hours a day on weekends, 
ii. The Burlingame, Cliff Avenue/Grand Avenue area (Resolution No. 2435) 

have year-round, twenty-four hour per day “no public parking.” 
e. Except as specifically allowed under the village parking program, no preferential 

residential parking may be allowed in the Cliff Drive parking areas. 
f. Six Depot Hill twenty-four minute “Vista” parking spaces (Resolution No. 2510) 

shall be provided as corrected in Exhibit A attached to the ordinance codified in 
this section and found on file in the office of the city clerk. 

g. A limit of fifty permits for the Pacific Cove parking lot may be issued to village 
permit holders and transient occupancy permit holders. 

h. No additional development in the village that intensifies use and requires 
additional parking shall be permitted. Changes in use that do not result in 
additional parking demand can be allowed and exceptions for onsite parking as 
allowed in the land use plan can be made. 

 

• The project site is not located within the area of the Capitola parking permit program. 
 

RESULT: APPROVED AS AMENDED [4 TO 1] 

MOVER: Edward Newman, Commissioner 

SECONDER: Susan Westman, Commissioner 

AYES: Newman, Welch, Westman, Storey 

NAYS: Smith 

7. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

Director Grunow reported that at the next City Council meeting of April 12, 2018, the City 
Council will discuss a marijuana ordinance and seek direction on a framework for a future 
ordinance, including consideration of ballot initiative this November to asses a tax should the 
Council decide to allow retail sales of marijuana in the city.  

8. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 

None. 

9. ADJOURNMENT 

 

3.1

Packet Pg. 34

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

5,
 2

01
8 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



City of Capitola Page 1 Updated 5/4/2018 9:37 AM  

DRAFT FINAL MINUTES 
CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

THURSDAY, MAY 3, 2018 
7 P.M. – CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 

 
 

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioner Newman: Present; Commissioner Smith: Present; Chairperson Storey: Present; 
Commissioner Welch: Present; Commissioner Westman: Present. 

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda – None 

B. Public Comments – None  

C. Commission Comments – None  

D. Staff Comments – None  

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Planning Commission - Regular Meeting - Apr 5, 2018 7:00 PM 

MOTION: Continue minutes approval to a date in the future. 

RESULT: CONTINUED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Linda Smith, Commissioner 

SECONDER: Susan Westman, Commissioner 

AYES: Smith, Newman, Welch, Westman, Storey 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. 110 Capitola Avenue Suite 1 #18-128 APN: 035-185-25 
Sign Permit for a new sign for Mia Bella Adonic, a new boutique located within the C-V 
(Central Village) zoning district.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal Development Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: GI 110 Capitola Ave, LLC 
Representative: Kayla & Dee Dee Wilson Filed: 03.23.2018  
 

MOTION: Approve Sign Permit with the following conditions and findings: 
 

CONDITIONS 
1.  The project approval consists of an 81 inch wide by 25 inch tall wall sign at the Mia Bella – 

Adonic at 110 Capitola Avenue Suite #1. The proposed project is approved as indicated on 
the final plans reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on May 3rd, 2018, 
except as modified through conditions imposed by the Planning Commission during the 
hearing. 
 

2.  Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically 
requested and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department. Any 
significant changes to the size or exterior appearance of the structure shall require 
Planning Commission approval.   
 

3.2

Packet Pg. 35

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ay
 3

, 2
01

8 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 3, 2018 2 
 
3.  Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit #18-0128 shall 

be paid in full. 
 

4.  Prior to any work in the City road right of way, an encroachment permit shall be acquired by 
the contractor performing the work.  No material or equipment storage may be placed in the 
road right-of-way. 
 

5.  During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise 
curfew, except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City.  
Construction noise shall be prohibited between the hours of nine p.m. and seven-thirty a.m. 
on weekdays. Construction noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the exception of 
Saturday work between nine a.m. and four p.m. or emergency work approved by the 
building official. §9.12.010B 
 

6.  Compliance with all conditions of approval shall be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the 
Community Development Director.  Upon evidence of non-compliance with conditions of 
approval or applicable municipal code provisions, the applicant shall remedy the non-
compliance to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director or shall file an 
application for a permit amendment for Planning Commission consideration. Failure to 
remedy a non-compliance in a timely manner may result in permit revocation. 
 

7.  This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance.   The applicant shall have an 
approved building permit and construction underway before this date to prevent permit 
expiration.   Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to expiration 
pursuant to Municipal Code section 17.81.160. 
 

8.  The planning and infrastructure review and approval are transferable with the title to the 
underlying property so that an approved project may be conveyed or assigned by the 
applicant to others without losing the approval. The permit cannot be transferred off the site 
on which the approval was granted. 
 
 

FINDINGS 
A. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 
 Community Development Department Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed 

the sign application and determined that the proposed signs will secure the purpose of the 
zoning ordinance and general plan.  

B. The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood.   
 Community Development Department Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed 

the signs and determined that the signs maintain the character and integrity of the Central 
Village.   

C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

 The signs are proposed on an existing commercial building in the Central Village.  No 
adverse environmental impacts were discovered during project review by either the 
Planning Department Staff or the Planning Commission. 

3.2

Packet Pg. 36

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ay
 3

, 2
01

8 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 3, 2018 3 
 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Edward Newman, Commissioner 

SECONDER: Linda Smith, Commissioner 

AYES: Smith, Newman, Welch, Westman, Storey 

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. 1350 49th Avenue #18-0050 APN: 034-068-14 
Design Permit for a 670-square foot addition to an existing single-family residence with a 
variance for an encroachment into the side yard setback located at 1350 49th Avenue 
within the R-1 (Single-Family) zoning district.   
This project is in the Coastal Zone and requires a Coastal Development Permit 
which is appealable to the California Coastal Commission after all possible 
appeals are exhausted through the City. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Rick Aberle 
Representative: Stephen Lang, Filed: 01.26.2018 

The project was presented by Assistant Planner Orbach. Commissioner Smith 
acknowledged receipt of a letter sent to the Planning Commission from Matt Arthur, Mr. 
Aberle’s neighbor, in support of the project. John Hofacre, spoke in support of the project 
as both neighbor and project architect. 

 
MOTION: Approve Design Permit, Coastal Development Permit, and variance for an 
encroachment into the side yard setback, with the following conditions and findings: 

  

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
1. The project approval consists of a 666-square foot addition that includes a new 226 square 

foot one-car garage, a 379-square foot second story living space above the garage, and a 
61-square foot addition to the first story to accommodate a hallway and the stairwell to the 
second story with a variance for the side yard setback at 1350 49th Avenue within the R-1 
(Single-Family Residential) zoning district.  The maximum Floor Area Ratio for the 3,216-
square foot property is 57% (1,833 square feet).  The total FAR of the project is 57% with a 
total of 1,833 square feet, compliant with the maximum FAR within the zone.  The proposed 
project is approved as indicated on the final plans reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Commission on May 3, 2018, except as modified through conditions imposed by the 
Planning Commission during the hearing. 
 

2. Prior to construction, a building permit shall be secured for any new construction or 
modifications to structures authorized by this permit. Final building plans shall be consistent 
with the plans approved by the Planning Commission.  All construction and site 
improvements shall be completed according to the approved plans 
 

3. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be printed in 
full on the cover sheet of the construction plans.  
 

4. At time of submittal for building permit review, Public Works Standard Detail SMP STRM 
shall be printed in full and incorporated as a sheet into the construction plans.  All 
construction shall be done in accordance with the Public Works Standard Detail BMP 
STRM.   
 

5. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically 
requested and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department.  Any 

3.2

Packet Pg. 37

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ay
 3

, 2
01

8 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 3, 2018 4 
 

significant changes to the size or exterior appearance of the structure shall require 
Planning Commission approval.   
 

6. Prior to issuance of building permit, a final landscape plan shall be submitted and approved 
by the Community Development Department.  Landscape plans shall reflect the Planning 
Commission approval and shall identify type, size, and location of species and details of 
irrigation systems.   
 

7. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit #18-0050 shall 
be paid in full. 
 

8. Prior to issuance of building permit, Affordable housing in-lieu fees shall be paid as 
required to assure compliance with the City of Capitola Affordable (Inclusionary) Housing 
Ordinance.   
 

9. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant must provide documentation of plan 
approval by the following entities: Santa Cruz County Sanitation Department, Soquel Creek 
Water District, and Central Fire Protection District.   
 

10. Prior to issuance of building permits, a drainage plan, grading, sediment and erosion 
control plan, shall be submitted to the City and approved by Public Works.  The plans shall 
be in compliance with the requirements specified in Capitola Municipal Code Chapter 13.16 
Storm Water Pollution Prevention and Protection. 
 

11. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall submit a stormwater management 
plan to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works which implements all applicable Post 
Construction Requirements (PCRs) and Public Works Standard Details, including all 
standards relating to low impact development (LID). 
 

12. Prior to any land disturbance, a pre-site inspection must be conducted by the grading 
official to verify compliance with the approved erosion and sediment control plan.  
 

13. Prior to any work in the City road right of way, an encroachment permit shall be acquired by 
the contractor performing the work.  No material or equipment storage may be placed in the 
road right-of-way. 
 

14. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise 
curfew, except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City.  
Construction noise shall be prohibited between the hours of nine p.m. and seven-thirty a.m. 
on weekdays. Construction noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the exception of 
Saturday work between nine a.m. and four p.m. or emergency work approved by the 
building official. §9.12.010B 
 

15. Prior to a project final, all cracked or broken driveway approaches, curb, gutter, or sidewalk 
shall be replaced per the Public Works Standard Details and to the satisfaction of the 
Public Works Department.  All replaced driveway approaches, curb, gutter or sidewalk shall 
meet current Accessibility Standards. 
    

16. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, compliance with all conditions of approval 
shall be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director.  Upon 
evidence of non-compliance with conditions of approval or applicable municipal code 
provisions, the applicant shall remedy the non-compliance to the satisfaction of the 
Community Development Director or shall file an application for a permit amendment for 

3.2

Packet Pg. 38

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ay
 3

, 2
01

8 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 3, 2018 5 
 

Planning Commission consideration. Failure to remedy a non-compliance in a timely 
manner may result in permit revocation. 
 

17. This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance.   The applicant shall have an 
approved building permit and construction underway before this date to prevent permit 
expiration. Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to expiration 
pursuant to Municipal Code section 17.81.160. 
 

18. The planning and infrastructure review and approval are transferable with the title to the 
underlying property so that an approved project may be conveyed or assigned by the 
applicant to others without losing the approval. The permit cannot be transferred off the site 
on which the approval was granted. 
 

19. Upon receipt of certificate of occupancy, garbage and recycling containers shall be placed 
out of public view on non-collection days. 
 

20. Prior to issuance of building permits, the building plans must show that the existing 
overhead utility lines will be underground to the nearest utility pole. 

 
FINDINGS 
A. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, secures the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have all reviewed the project. The proposed construction of a 666- 
square foot addition with a variance for the side yard setback and the conditions imposed, 
secures the purpose of the Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. The 
project would comply with all other development standards of the Single-Family Residential 
Zoning District.  
 

B. The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have all reviewed the application for the construction of a 666- 
square foot addition with a variance for the side yard setback.  The new residence will 
blend in with the adjacent structures while maintaining the character and integrity of the 
neighborhood.   
 

C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15332 of the California    
Environmental Quality Act and is subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the California 
Code of Regulations. 
Section 15332 of the CEQA Guidelines exempts project characterized as in-fill 
development meeting the following criteria: 
 
a) The project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and all applicable 

general plan policies as well as with applicable zoning designation and regulations. 
b) The proposed development occurs within city limits on a project site of no more than five 

acres substantially surrounded by urban uses. 
c) The project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare, or threatened species. 
d) Approval of the project would not result in any significant effects relating to traffic, noise, 

air quality, or water quality. 
e) The site can be adequately served by all required utilities and public services. 
 
The project involves a 666-square foot addition to an existing 1,167 square foot, one-story, 
single-family residence in the R-1 (Single Family) zoning district.  The project meets all of 

3.2

Packet Pg. 39

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ay
 3

, 2
01

8 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 3, 2018 6 
 

the criteria listed above and no adverse environmental impacts were discovered during 
review of the proposed project. 
 

D. Special circumstances applicable to the subject property, including size, shape, 
topography, location or surroundings, exist on the site and the strict application of 
this title is found to deprive subject property of privileges enjoyed by other 
properties in the vicinity and under identical zone classification; 
The special circumstance applicable to the property is that the subject property is the 
irregular shape of the lot that prohibits the owner from being able to provide a 10 foot by 20 
foot covered parking space within the required setbacks.   
 

E. The grant of a variance would not constitute a grant of a special privilege 
inconsistent with the limitation upon other properties in the vicinity and zone in 
which subject property is situated. 
The grant of a variance does not constitute a grant of a special privilege inconsistent with 
the limitation upon other properties in the vicinity and zone in which the property is situated.  
Most properties in the vicinity and zone in which the property is located are able to 
accommodate the required 10 foot by 20 foot covered parking space due to the fact that 
they are regularly shaped.  Granting the variance will allow the applicant to enjoy the same 
privilege as those properties. 
 

COASTAL FINDINGS 
D. Findings Required.  
1. A coastal permit shall be granted only upon adoption of specific written factual 

findings supporting the conclusion that the proposed development conforms to the 
certified Local Coastal Program, including, but not limited to: 
a. A statement of the individual and cumulative burdens imposed on public access and 

recreation opportunities based on applicable factors identified pursuant to subsection 
(D)(2) of this section. The type of affected public access and recreation opportunities 
shall be clearly described; 

b. An analysis based on applicable factors identified in subsection (D)(2) of this section of 
the necessity for requiring public access conditions to find the project consistent with the 
public access provisions of the Coastal Act; 

c. A description of the legitimate governmental interest furthered by any access 
conditioned required; 

d. An explanation of how imposition of an access dedication requirement alleviates the 
access burdens identified. 

 

• The proposed development conforms to the City’s certified Local Coastal Plan (LCP).  
The specific, factual findings, as per CMC Section 17.46.090(D) are as follows: 

 
2. Require Project-Specific Findings. In determining any requirement for public access, 

including the type of access and character of use, the city shall evaluate and 
document in written findings the factors identified in subsections (D)(2)(a) through 
(e), to the extent applicable. The findings shall explain the basis for the conclusions 
and decisions of the city and shall be supported by substantial evidence in the 
record. If an access dedication is required as a condition of approval, the findings 
shall explain how the adverse effects which have been identified will be alleviated or 
mitigated by the dedication. As used in this section, “cumulative effect” means the 
effect of the individual project in combination with the effects of past projects, other 
current projects, and probable future projects, including development allowed under 
applicable planning and zoning. 

3.2

Packet Pg. 40

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ay
 3

, 2
01

8 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 3, 2018 7 
 
a. Project Effects on Demand for Access and Recreation. Identification of existing and open 

public access and coastal recreation areas and facilities in the regional and local vicinity of 
the development. Analysis of the project’s effects upon existing public access and 
recreation opportunities. Analysis of the project’s cumulative effects upon the use and 
capacity of the identified access and recreation opportunities, including public tidelands and 
beach resources, and upon the capacity of major coastal roads from subdivision, 
intensification or cumulative buildout. Projection for the anticipated demand and need for 
increased coastal access and recreation opportunities for the public. Analysis of the 
contribution of the project’s cumulative effects to any such projected increase. Description 
of the physical characteristics of the site and its proximity to the sea, tideland viewing 
points, upland recreation areas, and trail linkages to tidelands or recreation areas. Analysis 
of the importance and potential of the site, because of its location or other characteristics, 
for creating, preserving or enhancing public access to tidelands or public recreation 
opportunities; 
 

• The proposed project is located at 1350 49th Avenue.  The home is not located in an 
area with coastal access.  The home will not have an effect on public trails or beach 
access. 

 
b. Shoreline Processes. Description of the existing shoreline conditions, including beach 

profile, accessibility and usability of the beach, history of erosion or accretion, character 
and sources of sand, wave and sand movement, presence of shoreline 
protective structures, location of the line of mean high tide during the season when the 
beach is at its narrowest (generally during the late winter) and the proximity of that line to 
existing structures, and any other factors which substantially characterize or affect the 
shoreline processes at the site. Identification of anticipated changes to shoreline processes 
at the site. Identification of anticipated changes to shoreline processes and beach profile 
unrelated to the proposed development. Description and analysis of any reasonably likely 
changes, attributable to the primary and cumulative effects of the project, to: wave and 
sand movement affecting beaches in the vicinity of the project; the profile of the beach; the 
character, extent, accessibility and usability of the beach; and any other factors which 
characterize or affect beaches in the vicinity. Analysis of the effect of any identified 
changes of the project, alone or in combination with other anticipated changes, will have 
upon the ability of the public to use public tidelands and shoreline recreation areas; 
 

• The proposed project is located along 49th Avenue.  No portion of the project is located 
along the shoreline or beach. 

 
c. Historic Public Use. Evidence of use of the site by members of the general public for a 

continuous five-year period (such use may be seasonal). Evidence of the type and 
character of use made by the public (vertical, lateral, blufftop, etc., and for passive and/or 
active recreational use, etc.). Identification of any agency (or person) who has maintained 
and/or improved the area subject to historic public use and the nature of the maintenance 
performed and improvements made. Identification of the record owner of the area 
historically used by the public and any attempts by the owner to prohibit public use of the 
area, including the success or failure of those attempts. Description of the potential for 
adverse impact on public use of the area from the proposed development (including but not 
limited to, creation of physical or psychological impediments to public use); 
 

• There is not a history of public use on the subject lot. 
 

3.2

Packet Pg. 41

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ay
 3

, 2
01

8 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 3, 2018 8 
 
d. Physical Obstructions. Description of any physical aspects of the development 

which block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the tidelands, public 
recreation areas, or other public coastal resources or to see the shoreline; 
 

• The proposed project is located on private property on 49th Avenue.  The project will not 
block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the tidelands, public recreation 
areas, or views to the shoreline. 

 
e. Other Adverse Impacts on Access and Recreation. Description of the development’s 

physical proximity and relationship to the shoreline and any public recreation area. Analysis 
of the extent of which buildings, walls, signs, streets or other aspects of the development, 
individually or cumulatively, are likely to diminish the public’s use of tidelands or lands 
committed to public recreation. Description of any alteration of the aesthetic, visual or 
recreational value of public use areas, and of any diminution of the quality or amount of 
recreational use of public lands which may be attributable to the individual or cumulative 
effects of the development. 
 

• The proposed project is located on private property that will not impact access and 
recreation.  The project does not diminish the public’s use of tidelands or lands 
committed to public recreation nor alter the aesthetic, visual, or recreational value of 
public use areas. 

 
3. Required Findings for Public Access Exceptions. Any determination that one of the 

exceptions of subsection (F)(2) applies to a development shall be supported by 
written findings of fact, analysis and conclusions which address all of the following: 
a. The type of access potentially applicable to the site involved (vertical, lateral, bluff top, 

etc.) and its location in relation to the fragile coastal resource to be protected, the 
agricultural use, the public safety concern, or the military facility which is the basis for the 
exception, as applicable; 

b. Unavailability of any mitigating measures to manage the type, character, intensity, hours, 
season or location of such use so that agricultural resources, fragile coastal resources, 
public safety, or military security, as applicable, are protected; 

c. Ability of the public, through another reasonable means, to reach the same area of 
public tidelands as would be made accessible by an accessway on the subject land. 

 

• The project is not requesting a Public Access Exception, therefore these findings do 
not apply. 

 
4. Findings for Management Plan Conditions. Written findings in support of a condition 

requiring a management plan for regulating the time and manner or character of 
public access use must address the following factors, as applicable: 
a. Identification and protection of specific habitat values including the reasons supporting 

the conclusions that such values must be protected by limiting the hours, seasons, or 
character of public use; 

 

• The project is located in a residential area without sensitive habitat areas. 
 
b. Topographic constraints of the development site; 
 

• The project is located on a flat lot. 
 
c. Recreational needs of the public; 
 

3.2

Packet Pg. 42

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ay
 3

, 2
01

8 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 3, 2018 9 
 

• The project does not impact the recreational needs of the public. 
 
d. Rights of privacy of the landowner which could not be mitigated by setting the project 

back from the access way or otherwise conditioning the development; 
e. The requirements of the possible accepting agency, if an offer of dedication is the 

mechanism for securing public access; 
f. Feasibility of adequate setbacks, fencing, landscaping, and other methods as part of a 

management plan to regulate public use. 
 

5. Project complies with public access requirements, including submittal of appropriate 
legal documents to ensure the right of public access whenever, and as, required by 
the certified land use plan and Section 17.46.010 (coastal access requirements); 
 

• No legal documents to ensure public access rights are required for the proposed project. 
 

6. Project complies with visitor-serving and recreational use policies; 
 
SEC. 30222 
The use of private lands suitable for visitor-serving commercial recreational facilities 
designed to enhance public opportunities for coastal recreation shall have priority 
over private residential, general industrial, or general commercial development, but 
not over agriculture or coastal-dependent industry. 
 

• The project involves a single-family home on a residential lot of record. 
 
SEC. 30223 
Upland areas necessary to support coastal recreational uses shall be reserved for 
such uses, where feasible. 
 

• The project involves a single-family home on a residential lot of record. 
 
c) Visitor-serving facilities that cannot be feasibly located in existing developed 
areas shall be located in existing isolated developments or at selected points of 
attraction for visitors. 
 

• The project involves a single-family home on a residential lot of record. 
 

7. Project complies with applicable standards and requirements for provision of public 
and private parking, pedestrian access, alternate means of transportation and/or 
traffic improvements; 
 

• The project involves the construction of a single-family home. The project complies with 
applicable standards and requirements for provision for parking, pedestrian access, 
alternate means of transportation, and/or traffic improvements. 

 
8. Review of project design, site plan, signing, lighting, landscaping, etc., by the city’s 

architectural and site review committee, and compliance with adopted design 
guidelines and standards, and review committee recommendations; 
 

• The project complies with the design guidelines and standards established by the 
Municipal Code. 

 

3.2

Packet Pg. 43

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ay
 3

, 2
01

8 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 3, 2018 10 
 
9. Project complies with LCP policies regarding protection of public landmarks, 

protection or provision of public views; and shall not block or detract from public 
views to and along Capitola’s shoreline; 
 

• The project will not negatively impact public landmarks and/or public views. The project 
will not block or detract from public views to and along Capitola’s shoreline. 

 
10. Demonstrated availability and adequacy of water and sewer services; 

 

• The project is located on a legal lot of record with available water and sewer services. 
 

11. Provisions of minimum water flow rates and fire response times; 
 

• The project is located a short distance from the Capitola fire department. Water is 
available at the location. 

 
12. Project complies with water and energy conservation standards; 

 

• The project is for an addition to a single-family home. The GHG emissions for the project 
are projected at less than significant impact. All water fixtures must comply with the low-
flow standards of the Soquel Creek Water District. 

 
13. Provision of park dedication, school impact, and other fees as may be required; 

 

• The project will be required to pay appropriate fees prior to building permit issuance. 
 

14. Project complies with coastal housing policies, and applicable ordinances including 
condominium conversion and mobile home ordinances; 
 

• The project does not involve a condo conversion or mobile homes. 
 

15. Project complies with natural resource, habitat, and archaeological protection 
policies; 
 

• Conditions of approval have been included to ensure compliance with established 
policies. 

 
16. Project complies with Monarch butterfly habitat protection policies; 

 

• The project is outside of any identified sensitive habitats, specifically areas where 
Monarch Butterflies have been encountered, identified and documented. 

 
17. Project provides drainage and erosion and control measures to protect marine, 

stream, and wetland water quality from urban runoff and erosion; 
 

• Conditions of approval have been included to ensure compliance with applicable erosion 
control measures. 

 
18. Geologic/engineering reports have been prepared by qualified professional for 

projects in seismic areas, geologically unstable areas, or coastal bluffs, and project 
complies with hazard protection policies including provision of appropriate setbacks 
and mitigation measures; 

3.2

Packet Pg. 44

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ay
 3

, 2
01

8 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 3, 2018 11 
 

 

• Geologic/engineering reports have been prepared by qualified professionals for this 
project. Conditions of approval have been included to ensure the project applicant shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the most recent version of the California 
Building Standards Code. 

 
19. All other geological, flood and fire hazards are accounted for and mitigated in the 

project design; 
 

• Conditions of approval have been included to ensure the project complies with 
geological, flood, and fire hazards and are accounted for and will be mitigated in the 
project design. 

 
20. Project complies with shoreline structure policies; 

 

• The proposed project is not located along a shoreline. 
 

21. The uses proposed are consistent with the permitted or conditional uses of the 
zoning district in which the project is located; 
 

• This use is an allowed use consistent with the Single-Family Residential zoning district. 
 

22. Conformance to requirements of all other city ordinances, zoning requirements, and 
project review procedures; and 
 

• The project conforms to the requirements of all city ordinances, zoning requirements, 
and project development review and development procedures. 

 
23. Project complies with the Capitola parking permit program as follows: 

a. The village area preferential parking program areas and conditions as established in 
Resolution No. 2596 and no permit parking of any kind shall be allowed on Capitola 
Avenue. 

b. The neighborhood preferential parking program areas are as established in Resolution 
Numbers 2433 and 2510. 

c. The village area preferential parking program shall be limited to three hundred fifty 
permits. 

d. Neighborhood permit areas are only in force when the shuttle bus is operating except 
that: 
i. The Fanmar area (Resolution No. 2436) program may operate year-round, twenty-

four hours a day on weekends, 
ii. The Burlingame, Cliff Avenue/Grand Avenue area (Resolution No. 2435) have year-

round, twenty-four hour per day “no public parking.” 
e. Except as specifically allowed under the village parking program, no preferential 

residential parking may be allowed in the Cliff Drive parking areas. 
f. Six Depot Hill twenty-four minute “Vista” parking spaces (Resolution No. 2510) shall be 

provided as corrected in Exhibit A attached to the ordinance codified in this section and 
found on file in the office of the city clerk. 

g. A limit of fifty permits for the Pacific Cove parking lot may be issued to village permit 
holders and transient occupancy permit holders. 

h. No additional development in the village that intensifies use and requires additional 
parking shall be permitted. Changes in use that do not result in additional parking 
demand can be allowed and exceptions for onsite parking as allowed in the 
land use plan can be made. 

3.2

Packet Pg. 45

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ay
 3

, 2
01

8 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 3, 2018 12 
 

 

• The project site is not located within the area of the Capitola parking permit program. 

 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Edward Newman, Commissioner 

SECONDER: Susan Westman, Commissioner 

AYES: Smith, Newman, Welch, Westman, Storey 

 
 
B. 318 Riverview Avenue #18-0045 APN: 035-172-18 

Design Permit for demolition of an existing two-story single-family residence and 
construction of a new three-story single-family residence, which includes a 
variance request for parking standards and open space located within the C-V 
(Central Village) zoning district.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone and requires a Coastal Development Permit 
which is appealable to the California Coastal Commission after all possible 
appeals are exhausted through the City. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: JDT Capital LLC 
Representative: Derek Van Alstine, Filed: 01.24.2018 
 

Commissioner Newman recused himself due to owning property within 500 feet, and 
Chairperson Storey also recused himself to avoid potential conflict due to proximity of his 
workplace. The meeting was turned over to Vice Chair Westman.  
 
Assistant Planner Orbach reviewed the project.   
 
Commissioner Smith requested clarification of the previous variances allowed on 
Riverview Avenue that were described in the staff report parking analysis as “to better 
serve the zoning ordinance.” Assistant Planner Orbach confirmed that the full findings 
from those variances read “The variance to parking will better serve the intent of the 
zoning ordinance and residential development guidelines than will the literal enforcement 
of the requirements of the ordinance.” 
 
Project representative Derek Van Alstine had several comments regarding the project 
timeline and the parking on Riverview, in response to some of the concerns contained in 
the letters sent by the neighbors. Mr. Van Alstine urged the Commission’s approval with 
flood certification, as requested. 
 
Lars Sandberg, stated he lives across the street from the project and stated his concerns 
regarding parking, density, and the character of the buildings. 
 
Nelson and Leslie Vineyard, neighbors at 320 Riverview Avenue, reviewed the letter that 
they sent to the Planning Commissioners late this afternoon that outlined their concerns 
and their issue with the impact of construction to Mr. Vineyard’s health diagnosis. 
 
Additional issues discussed included concerns about demolition, variances, parking, and 
landscaping. Mr. Van Alstine responded to Commissioner Westman's question regarding 
the neighbor’s request for a wall modification, scheduling, and noticing during 

3.2

Packet Pg. 46

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ay
 3

, 2
01

8 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 3, 2018 13 
 

construction. Commissioner Westman requested that construction hours be restricted to 
end by 6 p.m. due to the proximity of the neighbors. 
 
Commissioner Smith requested that the minutes reflect the representative’s agreement 
to working with the neighbors on the noise. 

 
MOTION: Approve Design Permit, Coastal Development Permit, and variances for 
parking space dimensions and open space and a maximum floor area of 2,000 
square feet, and deny the variance request for the required number of parking 
spaces, with final design approval by staff, and the following amended conditions and 
findings: 

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
1. The project approval consists of the demolition of an existing two-story single-family 

residence and construction of a new 2,161 2,000 square foot three-story single-family 

residence with a variance for the required parking, parking dimensions, and required 

open space at 318 Riverview Avenue within the C-V (Central Village) zoning district.  

The Planning Commission denied the variance request for the third parking space.  Prior 

to building permit submittal, the applicant must provide revised plans to the Community 

Development department that comply with the maximum floor area ratio of 2,000 square 

feet, the maximum allowable for residential structures with two parking spaces.  The 

revised plans are subject to approval by the Community Development Director.  The 

proposed project is approved as indicated on the final plans reviewed and approved by 

the Planning Commission on May 3, 2018, except as modified through conditions 

imposed by the Planning Commission during the hearing. 

 
2. The parking spaces within the garage shall be utilized for parking two vehicles onsite. 

 
3. Construction shall comply with the noise regulations of Chapter 9.12 with the additional 

requirement that construction is prohibited after six p.m. Monday through Friday and 

after four p.m. on Saturdays. 

 

4. Adjacent neighbors shall be provided with regular updates regarding construction 

schedules and activities and notified at least twenty-four hours in advance of any 

construction activities that will result in road closures or other significant neighborhood 

impacts such as excessive noise or dust. 

 

5. At the time of building permit application for construction within the floodplain or 

floodway, the applicant shall provide a “No Rise Study”, performed by a licensed 

engineer, in which verification of the structure’s impact on the floodplain or floodway is 

provided. 

 
6. Prior to construction, a building permit shall be secured for any new construction or 

modifications to structures authorized by this permit. Final building plans shall be 
consistent with the plans approved by the Planning Commission.  All construction and 
site improvements shall be completed according to the approved plans 

 
7. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be 

printed in full on the cover sheet of the construction plans.  
 

3.2

Packet Pg. 47

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ay
 3

, 2
01

8 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 3, 2018 14 
 

8. At time of submittal for building permit review, Public Works Standard Detail SMP STRM 
shall be printed in full and incorporated as a sheet into the construction plans.  All 
construction shall be done in accordance with the Public Works Standard Detail BMP 
STRM.   

 
9. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically 

requested and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department.  Any 
significant changes to the size or exterior appearance of the structure shall require 
Planning Commission approval.   

 
10. Prior to issuance of building permit, a final landscape plan shall be submitted and 

approved by the Community Development Department.  Landscape plans shall reflect 
the Planning Commission approval and shall identify type, size, and location of species 
and details of irrigation systems.   

 
11. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit #18-0045 

shall be paid in full. 
 

12. Prior to issuance of building permit, Affordable housing in-lieu fees shall be paid as 
required to assure compliance with the City of Capitola Affordable (Inclusionary) Housing 
Ordinance.   
 

13. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant must provide documentation of plan 
approval by the following entities: Santa Cruz County Sanitation Department, Soquel 
Creek Water District, and Central Fire Protection District.   
 

14. Prior to issuance of building permits, a drainage plan, grading, sediment and erosion 
control plan, shall be submitted to the City and approved by Public Works.  The plans 
shall be in compliance with the requirements specified in Capitola Municipal Code 
Chapter 13.16 Storm Water Pollution Prevention and Protection. 
 

15. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall submit a stormwater 
management plan to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works which implements 
all applicable Post Construction Requirements (PCRs) and Public Works Standard 
Details, including all standards relating to low impact development (LID). 

 
16. Prior to any land disturbance, a pre-site inspection must be conducted by the grading 

official to verify compliance with the approved erosion and sediment control plan.  
 

17. Prior to any work in the City road right of way, an encroachment permit shall be acquired 
by the contractor performing the work.  No material or equipment storage may be placed 
in the road right-of-way. 
 

18. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise 
curfew, except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City.  
Construction noise shall be prohibited between the hours of nine p.m. and seven-thirty 
a.m. on weekdays. Construction noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the 
exception of Saturday work between nine a.m. and four p.m. or emergency work 
approved by the building official. §9.12.010B 
 

19. Prior to a project final, all cracked or broken driveway approaches, curb, gutter, or 
sidewalk shall be replaced per the Public Works Standard Details and to the satisfaction 

3.2

Packet Pg. 48

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ay
 3

, 2
01

8 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 3, 2018 15 
 

of the Public Works Department.  All replaced driveway approaches, curb, gutter or 
sidewalk shall meet current Accessibility Standards. 

    
20. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, compliance with all conditions of 

approval shall be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director.  Upon evidence of non-compliance with conditions of approval or applicable 
municipal code provisions, the applicant shall remedy the non-compliance to the 
satisfaction of the Community Development Director or shall file an application for a 
permit amendment for Planning Commission consideration. Failure to remedy a non-
compliance in a timely manner may result in permit revocation. 
 

21. This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance.   The applicant shall have 
an approved building permit and construction underway before this date to prevent 
permit expiration.   Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to 
expiration pursuant to Municipal Code section 17.81.160. 
 

22. The planning and infrastructure review and approval are transferable with the title to the 
underlying property so that an approved project may be conveyed or assigned by the 
applicant to others without losing the approval. The permit cannot be transferred off the 
site on which the approval was granted. 
 

23. Upon receipt of certificate of occupancy, garbage and recycling containers shall be 
placed out of public view on non-collection days. 

 
24. Prior to issuance of building permits, the building plans must show that the existing 

overhead utility lines will be underground to the nearest utility pole. 

 
FINDINGS 
A. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, secures the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have all reviewed the project. The proposed construction of a new 
2,161 2,000 square foot three-story single-family residence with a variance for required 
parking, parking dimensions, and required open space, with the conditions imposed, 
secures the purpose of the Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
The project would comply with all other development standards of the Central Village 
Zoning District.  
 

B. The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have all reviewed the application for the construction of a new 
2,161 2,000 square foot three-story single-family residence with a variance for required 
parking, parking dimensions, and required open space.  The new residence will blend in 
seamlessly with the adjacent structures while maintaining the character and integrity of 
the Riverview Avenue neighborhood.   

 
C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15303(a) of the California    

Environmental Quality Act and is subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 
Section 15303(a) of the CEQA Guidelines exempts one single-family residence, or a 
second dwelling unit in a residential zone.  The project involves a new 2,161 2,000 
square foot three-story single-family residence in the Riverview Avenue Residential 

3.2

Packet Pg. 49

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ay
 3

, 2
01

8 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 3, 2018 16 
 

Overlay District in the C-V (Central Village) zoning district.  Staff has not identified any 
possible environmental impacts associated with the project. 
 

D. Special circumstances applicable to the subject property, including size, shape, 
topography, location or surroundings, exist on the site and the strict application 
of this title is found to deprive subject property of privileges enjoyed by other 
properties in the vicinity and under identical zone classification; 
The special circumstance applicable to the property is that the subject property is a small 
lot.   
 

E. The grant of a variance would not constitute a grant of a special privilege 

inconsistent with the limitation upon other properties in the vicinity and zone in 

which subject property is situated. 

The grant of a variance does not constitute a grant of a special privilege inconsistent 
with the limitation upon other properties in the vicinity and zone in which the property is 
situated.  Multiple properties in the vicinity and zone in which the property is located 
have been granted variances to the parking dimensions and open space requirements.  
Granting the variance will allow the applicant to enjoy the same privilege as those 
properties. 
 
   

COASTAL FINDINGS 
D. Findings Required.  
1. A coastal permit shall be granted only upon adoption of specific written factual 

findings supporting the conclusion that the proposed development conforms to the 
certified Local Coastal Program, including, but not limited to: 

a. A statement of the individual and cumulative burdens imposed on public access and 
recreation opportunities based on applicable factors identified pursuant to subsection 
(D)(2) of this section. The type of affected public access and recreation opportunities 
shall be clearly described; 

b. An analysis based on applicable factors identified in subsection (D)(2) of this section 
of the necessity for requiring public access conditions to find the project consistent 
with the public access provisions of the Coastal Act; 

c. A description of the legitimate governmental interest furthered by any access 
conditioned required; 

d. An explanation of how imposition of an access dedication requirement alleviates the 
access burdens identified. 

 

• The proposed development conforms to the City’s certified Local Coastal Plan 
(LCP).  The specific, factual findings, as per CMC Section 17.46.090(D) are as 
follows: 

 
2. Require Project-Specific Findings. In determining any requirement for public access, 

including the type of access and character of use, the city shall evaluate and 
document in written findings the factors identified in subsections (D)(2)(a) through 
(e), to the extent applicable. The findings shall explain the basis for the conclusions 
and decisions of the city and shall be supported by substantial evidence in the 
record. If an access dedication is required as a condition of approval, the findings 
shall explain how the adverse effects which have been identified will be alleviated or 
mitigated by the dedication. As used in this section, “cumulative effect” means the 
effect of the individual project in combination with the effects of past projects, other 
current projects, and probable future projects, including development allowed under 
applicable planning and zoning. 

3.2

Packet Pg. 50

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ay
 3

, 2
01

8 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 3, 2018 17 
 

a. Project Effects on Demand for Access and Recreation. Identification of existing and 
open public access and coastal recreation areas and facilities in the regional and 
local vicinity of the development. Analysis of the project’s effects upon existing public 
access and recreation opportunities. Analysis of the project’s cumulative effects upon 
the use and capacity of the identified access and recreation opportunities, including 
public tidelands and beach resources, and upon the capacity of major coastal roads 
from subdivision, intensification or cumulative buildout. Projection for the anticipated 
demand and need for increased coastal access and recreation opportunities for the 
public. Analysis of the contribution of the project’s cumulative effects to any such 
projected increase. Description of the physical characteristics of the site and its 
proximity to the sea, tideland viewing points, upland recreation areas, and trail 
linkages to tidelands or recreation areas. Analysis of the importance and potential of 
the site, because of its location or other characteristics, for creating, preserving or 
enhancing public access to tidelands or public recreation opportunities; 

 

• The proposed project is located at 318 Riverview Avenue.  The home is not 
located in an area with coastal access.  The home will not have an effect on 
public trails or beach access. 

 
b. Shoreline Processes. Description of the existing shoreline conditions, including 

beach profile, accessibility and usability of the beach, history of erosion or accretion, 
character and sources of sand, wave and sand movement, presence of shoreline 
protective structures, location of the line of mean high tide during the season when 
the beach is at its narrowest (generally during the late winter) and the proximity of 
that line to existing structures, and any other factors which substantially characterize 
or affect the shoreline processes at the site. Identification of anticipated changes to 
shoreline processes at the site. Identification of anticipated changes to shoreline 
processes and beach profile unrelated to the proposed development. Description 
and analysis of any reasonably likely changes, attributable to the primary and 
cumulative effects of the project, to: wave and sand movement affecting beaches in 
the vicinity of the project; the profile of the beach; the character, extent, accessibility 
and usability of the beach; and any other factors which characterize or affect 
beaches in the vicinity. Analysis of the effect of any identified changes of the project, 
alone or in combination with other anticipated changes, will have upon the ability of 
the public to use public tidelands and shoreline recreation areas; 

 

• The proposed project is located along Riverview Avenue.  No portion of the 
project is located along the shoreline or beach. 

 
c. Historic Public Use. Evidence of use of the site by members of the general public for 

a continuous five-year period (such use may be seasonal). Evidence of the type and 
character of use made by the public (vertical, lateral, blufftop, etc., and for passive 
and/or active recreational use, etc.). Identification of any agency (or person) who has 
maintained and/or improved the area subject to historic public use and the nature of 
the maintenance performed and improvements made. Identification of the record 
owner of the area historically used by the public and any attempts by the owner to 
prohibit public use of the area, including the success or failure of those attempts. 
Description of the potential for adverse impact on public use of the area from the 
proposed development (including but not limited to, creation of physical or 
psychological impediments to public use); 

 

• There is not a history of public use on the subject lot. 
 

3.2

Packet Pg. 51

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ay
 3

, 2
01

8 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 3, 2018 18 
 

d. Physical Obstructions. Description of any physical aspects of the development 
which block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the tidelands, public 
recreation areas, or other public coastal resources or to see the shoreline; 

 

• The proposed project is located on private property on Riverview Avenue.  The 
project will not block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the 
tidelands, public recreation areas, or views to the shoreline. 

 
e. Other Adverse Impacts on Access and Recreation. Description of the development’s 

physical proximity and relationship to the shoreline and any public recreation area. 
Analysis of the extent of which buildings, walls, signs, streets or other aspects of the 
development, individually or cumulatively, are likely to diminish the public’s use of 
tidelands or lands committed to public recreation. Description of any alteration of the 
aesthetic, visual or recreational value of public use areas, and of any diminution of 
the quality or amount of recreational use of public lands which may be attributable to 
the individual or cumulative effects of the development. 

 

• The proposed project is located on private property that will not impact access 
and recreation.  The project does not diminish the public’s use of tidelands or 
lands committed to public recreation nor alter the aesthetic, visual, or recreational 
value of public use areas. 

 
3. Required Findings for Public Access Exceptions. Any determination that one of the 

exceptions of subsection (F)(2) applies to a development shall be supported by 
written findings of fact, analysis and conclusions which address all of the following: 

a. The type of access potentially applicable to the site involved (vertical, 
lateral, bluff top, etc.) and its location in relation to the fragile coastal resource to be 
protected, the agricultural use, the public safety concern, or the military facility which 
is the basis for the exception, as applicable; 

b. Unavailability of any mitigating measures to manage the type, character, intensity, 
hours, season or location of such use so that agricultural resources, fragile coastal 
resources, public safety, or military security, as applicable, are protected; 

c. Ability of the public, through another reasonable means, to reach the same area of 
public tidelands as would be made accessible by an accessway on the subject land. 

 

• The project is not requesting a Public Access Exception, therefore these findings 
do not apply. 

 
4. Findings for Management Plan Conditions. Written findings in support of a condition 

requiring a management plan for regulating the time and manner or character of 
public access use must address the following factors, as applicable: 

a. Identification and protection of specific habitat values including the reasons 
supporting the conclusions that such values must be protected by limiting the hours, 
seasons, or character of public use; 

 

• The project is located in a residential area without sensitive habitat areas. 
 

b. Topographic constraints of the development site; 
 

• The project is located on a flat lot. 
 

c. Recreational needs of the public; 
 

3.2

Packet Pg. 52

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ay
 3

, 2
01

8 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 3, 2018 19 
 

• The project does not impact the recreational needs of the public. 
 

d. Rights of privacy of the landowner which could not be mitigated by setting the project 
back from the access way or otherwise conditioning the development; 

e. The requirements of the possible accepting agency, if an offer of dedication is the 
mechanism for securing public access; 

f. Feasibility of adequate setbacks, fencing, landscaping, and other methods as part of 
a management plan to regulate public use. 

 
5. Project complies with public access requirements, including submittal of appropriate 

legal documents to ensure the right of public access whenever, and as, required by 
the certified land use plan and Section 17.46.010 (coastal access requirements); 

 

• No legal documents to ensure public access rights are required for the proposed project. 
 

6. Project complies with visitor-serving and recreational use policies; 
 

SEC. 30222 
The use of private lands suitable for visitor-serving commercial recreational facilities 
designed to enhance public opportunities for coastal recreation shall have priority 
over private residential, general industrial, or general commercial development, but 
not over agriculture or coastal-dependent industry. 

 

• The project involves a single-family home on a residential lot of record. 
 

SEC. 30223 
Upland areas necessary to support coastal recreational uses shall be reserved for 
such uses, where feasible. 

 

• The project involves a single-family home on a residential lot of record. 
 

c) Visitor-serving facilities that cannot be feasibly located in existing developed 
areas shall be located in existing isolated developments or at selected points of 
attraction for visitors. 

 

• The project involves a single-family home on a residential lot of record. 
 

7. Project complies with applicable standards and requirements for provision of public 
and private parking, pedestrian access, alternate means of transportation and/or 
traffic improvements; 

 

• The project involves the construction of a single-family home. The project complies with 
applicable standards and requirements for provision for parking, pedestrian access, 
alternate means of transportation, and/or traffic improvements. 

 
8. Review of project design, site plan, signing, lighting, landscaping, etc., by the city’s 

architectural and site review committee, and compliance with adopted design 
guidelines and standards, and review committee recommendations; 

 

• The project complies with the design guidelines and standards established by the 
Municipal Code. 

 

3.2

Packet Pg. 53

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ay
 3

, 2
01

8 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 3, 2018 20 
 
9. Project complies with LCP policies regarding protection of public landmarks, 

protection or provision of public views; and shall not block or detract from public 
views to and along Capitola’s shoreline; 

 

• The project will not negatively impact public landmarks and/or public views. The project 
will not block or detract from public views to and along Capitola’s shoreline. 

 
10. Demonstrated availability and adequacy of water and sewer services; 

 

• The project is located on a legal lot of record with available water and sewer services. 
 

11. Provisions of minimum water flow rates and fire response times; 
 

• The project is located several blocks from the Capitola fire department. Water is 
available at the location. 

 
12. Project complies with water and energy conservation standards; 

 

• The project is for a single-family home. The GHG emissions for the project are projected 
at less than significant impact. All water fixtures must comply with the low-flow standards 
of the Soquel Creek Water District. 

 
13. Provision of park dedication, school impact, and other fees as may be required; 

 

• The project will be required to pay appropriate fees prior to building permit issuance. 
 

14. Project complies with coastal housing policies, and applicable ordinances including 
condominium conversion and mobile home ordinances; 

 

• The project does not involve a condo conversion or mobile homes. 
 

15. Project complies with natural resource, habitat, and archaeological protection 
policies; 

 

• Conditions of approval have been included to ensure compliance with established 
policies. 

 
16. Project complies with Monarch butterfly habitat protection policies; 

 

• The project is outside of any identified sensitive habitats, specifically areas where 
Monarch Butterflies have been encountered, identified and documented. 

 
17. Project provides drainage and erosion and control measures to protect marine, 

stream, and wetland water quality from urban runoff and erosion; 
 

• Conditions of approval have been included to ensure compliance with applicable erosion 
control measures. 

 
18. Geologic/engineering reports have been prepared by qualified professional for 

projects in seismic areas, geologically unstable areas, or coastal bluffs, and project 
complies with hazard protection policies including provision of appropriate setbacks 
and mitigation measures; 

3.2

Packet Pg. 54

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ay
 3

, 2
01

8 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 3, 2018 21 
 

 

• Geologic/engineering reports have been prepared by qualified professionals for this 
project. Conditions of approval have been included to ensure the project applicant shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the most recent version of the California 
Building Standards Code. 

 
19. All other geological, flood and fire hazards are accounted for and mitigated in the 

project design; 
 

• Conditions of approval have been included to ensure the project complies with 
geological, flood, and fire hazards and are accounted for and will be mitigated in the 
project design. 

 
20. Project complies with shoreline structure policies; 

 

• The proposed project is not located along a shoreline. 
 

21. The uses proposed are consistent with the permitted or conditional uses of the 
zoning district in which the project is located; 

 

• This use is an allowed use consistent with the Central Village zoning district. 
 

22. Conformance to requirements of all other city ordinances, zoning requirements, and 
project review procedures; and 

 

• The project conforms to the requirements of all city ordinances, zoning requirements, 
and project development review and development procedures. 

 
23. Project complies with the Capitola parking permit program as follows: 

a. The village area preferential parking program areas and conditions as established in 
Resolution No. 2596 and no permit parking of any kind shall be allowed on Capitola 
Avenue. 

b. The neighborhood preferential parking program areas are as established in Resolution 
Numbers 2433 and 2510. 

c. The village area preferential parking program shall be limited to three hundred fifty 
permits. 

d. Neighborhood permit areas are only in force when the shuttle bus is operating except 
that: 
i. The Fanmar area (Resolution No. 2436) program may operate year-round, twenty-

four hours a day on weekends, 
ii. The Burlingame, Cliff Avenue/Grand Avenue area (Resolution No. 2435) have year-

round, twenty-four hour per day “no public parking.” 
e. Except as specifically allowed under the village parking program, no preferential 

residential parking may be allowed in the Cliff Drive parking areas. 
f. Six Depot Hill twenty-four minute “Vista” parking spaces (Resolution No. 2510) shall be 

provided as corrected in Exhibit A attached to the ordinance codified in this section and 
found on file in the office of the city clerk. 

g. A limit of fifty permits for the Pacific Cove parking lot may be issued to village permit 
holders and transient occupancy permit holders. 

h. No additional development in the village that intensifies use and requires additional 
parking shall be permitted. Changes in use that do not result in additional parking 
demand can be allowed and exceptions for onsite parking as allowed in the 
land use plan can be made. 

3.2

Packet Pg. 55

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ay
 3

, 2
01

8 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 3, 2018 22 
 

• The project site is not located within the area of the Capitola parking permit 
program. 

 

RESULT: APPROVED AS AMENDED [3 TO 0] 

MOVER: TJ Welch, Commissioner 

SECONDER: Linda Smith, Commissioner 

AYES: Smith, Welch, Westman 

RECUSED: Newman, Storey 

 
 
C. 2205 Wharf Road #18-0108 APN: 034-141-34 

Minor land division to create two lots of record and design permit for a new single-family 
residence for the property located at 2205 Wharf Road in the RM-LM (Residential Multi-
Family – Low-Medium Density) Zoning District.   
This project is not in the Coastal Zone and does not require a Coastal Development Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Christopher Wright 
Representative: Dennis Norton, filed: 3/7/2018 
 

Director Herlihy presented the project noting the additional CEQA exemption, and 
reminding the Commissioners that this was a project that was previously approved last 
year in a different form, prior to being withdrawn. The new application’s Tentative Map 
was redesigned so that the two lots will now be oriented towards Wharf Road, and is 
now subject to the newly-adopted standards for subdivisions that were recently 
approved by the City Council, in addition to the new zoning code. 

 
Dennis Norton, project representative, confirmed that this project conforms to every 
applicable zoning and land use law. 
 
Christopher Wright, property owner, responded to questions regarding the project and 
confirmed that there is an easement for driveway access for Lot B to use the parking 
even though it is on Lot A. 
 
Miles Dolinger, attorney for Mr. Wright, commented on the exclusive parking easement 
for parcel B. 
 
Peter Taylor, resident of 2225 Wharf Road, stated he continues to be concerned about 
parking, safety, and so many people sharing a one-lane driveway.  
 
Mr. Taylor spoke about his concerns that Wharf Road is a dangerous road, and noted 
that while he appreciates the positive intent behind Mr. Wright putting in a no right turn 
sign, there were other options including putting in a two-lane driveway for improved 
visibility. 
 
Mr. Taylor wants it on the record that he has done everything he could to stop this and 
make it safe. He is not against Mr. Wright developing this property but there were other 
choices. 
 
In response to Mr. Taylor's comment regarding other options for relocation of the 
driveway, Mr. Dolinger explained that existing gas and sewer lines, in addition to grading 
issues, prevented the use of the right side of the driveway. 

3.2

Packet Pg. 56

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ay
 3

, 2
01

8 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 3, 2018 23 
 

 

MOTION:  Approve Minor Land Division, and Design Permit, as amended with the additional 
CEQA Exemption, and the following conditions and findings: 
 
CEQA 
Section 15315 of the CEQA Guidelines exempts minor land divisions in urbanized areas zoned 
for residential, commercial, or industrial use into four or fewer parcels when the division is in 
conformance with the General Plan and Zoning.  No adverse environmental impacts were 
discovered during review of the proposed project.  

 
CEQA exemption §15183.  Projects Consistent with a Community Plan, General Plan, or 
Zoning.  The project qualifies for an exemption under CEQA §15183 because it is consistent 
with the development standards of the City’s 2014 General Plan. There is nothing peculiar about 
the parcel or the project which may result in a new or more severe environmental impact that 
was not anticipated under the General Plan EIR.  The project would also not result in any new 
or more severe cumulative impacts, nor is there any new substantial information which was not 
known at the time the General Plan EIR was certified.   
 
CONDITIONS 

1. The project approval consists of design permit for a new single-family home and a minor 
land division at 2205 Wharf Road.  The new single-family home in the RM-L zone is 
reviewed for compliance with the R-1 (single family) zoning district development 
standards.  The maximum Floor Area Ratio for the 6,567 square-foot property is 48% 
(3,152 square feet).  The total FAR of the project is 2,544 square-feet, compliant with the 
maximum FAR within the zone. The proposed project is approved as indicated on the 
final plans reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on May 3, 2018, except 
as modified through conditions imposed by the Planning Commission during the hearing. 
 

2. The project consists of the subdivision of a 19,854 square foot lot into two lots.  The 
minor land division will create two lots with shared driveway access.  The tentative map 
identifies the front lot as Parcel B and the rear lot as Parcel A.  Parcel A will be 13,299 
square feet and Parcel B 6,554 square feet.   

 
3. Prior to recordation of the final parcel map, a maintenance agreement and access 

easement for the shared driveway shall be recorded and referenced on the parcel map.  
The access easement must be reviewed and approved by the City attorney prior to 
recordation. 

 
4. Available and necessary utilities, including CATV hookup facilities, with connections to 

each lot within the subdivision, shall be constructed in accordance with the utility’s 
requirements. All utilities for the new single-family home on Parcel B shall be 
underground to the nearest utility pole. 
 

5. Prior to construction, a building permit shall be secured for any new construction or 
modifications to structures authorized by this permit. Final building plans shall be 
consistent with the plans approved by the Planning Commission.  All construction and 
site improvements shall be completed according to the approved plans.  
 

6. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be 
printed in full on the cover sheet of the construction plans.  

 
7. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically 

requested and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department.  Any 

3.2

Packet Pg. 57

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ay
 3

, 2
01

8 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 3, 2018 24 
 

significant changes to the size or exterior appearance of the structure shall require 
Planning Commission approval.  
 

8. Prior to issuance of building permit, a final landscape plan shall be submitted and 
approved by the Community Development Department.  Landscape plans shall reflect 
the Planning Commission approval and shall identify type, size, and location of species 
and details of irrigation systems, if proposed.  Native and/or drought tolerant species are 
recommended.       
 

9. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit #16-041 
shall be paid in full. 

 
10. Prior to issuance of building permit, Affordable housing in-lieu fees shall be paid as 

required to assure compliance with the City of Capitola Affordable (Inclusionary) Housing 
Ordinance.  
 

11. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant must provide documentation of plan 
approval by the following entities: Santa Cruz County Sanitation Department, Soquel 
Water District, and Central Fire Protection District.  
 

12. Prior to issuance of building permits, a drainage plan, grading, sediment and erosion control 
plan (BMPs), shall be submitted to the City and approved by Public Works.  The plans shall 
be in compliance with the requirements specified in Capitola Municipal Code Chapter 
13.16.100 Construction Site Storm Water Runoff Control.  All improvements shall be installed 
prior to the start of construction and shall be maintained throughout project duration. 
 

13. Prior to any work in the City road right of way, an encroachment permit shall be acquired by 
the contractor performing the work.  No material or equipment storage may be placed in the 
road right-of-way. 

 
14. At the time of submittal for building permit review, Public Works Standard Detail Storm 

Water Best Management Practices (STRM-BMP) shall be printed in full and incorporated 
as a sheet into the construction plans.  All construction shall be done in accordance with 
Public Works Standard Detail Storm Water Best Management Practices (STRM-BMP). 
 

15. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall submit a stormwater management 
plan to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works which implements all applicable Post 
Construction Requirements (PCRs) and Public Works Standard Details, including all 
standards relating to low impact development (LID), e.g. installing a rain barrel, disconnecting 
downspouts and directing drainage into landscaping, utilizing pervious paving materials. 

 
16. Applicant shall notify the Public Works Department 24 hours in advance of the 

commencement of work.  A pre-construction inspection must be conducted by the grading 
official, or appointed staff to verify compliance with the approved erosion and sediment 
control plan.  
 

17. The Applicant shall prepare and submit a parcel map showing the original parcel and the 
parcels being created by the subdivision, with pertinent supporting data, said map shall 
be filed with the Public Works Department with the appropriate review fees for review.  
Said parcel map shall be prepared by a licensed land surveyor or a registered civil 
engineer who shall be responsible for responding to comments until the map is 
acceptable to the Department of Public Works. 
 

3.2

Packet Pg. 58

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ay
 3

, 2
01

8 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 3, 2018 25 
 

18. All plans and profiles of improvements shall be approved by the Director of Public Works 
prior to the filing of the final map, and the construction of said improvements shall be in 
accordance with the City Specifications and shall be inspected by the Director of Public 
Works or his authorized agent, subject to fees appropriate for the services. 
 

19. Prior to final recording of the final parcel map, either all street and utility improvements, 
as required by the Public Works Department (i.e. curbs, gutters, sidewalks, paving, etc.) 
shall be completed or a bond shall be posted with the Public Works Department to 
secure construction of such street and utility improvements.   
 

20. Prior to the recordation of the parcel map, the applicant shall submit new legal 
descriptions for the three lots for review by the Community Development Director. 
 

21. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise 
curfew, except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City.  
Construction noise shall be prohibited between the hours of nine p.m. and seven-thirty 
a.m. on weekdays. Construction noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the 
exception of Saturday work between nine a.m. and four p.m. or emergency work 
approved by the building official. §9.12.010B 
 

22. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, compliance with all conditions of 
approval shall be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director.  Upon evidence of non-compliance with conditions of approval or applicable 
municipal code provisions, the applicant shall remedy the non-compliance to the 
satisfaction of the Community Development Director or shall file an application for a 
permit amendment for Planning Commission consideration. Failure to remedy a non-
compliance in a timely manner may result in permit revocation. 
 

23. This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance.   The applicant shall have 
an approved building permit and construction underway before this date to prevent 
permit expiration. Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to 
expiration pursuant to Municipal Code section 17.81.160. 
 

24. The planning and infrastructure review and approval are transferable with the title to the 
underlying property so that an approved project may be conveyed or assigned by the 
applicant to others without losing the approval. The permit cannot be transferred off the 
site on which the approval was granted. 
 

25. Upon receipt of certificate of occupancy, garbage and recycling containers shall be 
shielded and placed out of public view on non-collection days.  
 

26. Install a “No Right Turn” (Caltrans Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices 
(CAMUTCD) Standard R3-1) sign on the driveway to prohibit right turn exits. The exact 
placement should be determined in consultation with the Capitola Public Works 
Department. 

 
27. Replace the existing two-foot diameter convex mirror with a three-foot diameter convex 

mirror. 
 
FINDINGS  

A.  The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of 
the Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 

3.2

Packet Pg. 59

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ay
 3

, 2
01

8 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 3, 2018 26 
 

 Community Development Department Staff and the Planning Commission have 
reviewed the project.  The minor land division, together with the provisions for its design 
and improvement, is consistent with the objectives of the Zoning Ordinance and General 
Plan. The new single-family home complies with requirements of the zoning district 

 
B.  The application is consistent with the Subdivision Map Act and local Subdivision 

Ordinance. 
 The minor land division was designed in accordance with the Subdivision Map Act and 

local ordinances enacted pursuant thereto.  Per the Subdivision Map Act, the proposed 
map is consistent with the General Plan, is physically suited for the proposed type and 
density of development, will not likely cause substantial environmental damage, or 
substantially and avoidably injure fish, wildlife or their habitats, will not cause serious 
public health problems, and will not conflict with public easements for access through, or 
use of, property within the proposed subdivision. 

 
C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15315 of the California 

Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

 Section 15315 of the CEQA Guidelines exempts minor land divisions in urbanized areas 
zoned for residential, commercial, or industrial use into four or fewer parcels when the 
division is in conformance with the General Plan and Zoning.  

 
D. The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
  Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 

Planning Commission have all reviewed the design of the single-family home. The 
structures fit within the built environment of the neighborhood.  The neighborhood is 
characterized by a mix of residential densities including single family homes, secondary 
structures, multi-family homes, apartments, and mobile homes. 

 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Linda Smith, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Edward Newman, Commissioner 
AYES: Smith, Newman, Welch, Westman, Storey 

 
 

6. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 
1. Retail Marijuana Sales in Regional Commercial Zoning District   

Future amendment to the Capitola Zoning Code (Municipal Code Chapter 17) to allow retail 
cannabis sales within the Regional Commercial Zoning District with a Conditional Use 
Permit.  
The Regional Commercial Zoning District is outside the Coastal Zone and therefore is not 
subject to Local Coastal Program Certification by the Coastal Commission. 
Environmental Determination: Exempt 
Property: All property within the Regional Commercial Zone within the City of Capitola 
Representative: Katie Herlihy, Community Development Director, City of Capitola 
 
 Director Herlihy provided an overview of a report on the anticipated ordinance and 

 timeline that was previously provided to the City Council, and which would be contingent 
 on a ballot initiative for a local cannabis tax.  

 
 

3.2

Packet Pg. 60

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ay
 3

, 2
01

8 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 3, 2018 27 
 

RESULT: RECEIVED REPORT 

 
7. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 

The Commissioners joined Commissioner Welch in welcoming Director Herlihy in her new 
position as Community Development Director. 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
 

3.2

Packet Pg. 61

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ay
 3

, 2
01

8 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



 

 

 
 

S T A F F  R E P O R T  

 
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 
DATE: JUNE 7, 2018 
 
SUBJECT: 734 Orchid Avenue #18-0136 APN: 036-181-03 
 

Design Permit for an addition to a single-family home, located in the R-1 (Single-
Family Residential) zoning district.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal Development 
Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Nora Seaman 
Representative: Derek Van Alstine, Designer, Filed: 03.27.2018 

 
APPLICANT PROPOSAL 
The applicant is proposing to add 136 square-feet of interior living space to an existing single-
family residence in the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) zoning district. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Architectural and Site Review Committee reviewed the application on April 25th, 2018, and 
provided the applicant with the following direction: 
 
Public Works Representative, Danielle Uharriet: pointed out that the maximum floor area shown 
on the cover page was incorrect.  The maximum floor area ratio for lots over 6,000 square-feet 
is 48%, which is 2,970 square-feet.  Ms. Uharriet also requested that the applicant show where 
the downspouts flow.   
 
Building Department Representative, Nelson Membreno: asked about the plan for the exterior 
addition to the rear of the house and the addition in the master bedroom, neither of which were 
internally or externally accessible.  Mr. Membreno explained that the building department would 
need to have access in order to perform inspections and suggested that the applicant remove 
the addition in the master bedroom and provide a small door to access the rear addition.   
 
Local Architect, Frank Phanton: was impressed with the changes to the front elevation, pointing 
out that several small changes had resulted in a large aesthetic improvement.   
 
Assistant Planner, Matt Orbach: had no comments. 
 
Within the original submittal, the rear addition and a small area in the corner of the master 
bedroom did not include interior or exterior access because the applicant wished to use the 
space for a new master bathroom that would be part of a subsequent building permit at a later 

4.A

Packet Pg. 62



 
 

 

date.  At the direction of the building department, the applicant modified the plans by removing 
the rear addition and the area in the corner of the master bedroom. 
 
DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 
The following table outlines the zoning code requirements for development in the R-1 (Single-
Family Residential) Zoning District relative to the application.   
 

R-1 (Single Family Residential) Zoning District 
 

Development Standards 

Building Height R-1 Regulation Proposed 

 25 ft. 14 ft. - 7.5 in. 

Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 

Lot Size 6187 sq. ft. 

Maximum Floor Area Ratio 48% (Max 2,970 sq. ft.) 

  First Story Floor Area 2,122 sq. ft. 

   TOTAL FAR 34% sq. ft.  (2,122 sq. ft.) 

Yards (setbacks are measured from the edge of the public right-of-way) 

 R-1 Regulation Proposed 

Front Yard 1st Story 15 ft. 20 ft. from right-of-way 

Front Yard 2nd Story & Garage 20 ft. 20 ft. from right-of-way 

Side Yard 1st Story 10% lot 
width 

Lot width: 60 ft. 
6 ft. min. 

6 ft. (South) 
7ft. 3in. (North) 

Rear Yard 1st Story 20% of 
lot depth 

Lot depth 100 ft.  
20 ft. min. 

25 ft.  

Parking 

 Required Proposed 

Residential (from 2,001 up to 
2,600 sq. ft.) 

3 spaces total 
1 covered 
2 uncovered 

3 spaces total 
1 covered 
2 uncovered 

Garage and Accessory Bldg. Complies with Standards? Complies 

Garage Yes  No change 

Underground Utilities: required with 25% increase in 
area 

Not Required 

 
DISCUSSION 
The existing residence at 734 Orchid Avenue is a single-family home with an attached garage.  
The structure currently has a mix of stucco and vertical siding.  This existing structure matches 
the design of the neighboring single-story single-family residences along Orchid Avenue.  
Single-story single-family homes make up the vast majority of homes in the surrounding 
neighborhood.       
 
The applicant is proposing to create a new look on the front façade of the home that 
compliments the neighboring structures while creating differentiation in the design.   The 
addition at the front of the house will bring the front door closer to the street, introduce a new 
gabled roof, and increase the size of the deck at the front entryway.  Additional features of the 
updated design on the front of the home include new board and batten siding, a new trellis, and 
double French doors. The existing stucco on the rear and side elevations will remain.  The 
proposed project will add a total of 136 square-feet of living space to the existing habitable 
space.  

4.A

Packet Pg. 63



 
 

 

 
The proposed project also includes the removal of two palm trees in the front yard.  The two 
palm trees will be replaced with three fruitless olive trees in the front yard and one Meyer lemon 
tree in the back yard.      
 
CEQA 
Section 15301(e) of the CEQA Guidelines exempts additions to existing structures that will not 
result in an increase of more than 50 percent of the floor area. This project involves a 136 
square-foot addition to a single-family home within the R-1 (Single-Family Residence) zoning 
district that will increase the floor area by less than seven percent.  No adverse environmental 
impacts were discovered during review of the proposed project.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission review the application and approve project 
application #18-0136.    
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
1. The project approval consists of construction of a 136 square-foot addition to the interior 

living space. The maximum Floor Area Ratio for the 2,137 square-foot property is 48% 
(2,970 square-feet).  The total FAR of the project is 34% with a total of 2,122 square-
feet, compliant with the maximum FAR within the zone. The proposed project is 
approved as indicated on the final plans reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Commission on June 7th, 2018, except as modified through conditions imposed by the 
Planning Commission during the hearing. 
 

2. Prior to construction, a building permit shall be secured for any new construction or 
modifications to structures authorized by this permit. Final building plans shall be 
consistent with the plans approved by the Planning Commission.  All construction and 
site improvements shall be completed according to the approved plans. 
 

3. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be 
printed in full on the cover sheet of the construction plans.  
 

4. At time of submittal for building permit review, Public Works Standard Detail SMP STRM 
shall be printed in full and incorporated as a sheet into the construction plans.  All 
construction shall be done in accordance with the Public Works Standard Detail BMP 
STRM.   

 
5. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically 

requested and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department.  Any 
significant changes to the size or exterior appearance of the structure shall require 
Planning Commission approval.   
 

6. Prior to issuance of building permit, a final landscape plan shall be submitted and 
approved by the Community Development Department.  Landscape plans shall reflect 
the Planning Commission approval and shall identify type, size, and location of species 
and details of irrigation systems.   

 
7. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit #18-0136 

shall be paid in full. 
 

4.A

Packet Pg. 64



 
 

 

8. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant must provide documentation of plan 
approval by the following entities: Santa Cruz County Sanitation Department, Soquel 
Creek Water District, and Central Fire Protection District.   
 

9. Prior to issuance of building permits, a drainage plan, grading, sediment and erosion 
control plan, shall be submitted to the City and approved by Public Works.  The plans 
shall be in compliance with the requirements specified in Capitola Municipal Code 
Chapter 13.16 Storm Water Pollution Prevention and Protection. 
 

10. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall submit a stormwater 
management plan to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works which implements 
all applicable Post Construction Requirements (PCRs) and Public Works Standard 
Details, including all standards relating to low impact development (LID). 
 

11. Prior to any land disturbance, a pre-site inspection must be conducted by the grading 
official to verify compliance with the approved erosion and sediment control plan.  
 

12. Prior to any work in the City road right of way, an encroachment permit shall be acquired 
by the contractor performing the work.  No material or equipment storage may be placed 
in the road right-of-way. 
 

13. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise 
curfew, except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City.  
Construction noise shall be prohibited between the hours of nine p.m. and seven-thirty 
a.m. on weekdays. Construction noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the 
exception of Saturday work between nine a.m. and four p.m. or emergency work 
approved by the building official. §9.12.010B 
 

14. Prior to a project final, all cracked or broken driveway approaches, curb, gutter, or 
sidewalk shall be replaced per the Public Works Standard Details and to the satisfaction 
of the Public Works Department.  All replaced driveway approaches, curb, gutter or 
sidewalk shall meet current Accessibility Standards. 
    

15. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, compliance with all conditions of 
approval shall be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director.  Upon evidence of non-compliance with conditions of approval or applicable 
municipal code provisions, the applicant shall remedy the non-compliance to the 
satisfaction of the Community Development Director or shall file an application for a 
permit amendment for Planning Commission consideration. Failure to remedy a non-
compliance in a timely manner may result in permit revocation. 
 

16. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, the applicant shall demonstrate 
compliance with the tree removal permit authorized by this permit for 2 trees to be 
removed from the property.  Replacement trees shall be planted at a 2:1 ratio. Required 
replacement trees shall be of the same size, species, and planted on the site as shown 
on the approved plans.  The replacement tree located in the back yard shall be a Meyer 
lemon tree.  
 

17. This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance.  The applicant shall have 
an approved building permit and construction underway before this date to prevent 
permit expiration.   Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to 
expiration pursuant to Municipal Code section 17.81.160. 

4.A

Packet Pg. 65



 
 

 

 
18. The planning and infrastructure review and approval are transferable with the title to the 

underlying property so that an approved project may be conveyed or assigned by the 
applicant to others without losing the approval. The permit cannot be transferred off the 
site on which the approval was granted. 
 

19. Upon receipt of certificate of occupancy, garbage and recycling containers shall be 
placed out of public view on non-collection days. 

 
FINDINGS 

A. The project, subject to the conditions imposed, secures the purposes of the 
Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have all reviewed the project. The 136 square-foot interior 
addition, new roofing, patio extension, siding, windows, doors, and trellis comply with the 
development standards of the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning District. 
 

B. The project will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have all reviewed the application for the 136 square-foot addition.  
The design of the home, with a new gabled roof, front addition, patio extension, new 
board and batten siding, and new trellis, in combination with existing stucco features, will 
fit in nicely with the existing neighborhood. The project will maintain the character and 
integrity of the neighborhood.   

 
C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 (e) of the California    

Environmental Quality Act and is subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 
Section 15301(e) of the CEQA Guidelines exempts additions to existing structures that 
will not result in an increase of more than 50 percent of the floor area. This project 
involves a 136 square-foot addition to a single-family home within the R-1 (Single-Family 
Residence) zoning district that will increase the floor area by less than seven percent.  
No adverse environmental impacts were discovered during review of the proposed 
project.  

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. 734 Orchid Avenue - Full Plan Set.pdf 
 
Prepared By: Matt Orbach 
  Assistant Planner 

4.A

Packet Pg. 66



                                                                 

                                                

T
1

1535 SEABRIGHT AVENUE SUITE 200, SANTA CRUZ, CALIFORNIA
(831)426-8400 PHONE  (831)426-8446 FAX

R E S I D E N T I A L   D E S I G N   INC.
D E R E K   V A N   A L S T I N E

D
V

R
D

A
L

L
 R

IG
H

T
S

 R
E

S
E

R
V

E
D

D
E

R
E

K
 V

A
N

 A
L

S
T

IN
E

20
18

 C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
T

D
E

S
IG

N
E

R

IS
S

U
E

 D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

IN
C

.

A
P

N
:

0
3

6
-1

8
1

-0
3

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 S

U
B

M
IT

T
A

L
:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
:

D
E

S
IG

N
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
U

B
M

IT
T

A
L

:

S
C

H
E

M
A

T
IC

 D
E

SIG
N

SEAMAN RESIDENCE

CAPITOLA, CA 95010
734 ORCHID AVENUE

JA
N

. 0
9

, 2
0

1
8

M
A
R
C

H
 1

3
, 2

0
1

8

M
A
Y
 3

0
, 2

0
1

8

4.A.a

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

34
 O

rc
h

id
 A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
F

u
ll 

P
la

n
 S

et
.p

d
f 

 (
73

4 
O

rc
h

id
 A

ve
n

u
e)



T
2

1535 SEABRIGHT AVENUE SUITE 200, SANTA CRUZ, CALIFORNIA
(831)426-8400 PHONE  (831)426-8446 FAX

R E S I D E N T I A L   D E S I G N   INC.
D E R E K   V A N   A L S T I N E

D
V

R
D

A
L

L
 R

IG
H

T
S

 R
E

S
E

R
V

E
D

D
E

R
E

K
 V

A
N

 A
L

S
T

IN
E

20
18

 C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
T

D
E

S
IG

N
E

R

IS
S

U
E

 D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

IN
C

.

A
P

N
:

0
3

6
-1

8
1

-0
3

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 S

U
B

M
IT

T
A

L
:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
:

D
E

S
IG

N
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
U

B
M

IT
T

A
L

:

S
C

H
E

M
A

T
IC

 D
E

SIG
N

SEAMAN RESIDENCE

CAPITOLA, CA 95010
734 ORCHID AVENUE

JA
N

. 0
9

, 2
0

1
8

M
A
R
C

H
 1

3
, 2

0
1

8

M
A
Y
 3

0
, 2

0
1

8

4.A.a

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

34
 O

rc
h

id
 A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
F

u
ll 

P
la

n
 S

et
.p

d
f 

 (
73

4 
O

rc
h

id
 A

ve
n

u
e)



T
3

1535 SEABRIGHT AVENUE SUITE 200, SANTA CRUZ, CALIFORNIA
(831)426-8400 PHONE  (831)426-8446 FAX

R E S I D E N T I A L   D E S I G N   INC.
D E R E K   V A N   A L S T I N E

D
V

R
D

A
L

L
 R

IG
H

T
S

 R
E

S
E

R
V

E
D

D
E

R
E

K
 V

A
N

 A
L

S
T

IN
E

20
18

 C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
T

D
E

S
IG

N
E

R

IS
S

U
E

 D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

IN
C

.

A
P

N
:

0
3

6
-1

8
1

-0
3

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 S

U
B

M
IT

T
A

L
:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
:

D
E

S
IG

N
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
U

B
M

IT
T

A
L

:

S
C

H
E

M
A

T
IC

 D
E

SIG
N

SEAMAN RESIDENCE

CAPITOLA, CA 95010
734 ORCHID AVENUE

JA
N

. 0
9

, 2
0

1
8

M
A
R
C

H
 1

3
, 2

0
1

8

M
A
Y
 3

0
, 2

0
1

8

4.A.a

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

34
 O

rc
h

id
 A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
F

u
ll 

P
la

n
 S

et
.p

d
f 

 (
73

4 
O

rc
h

id
 A

ve
n

u
e)



4.A.a

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

34
 O

rc
h

id
 A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
F

u
ll 

P
la

n
 S

et
.p

d
f 

 (
73

4 
O

rc
h

id
 A

ve
n

u
e)



1535 SEABRIGHT AVENUE SUITE 200, SANTA CRUZ, CALIFORNIA
(831)426-8400 PHONE  (831)426-8446 FAX

R E S I D E N T I A L   D E S I G N   INC.
D E R E K   V A N   A L S T I N E

D
V

R
D

A
L

L
 R

IG
H

T
S

 R
E

S
E

R
V

E
D

D
E

R
E

K
 V

A
N

 A
L

S
T

IN
E

20
18

 C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
T

D
E

S
IG

N
E

R

IS
S

U
E

 D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

IN
C

.

A
P

N
:

0
3

6
-1

8
1

-0
3

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 S

U
B

M
IT

T
A

L
:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
:

D
E

S
IG

N
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
U

B
M

IT
T

A
L

:

S
C

H
E

M
A

T
IC

 D
E

SIG
N

SEAMAN RESIDENCE

CAPITOLA, CA 95010
734 ORCHID AVENUE

JA
N

. 0
9

, 2
0

1
8

M
A
R
C

H
 1

3
, 2

0
1

8

M
A
Y
 3

0
, 2

0
1

8

4.A.a

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

34
 O

rc
h

id
 A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
F

u
ll 

P
la

n
 S

et
.p

d
f 

 (
73

4 
O

rc
h

id
 A

ve
n

u
e)



1535 SEABRIGHT AVENUE SUITE 200, SANTA CRUZ, CALIFORNIA
(831)426-8400 PHONE  (831)426-8446 FAX

R E S I D E N T I A L   D E S I G N   INC.
D E R E K   V A N   A L S T I N E

D
V

R
D

A
L

L
 R

IG
H

T
S

 R
E

S
E

R
V

E
D

D
E

R
E

K
 V

A
N

 A
L

S
T

IN
E

20
18

 C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
T

D
E

S
IG

N
E

R

IS
S

U
E

 D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

IN
C

.

A
P

N
:

0
3

6
-1

8
1

-0
3

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 S

U
B

M
IT

T
A

L
:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
:

D
E

S
IG

N
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
U

B
M

IT
T

A
L

:

S
C

H
E

M
A

T
IC

 D
E

SIG
N

SEAMAN RESIDENCE

CAPITOLA, CA 95010
734 ORCHID AVENUE

JA
N

. 0
9

, 2
0

1
8

M
A
R
C

H
 1

3
, 2

0
1

8

M
A
Y
 3

0
, 2

0
1

8

4.A.a

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

34
 O

rc
h

id
 A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
F

u
ll 

P
la

n
 S

et
.p

d
f 

 (
73

4 
O

rc
h

id
 A

ve
n

u
e)



B
E

D
R

O
O

M
E

B
E

D
R

O
O

M
E

F
A

M
IL

Y
 

R
O

O
M

E

D
IN

IN
G

R
O

O
M

E

L
IV

IN
G

 
R

O
O

M
E

K
IT

C
H

E
N

E
B

A
T

H
E

B
A

T
H

E
B

E
D

R
O

O
M

E

G
A

R
A

G
E

E

A
2

1535 SEABRIGHT AVENUE SUITE 200, SANTA CRUZ, CALIFORNIA
(831)426-8400 PHONE  (831)426-8446 FAX

R E S I D E N T I A L   D E S I G N   INC.
D E R E K   V A N   A L S T I N E

D
V

R
D

A
L

L
 R

IG
H

T
S

 R
E

S
E

R
V

E
D

D
E

R
E

K
 V

A
N

 A
L

S
T

IN
E

20
18

 C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
T

D
E

S
IG

N
E

R

IS
S

U
E

 D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

IN
C

.

A
P

N
:

0
3

6
-1

8
1

-0
3

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 S

U
B

M
IT

T
A

L
:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
:

D
E

S
IG

N
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
U

B
M

IT
T

A
L

:

S
C

H
E

M
A

T
IC

 D
E

SIG
N

SEAMAN RESIDENCE

CAPITOLA, CA 95010
734 ORCHID AVENUE

JA
N

. 0
9

, 2
0

1
8

M
A
R
C

H
 1

3
, 2

0
1

8

M
A
Y
 3

0
, 2

0
1

8

4.A.a

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

34
 O

rc
h

id
 A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
F

u
ll 

P
la

n
 S

et
.p

d
f 

 (
73

4 
O

rc
h

id
 A

ve
n

u
e)



A
3

1535 SEABRIGHT AVENUE SUITE 200, SANTA CRUZ, CALIFORNIA
(831)426-8400 PHONE  (831)426-8446 FAX

R E S I D E N T I A L   D E S I G N   INC.
D E R E K   V A N   A L S T I N E

D
V

R
D

A
L

L
 R

IG
H

T
S

 R
E

S
E

R
V

E
D

D
E

R
E

K
 V

A
N

 A
L

S
T

IN
E

20
18

 C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
T

D
E

S
IG

N
E

R

IS
S

U
E

 D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

IN
C

.

A
P

N
:

0
3

6
-1

8
1

-0
3

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 S

U
B

M
IT

T
A

L
:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
:

D
E

S
IG

N
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
U

B
M

IT
T

A
L

:

S
C

H
E

M
A

T
IC

 D
E

SIG
N

SEAMAN RESIDENCE

CAPITOLA, CA 95010
734 ORCHID AVENUE

JA
N

. 0
9

, 2
0

1
8

M
A
R
C

H
 1

3
, 2

0
1

8

M
A
Y
 3

0
, 2

0
1

8

4.A.a

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

34
 O

rc
h

id
 A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
F

u
ll 

P
la

n
 S

et
.p

d
f 

 (
73

4 
O

rc
h

id
 A

ve
n

u
e)



A
4

1535 SEABRIGHT AVENUE SUITE 200, SANTA CRUZ, CALIFORNIA
(831)426-8400 PHONE  (831)426-8446 FAX

R E S I D E N T I A L   D E S I G N   INC.
D E R E K   V A N   A L S T I N E

D
V

R
D

A
L

L
 R

IG
H

T
S

 R
E

S
E

R
V

E
D

D
E

R
E

K
 V

A
N

 A
L

S
T

IN
E

20
18

 C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
T

D
E

S
IG

N
E

R

IS
S

U
E

 D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

IN
C

.

A
P

N
:

0
3

6
-1

8
1

-0
3

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 S

U
B

M
IT

T
A

L
:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
:

D
E

S
IG

N
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
U

B
M

IT
T

A
L

:

S
C

H
E

M
A

T
IC

 D
E

SIG
N

SEAMAN RESIDENCE

CAPITOLA, CA 95010
734 ORCHID AVENUE

JA
N

. 0
9

, 2
0

1
8

M
A
R
C

H
 1

3
, 2

0
1

8

M
A
Y
 3

0
, 2

0
1

8

4.A.a

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

34
 O

rc
h

id
 A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
F

u
ll 

P
la

n
 S

et
.p

d
f 

 (
73

4 
O

rc
h

id
 A

ve
n

u
e)



K
IT

C
H

E
N

-
2

2
'-

4
" x

 9
'-

6
"

B
E

D
R

O
O

M
E

B
A

T
H

E

B
A

T
H

E
B

E
D

R
O

O
M

E

F
A

M
IL

Y
R

O
O

M
-

2
9

'-
1

1
" x

 1
7

'-
7

"

W
A

L
K

-
IN

C
L

O
S

E
T

-
5

'-
1

" x
 1

2
'-

9
"

M
A

S
T

E
R

B
E

D
R

O
O

M
-

1
3

'-
1

" x
 1

5
'-

1
"

G
A

R
A

G
E

E

A
5

1535 SEABRIGHT AVENUE SUITE 200, SANTA CRUZ, CALIFORNIA
(831)426-8400 PHONE  (831)426-8446 FAX

R E S I D E N T I A L   D E S I G N   INC.
D E R E K   V A N   A L S T I N E

D
V

R
D

A
L

L
 R

IG
H

T
S

 R
E

S
E

R
V

E
D

D
E

R
E

K
 V

A
N

 A
L

S
T

IN
E

20
18

 C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
T

D
E

S
IG

N
E

R

IS
S

U
E

 D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

IN
C

.

A
P

N
:

0
3

6
-1

8
1

-0
3

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 S

U
B

M
IT

T
A

L
:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
:

D
E

S
IG

N
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
U

B
M

IT
T

A
L

:

S
C

H
E

M
A

T
IC

 D
E

SIG
N

SEAMAN RESIDENCE

CAPITOLA, CA 95010
734 ORCHID AVENUE

JA
N

. 0
9

, 2
0

1
8

M
A
R
C

H
 1

3
, 2

0
1

8

M
A
Y
 3

0
, 2

0
1

8

4.A.a

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

34
 O

rc
h

id
 A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
F

u
ll 

P
la

n
 S

et
.p

d
f 

 (
73

4 
O

rc
h

id
 A

ve
n

u
e)



A
6

1535 SEABRIGHT AVENUE SUITE 200, SANTA CRUZ, CALIFORNIA
(831)426-8400 PHONE  (831)426-8446 FAX

R E S I D E N T I A L   D E S I G N   INC.
D E R E K   V A N   A L S T I N E

D
V

R
D

A
L

L
 R

IG
H

T
S

 R
E

S
E

R
V

E
D

D
E

R
E

K
 V

A
N

 A
L

S
T

IN
E

20
18

 C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
T

D
E

S
IG

N
E

R

IS
S

U
E

 D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

IN
C

.

A
P

N
:

0
3

6
-1

8
1

-0
3

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 S

U
B

M
IT

T
A

L
:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
:

D
E

S
IG

N
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
U

B
M

IT
T

A
L

:

S
C

H
E

M
A

T
IC

 D
E

SIG
N

SEAMAN RESIDENCE

CAPITOLA, CA 95010
734 ORCHID AVENUE

JA
N

. 0
9

, 2
0

1
8

M
A
R
C

H
 1

3
, 2

0
1

8

M
A
Y
 3

0
, 2

0
1

8

4.A.a

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

34
 O

rc
h

id
 A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
F

u
ll 

P
la

n
 S

et
.p

d
f 

 (
73

4 
O

rc
h

id
 A

ve
n

u
e)



A
7

1535 SEABRIGHT AVENUE SUITE 200, SANTA CRUZ, CALIFORNIA
(831)426-8400 PHONE  (831)426-8446 FAX

R E S I D E N T I A L   D E S I G N   INC.
D E R E K   V A N   A L S T I N E

D
V

R
D

A
L

L
 R

IG
H

T
S

 R
E

S
E

R
V

E
D

D
E

R
E

K
 V

A
N

 A
L

S
T

IN
E

20
18

 C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
T

D
E

S
IG

N
E

R

IS
S

U
E

 D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

IN
C

.

A
P

N
:

0
3

6
-1

8
1

-0
3

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 S

U
B

M
IT

T
A

L
:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
:

D
E

S
IG

N
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
U

B
M

IT
T

A
L

:

S
C

H
E

M
A

T
IC

 D
E

SIG
N

SEAMAN RESIDENCE

CAPITOLA, CA 95010
734 ORCHID AVENUE

JA
N

. 0
9

, 2
0

1
8

M
A
R
C

H
 1

3
, 2

0
1

8

M
A
Y
 3

0
, 2

0
1

8

4.A.a

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

34
 O

rc
h

id
 A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
F

u
ll 

P
la

n
 S

et
.p

d
f 

 (
73

4 
O

rc
h

id
 A

ve
n

u
e)



4.A.a

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

34
 O

rc
h

id
 A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
F

u
ll 

P
la

n
 S

et
.p

d
f 

 (
73

4 
O

rc
h

id
 A

ve
n

u
e)



 

 

 
 

S T A F F  R E P O R T  

 
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 
DATE: JUNE 7, 2018 
 
SUBJECT: 4795 Garnet Street #18-0154 APN: 034-037-16 
 

Design Permit to add new roofs to an existing nonconforming duplex and 
detached garage in the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) zoning district.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal 
Development Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: CBP Enterprises 
Representative: Heidi Anderson Spicer, Architect, Filed: 04.04.2018 

 
APPLICANT PROPOSAL 
The applicant is proposing to add gable roofs to an existing nonconforming duplex and 
detached garage and update the siding on both buildings in the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) 
zoning district. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Architectural and Site Review Committee reviewed the application on April 11th, 2018, and 
provided the applicant with the following direction: 
 
Public Works Representative, Danielle Uharriet: asked for clarification on what parts of the lot 
are being repaved.  Ms. Uharriet informed the applicant that a stormwater plan will be required 
and that Public Works can condition the building permit.  Ms. Uharriet also asked where the 
downspouts lead, informed the applicant that stormwater retention would be required on-site, 
and described multiple management and retention options.   
 
Building Department Representative, Fred Cullum: asked for clarification on the design of the 
railing on the stairway leading to the second story.  The design met code requirements.   
 
Local Architect, Frank Phanton: liked the design and commended the architect.   
 
Assistant Planner, Matt Orbach: described the changes the applicant had made based on Staff 
comments in relation to the size of the eaves and material details.   
 
Following the Architectural and Site Review hearing, the applicant submitted revised plans 
which addressed the committee’s comments, adding the required stormwater management 
information to the plans.   
 

4.B

Packet Pg. 80



 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 
 

R-1 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning District 
 

Use 

Existing Use Residential – Duplex 
Existing Nonconforming 

Proposed Use Residential – Duplex 
Existing Nonconforming 

Building Height - Existing R-1 Regulation Proposed 

19 ft. 10 in. 25 ft. 24 ft. 11.5 in. 

Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 

Lot Size 3,360 sq. ft. 

Maximum Floor Area Ratio 56% (Max 1,882 sq. ft.) 

First Story Floor Area 720 sq. ft. 

Detached Garage Floor Area (minus 100 sq. ft. ancillary 
area) 

540 sq. ft. 

Second Story Floor Area 720 sq. ft. 

TOTAL FAR 1,980 sq. ft. 
Existing Nonconforming 

Yards (setbacks are measured from the edge of the public right-of-way) 

 R-1 Regulation Proposed 

Front Yard 1st Story 15 ft. 51 ft. from right-of-way 

Front Yard 2nd Story 20 ft. 51 ft. from right-of-way 

Side Yard 1st Story 10% lot 
width 

Lot width: 42 ft. 
4 ft. 2 in. min. 

5 ft. & 7 ft. from property line 

Side Yard 2nd Story 15% of 
width 

Lot width 42 ft.  
6 ft. 4 in. min 

5 ft. & 7 ft. from property line 
Existing Nonconforming 

Rear Yard 1st Story 20% of 
lot depth 

Lot depth: 80 ft. 
16 ft. min. 

5 ft. from property line 
Existing Nonconforming 

Rear Yard 2nd Story 20% of 
lot depth 

Lot depth: 80 ft. 
16 ft. min. 

5 ft. from property line 
Existing Nonconforming 

Detached Garage Front/Rear/Side Existing 

 40 ft./8 ft./3 ft. 11 ft./31 ft. 10 in./5 ft. 
Existing Nonconforming 

Parking 

 Required Proposed 

Duplex  2 spaces per unit 
1 covered 
1 uncovered 
4 spaces total 

2 spaces total 
2 covered 
0 uncovered 
Existing Nonconforming 

Garage  Complies with Standards? List non-compliance 

 No Front Setback 

 
DISCUSSION 
The existing residence at 4795 Garnet Street is a nonconforming duplex with a detached garage 
located in front of the duplex.  The duplex has two 720 square foot two-bedroom/one-bathroom 
units and a 640 square foot detached garage with two garage spaces and two laundry rooms.  
Both structures currently have flat roofs.  The lot is adjacent to a mirror image nonconforming 

4.B

Packet Pg. 81



 
 

 

duplex to the west and a Soquel Creek Water District pump station to the east, and the rest of 
the neighborhood is made up of one- and two-story single-family homes. 
 
The applicant is proposing a full interior and exterior remodel, including: adding gable roofs to 
the existing duplex and detached garage, new HardieShingle siding on the upper exterior walls 
and new stucco on the lower exterior walls, adding gables over the first and second story 
entryways, expanding the first story landing/deck, replacing some pavement, and updating the 
landscaping.   
 
Non-Conforming Use 
Under Capitola Municipal Code (CMC) §17.72.060(B), nonconforming duplex activities on R-1 
parcels may continue indefinitely but the structures cannot be enlarged.  They can, however, be 
structurally altered or rebuilt as allowed under Section 17.72.070 Permissible structural 
alterations. 
 
The project involves a duplex located in the R-1 (Single Family Residential) zone, which is a 
nonconforming use, so the applicant is not allowed to add any square footage to the existing 
structures.  No part of the proposed project enlarges the existing structures. 
 
 
Non-Conforming Structure 
Under Capitola Municipal Code (CMC) §17.72.070 Permissible structural alterations, the cost of 
structural alterations to a nonconforming structure may not exceed eighty percent of the present 
fair market value of the structure. 
 
The full interior and exterior remodel that does not add any new square footage to the structures 
constitutes fifty percent of the present fair market value of the structures.  Because the 
alterations do not exceed eighty percent, they are permissible. 
   
CEQA 
Section 15301(e) of the CEQA Guidelines exempts additions to existing structures that are less 
than 50 percent of the existing floor area ratio of the structure.  The project does not add any 
additional floor area to the existing nonconforming 1,440 square foot, two-story, duplex or the 
detached 640 square foot garage in the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning District. No 
adverse environmental impacts were discovered during review of the proposed project. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends approval of application #18-0154 to add gable roofs to an existing 
nonconforming duplex and detached garage based on the finding and conditions of approval.    
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
1. The project approval consists of the addition of gable roofs to an existing nonconforming 

duplex and detached garage and an update of the siding on both buildings. The 
maximum Floor Area Ratio for the 3,360 square foot property is 56% (1,882 square 
feet).  As a nonconforming use (duplex) in the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) zoning 
district, no floor area may be added to the structures.  The project does not add any 
additional floor area to the existing nonconforming 1,440 square foot, two-story, duplex 
or the detached 640 square foot garage in the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning 
District.  The proposed project is approved as indicated on the final plans reviewed and 
approved by the Planning Commission on June 7, 2018, except as modified through 
conditions imposed by the Planning Commission during the hearing. 
 

4.B

Packet Pg. 82



 
 

 

2. Prior to construction, a building permit shall be secured for any new construction or 
modifications to structures authorized by this permit. Final building plans shall be 
consistent with the plans approved by the Planning Commission.  All construction and 
site improvements shall be completed according to the approved plans 
 

3. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be 
printed in full on the cover sheet of the construction plans.  
 

4. At time of submittal for building permit review, Public Works Standard Detail SMP STRM 
shall be printed in full and incorporated as a sheet into the construction plans.  All 
construction shall be done in accordance with the Public Works Standard Detail BMP 
STRM.   

 
5. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically 

requested and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department.  Any 
significant changes to the size or exterior appearance of the structure shall require 
Planning Commission approval.   
 

6. Prior to issuance of building permit, a final landscape plan shall be submitted and 
approved by the Community Development Department.  Landscape plans shall reflect 
the Planning Commission approval and shall identify type, size, and location of species 
and details of irrigation systems.   

 
7. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit #18-0154 

shall be paid in full. 
 

8. Prior to issuance of building permit, Affordable housing in-lieu fees shall be paid as 
required to assure compliance with the City of Capitola Affordable (Inclusionary) Housing 
Ordinance.   
 

9. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant must provide documentation of plan 
approval by the following entities: Santa Cruz County Sanitation Department, Soquel 
Creek Water District, and Central Fire Protection District.   
 

10. Prior to issuance of building permits, a drainage plan, grading, sediment and erosion 
control plan, shall be submitted to the City and approved by Public Works.  The plans 
shall be in compliance with the requirements specified in Capitola Municipal Code 
Chapter 13.16 Storm Water Pollution Prevention and Protection. 
 

11. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall submit a stormwater 
management plan to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works which implements 
all applicable Post Construction Requirements (PCRs) and Public Works Standard 
Details, including all standards relating to low impact development (LID). 

 
12. Prior to any land disturbance, a pre-site inspection must be conducted by the grading 

official to verify compliance with the approved erosion and sediment control plan.  
 

13. Prior to any work in the City road right of way, an encroachment permit shall be acquired 
by the contractor performing the work.  No material or equipment storage may be placed 
in the road right-of-way. 
 

4.B

Packet Pg. 83



 
 

 

14. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise 
curfew, except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City.  
Construction noise shall be prohibited between the hours of nine p.m. and seven-thirty 
a.m. on weekdays. Construction noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the 
exception of Saturday work between nine a.m. and four p.m. or emergency work 
approved by the building official. §9.12.010B 
 

15. Prior to a project final, all cracked or broken driveway approaches, curb, gutter, or 
sidewalk shall be replaced per the Public Works Standard Details and to the satisfaction 
of the Public Works Department.  All replaced driveway approaches, curb, gutter or 
sidewalk shall meet current Accessibility Standards. 

    
16. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, compliance with all conditions of 

approval shall be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director.  Upon evidence of non-compliance with conditions of approval or applicable 
municipal code provisions, the applicant shall remedy the non-compliance to the 
satisfaction of the Community Development Director or shall file an application for a 
permit amendment for Planning Commission consideration. Failure to remedy a non-
compliance in a timely manner may result in permit revocation. 
 

17. This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance.   The applicant shall have 
an approved building permit and construction underway before this date to prevent 
permit expiration.   Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to 
expiration pursuant to Municipal Code section 17.81.160. 
 

18. The planning and infrastructure review and approval are transferable with the title to the 
underlying property so that an approved project may be conveyed or assigned by the 
applicant to others without losing the approval. The permit cannot be transferred off the 
site on which the approval was granted. 
 

19. Upon receipt of certificate of occupancy, garbage and recycling containers shall be 
placed out of public view on non-collection days.  

 
FINDINGS 

A. The project, subject to the conditions imposed, secures the purposes of the 
Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have all reviewed the project. The proposed addition of gable 
roofs to an existing nonconforming duplex and detached garage and update of the siding 
on both buildings complies with the development standards of the R-1 (Single-Family 
Residential) Zoning District.  The project does not add any additional floor area to the 
existing nonconforming 1,440 square foot, two-story, duplex or the detached 640 square 
foot garage in the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning District. The project secures 
the purpose of the Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan 
 

B. The project will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have all reviewed the application for the addition of gable roofs to 
an existing nonconforming duplex and detached garage and update of the siding on both 
buildings.  The design of the home and garage, with the new gable roofs and 
HardieShingle siding, will improve the aesthetics of the structures and fit in nicely with 

4.B

Packet Pg. 84



 
 

 

the existing neighborhood. The project will maintain the character and integrity of the 
neighborhood.   

 
C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301(e) of the California    

Environmental Quality Act and is subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 
Section 15301(e) of the CEQA Guidelines exempts additions to existing structures that 
are less than 50 percent of the existing floor area ratio of the structure. This project 
involves the addition of gable roofs to an existing nonconforming duplex and detached 
garage and update of the siding on both buildings within the R-1 (Single-Family 
Residential) zoning district. No adverse environmental impacts were discovered during 
review of the proposed project.  

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. 4795 Garnet Street - Full Plan Set 
 
Prepared By: Matt Orbach 
  Assistant Planner 

4.B

Packet Pg. 85



4.B.a

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

79
5 

G
ar

n
et

 S
tr

ee
t 

- 
F

u
ll 

P
la

n
 S

et
  (

47
95

 G
ar

n
et

 S
tr

ee
t)



4.B.a

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

79
5 

G
ar

n
et

 S
tr

ee
t 

- 
F

u
ll 

P
la

n
 S

et
  (

47
95

 G
ar

n
et

 S
tr

ee
t)



4.B.a

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

79
5 

G
ar

n
et

 S
tr

ee
t 

- 
F

u
ll 

P
la

n
 S

et
  (

47
95

 G
ar

n
et

 S
tr

ee
t)



4.B.a

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

79
5 

G
ar

n
et

 S
tr

ee
t 

- 
F

u
ll 

P
la

n
 S

et
  (

47
95

 G
ar

n
et

 S
tr

ee
t)



4.B.a

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

79
5 

G
ar

n
et

 S
tr

ee
t 

- 
F

u
ll 

P
la

n
 S

et
  (

47
95

 G
ar

n
et

 S
tr

ee
t)



4.B.a

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

79
5 

G
ar

n
et

 S
tr

ee
t 

- 
F

u
ll 

P
la

n
 S

et
  (

47
95

 G
ar

n
et

 S
tr

ee
t)



4.B.a

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

79
5 

G
ar

n
et

 S
tr

ee
t 

- 
F

u
ll 

P
la

n
 S

et
  (

47
95

 G
ar

n
et

 S
tr

ee
t)



4.B.a

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

79
5 

G
ar

n
et

 S
tr

ee
t 

- 
F

u
ll 

P
la

n
 S

et
  (

47
95

 G
ar

n
et

 S
tr

ee
t)



 

 

 
 

S T A F F  R E P O R T  

 
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 
DATE: JUNE 7, 2018 
 
SUBJECT: 620 Monterey Avenue #18-041 APN: 036-101-38 
 

Coastal Development Permit to demolish one classroom building and 12 existing 
portable buildings onsite and construct four new buildings for classrooms, 
art/woodshop rooms, physical education, and locker rooms at New Brighton 
Middle School.   
This project is in the Coastal Zone and requires a Coastal Development Permit 
that is not appealable to the Coastal Commission. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Soquel Union Elementary School District 
Representative: Madi Architecture and Planning 

 
APPLICANT PROPOSAL 
The Soquel Union Elementary School District is requesting a Coastal Development Permit for 
the New Brighton Middle School Campus to construct four new buildings in place of one existing 
structure and twelve portable classrooms that will be demolished.  The property is located in the 
Pubic Facilities (PF) zoning district.  The use is consistent with the General Plan, Zoning 
Ordinance, and Local Coastal Plan. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The City received the Coastal Development Permit application on December 8, 2017. The 
Public Works Department has been working with the applicant toward compliance with 
stormwater regulations.  The project has found to be in compliance with stormwater regulations.       
 
DISCUSSION 
The construction of public school facilities is reviewed and regulated by the State of California 
and is not under the jurisdiction of the City of Capitola.  However, pursuant to the Coastal Zone 
Combining District, a Coastal Development Permit is required for any private or public 
development project within the City’s Coastal Zone. Therefore, a review of the project for 
consistency with the City’s Local Coastal Program and issuance of a Coastal Development 
Permit is required.   
 
ANALYSIS 
The proposed new buildings on the New Brighton Middle School campus are of a contemporary 
design with large windows and angled roofs to allow natural sunlight into the structures.  Each of 
the buildings will be twenty feet, four inches at the tallest point.  All of the buildings will be 
primarily finished in stucco, with some metal accent finishes on some structures.  The proposed 

5.A

Packet Pg. 94



 
 

 

new building located along the frontage of Monterey Avenue has the most architectural detail 
with large windows stepped back in the shed roof design and a decorative wave incorporated 
into the stucco along the front façade.  
 
The project does not intensify the use of the school with the demolition of twelve portable 
classrooms and Building #3 and the introduction of four new structures.  In total, 11,520 square 
feet of class room space will be eliminated with the demolition of the portable classrooms and 
3,840 square feet for the demolition of Building #3.   A new 4,800 square foot building is 
proposed in place of Building #3 which will accommodate three classrooms.  Another 4,740 
square foot structure is proposed at the north end of the campus which will contain five new 
classrooms.  Also, two new buildings are proposed behind the gymnasium; one for a locker 
room and the other for dance and mat classrooms.  In total, 15,360 square feet of existing floor 
area will be demolished and 17,740 square feet of floor area will be introduced.    
 
Parking 
There is no increase in parking demand from the proposal.  The three classrooms structures are 
a total of 14,092 square feet.  The 3,648 square foot looker room building is ancillary to the 
gymnasium and will not create an increased demand on parking.  There is a net decrease in the 
floor area of the primary use of 1,268 square feet.  The application increases onsite parking 
from 148 spaces to 150 spaces.     
 
CEQA 
This project is categorically exempt under Section 15314 of the California Environmental Quality 
Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the Californa Code of Regulations. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends approval of the Coastal Development permit for Application #18-041 based 
on the following Conditions and Findings for Approval.   
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
1. The project approval consists of a Coastal Development Permit to construct four new 

buildings on the New Brighton Middle School campus. Three buildings will accommodate 
classrooms and one building will be ancillary locker rooms for the existing gymnasium.   
Twelve existing portable class rooms and one existing class room building will be 
demolished.  There is no increase in required onsite parking.  The proposed project is 
approved as indicated on the final plans reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Commission on June 7, 2018, except as modified through conditions imposed by the 
Planning Commission during the hearing. 
 

2. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically 
requested and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department.  Any 
significant changes to the size or parking of the structure shall require Planning Commission 
approval.   

 
FINDINGS 

 
A.  The application, subject to the conditions imposed, secure the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
 
 Planning Department Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the project.  The 

proposal conforms to the General Plan and Zoning Ordinance in terms of use.  The project 

5.A

Packet Pg. 95



 
 

 

conforms to the applicable requirements of the Local Coastal Program, including meeting 
the requirements for provision of public and private parking, pedestrian access, and traffic. 

 
B.  This project is categorically exempt under Section 15314 of the California 

Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

 
This project consists of a minor addition to an existing school within existing school grounds 
where the addition does not increase original student capacity by more than 25% or ten 
classrooms. 

 
COASTAL FINDINGS 

D. Findings Required.  
1. A coastal permit shall be granted only upon adoption of specific written factual 

findings supporting the conclusion that the proposed development conforms to 
the certified Local Coastal Program, including, but not limited to: 

a. A statement of the individual and cumulative burdens imposed on public 
access and recreation opportunities based on applicable factors identified 
pursuant to subsection (D)(2) of this section. The type of affected public 
access and recreation opportunities shall be clearly described; 

b. An analysis based on applicable factors identified in subsection (D)(2) of this 
section of the necessity for requiring public access conditions to find the 
project consistent with the public access provisions of the Coastal Act; 

c. A description of the legitimate governmental interest furthered by any access 
conditioned required; 

d. An explanation of how imposition of an access dedication requirement 
alleviates the access burdens identified. 

 

• The proposed development conforms to the City’s certified Local 
Coastal Plan (LCP).  The specific, factual findings, as per CMC Section 
17.46.090(D) are as follows: 

 
2. Require Project-Specific Findings. In determining any requirement for public 

access, including the type of access and character of use, the city shall 
evaluate and document in written findings the factors identified in subsections 
(D)(2)(a) through (e), to the extent applicable. The findings shall explain the 
basis for the conclusions and decisions of the city and shall be supported by 
substantial evidence in the record. If an access dedication is required as a 
condition of approval, the findings shall explain how the adverse effects which 
have been identified will be alleviated or mitigated by the dedication. As used in 
this section, “cumulative effect” means the effect of the individual project in 
combination with the effects of past projects, other current projects, and 
probable future projects, including development allowed under applicable 
planning and zoning. 

a. Project Effects on Demand for Access and Recreation. Identification of 
existing and open public access and coastal recreation areas and facilities in 
the regional and local vicinity of the development. Analysis of the project’s 
effects upon existing public access and recreation opportunities. Analysis of 
the project’s cumulative effects upon the use and capacity of the identified 
access and recreation opportunities, including public tidelands and beach 
resources, and upon the capacity of major coastal roads from subdivision, 

5.A

Packet Pg. 96



 
 

 

intensification or cumulative buildout. Projection for the anticipated demand 
and need for increased coastal access and recreation opportunities for the 
public. Analysis of the contribution of the project’s cumulative effects to any 
such projected increase. Description of the physical characteristics of the site 
and its proximity to the sea, tideland viewing points, upland recreation areas, 
and trail linkages to tidelands or recreation areas. Analysis of the importance 
and potential of the site, because of its location or other characteristics, for 
creating, preserving or enhancing public access to tidelands or public 
recreation opportunities; 

 

• The proposed project is located at 620 Monterey Avenue.  The school 
is not located in an area with coastal access.  The school will not have 
an effect on public trails or beach access. 

 
b. Shoreline Processes. Description of the existing shoreline conditions, 

including beach profile, accessibility and usability of the beach, history of 
erosion or accretion, character and sources of sand, wave and sand 
movement, presence of shoreline protective structures, location of the line of 
mean high tide during the season when the beach is at its narrowest 
(generally during the late winter) and the proximity of that line to 
existing structures, and any other factors which substantially characterize or 
affect the shoreline processes at the site. Identification of anticipated changes 
to shoreline processes at the site. Identification of anticipated changes to 
shoreline processes and beach profile unrelated to the proposed 
development. Description and analysis of any reasonably likely changes, 
attributable to the primary and cumulative effects of the project, to: wave and 
sand movement affecting beaches in the vicinity of the project; the profile of 
the beach; the character, extent, accessibility and usability of the beach; and 
any other factors which characterize or affect beaches in the vicinity. Analysis 
of the effect of any identified changes of the project, alone or in combination 
with other anticipated changes, will have upon the ability of the public 
to use public tidelands and shoreline recreation areas; 

 

• The proposed project is located along Monterey Avenue.  No portion of 
the project is located along the shoreline or beach. 

 
c. Historic Public Use. Evidence of use of the site by members of the general 

public for a continuous five-year period (such use may be seasonal). Evidence 
of the type and character of use made by the public (vertical, lateral, blufftop, 
etc., and for passive and/or active recreational use, etc.). Identification of 
any agency (or person) who has maintained and/or improved the area subject 
to historic public use and the nature of the maintenance performed and 
improvements made. Identification of the record owner of the area historically 
used by the public and any attempts by the owner to prohibit public use of the 
area, including the success or failure of those attempts. Description of the 
potential for adverse impact on public use of the area from the proposed 
development (including but not limited to, creation of physical or psychological 
impediments to public use); 

 

• There is not a history of public use on the subject lot related to coastal 
access.  The property is a public facility and utilized as a school. 

5.A

Packet Pg. 97



 
 

 

 
d. Physical Obstructions. Description of any physical aspects of the development 

which block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the tidelands, 
public recreation areas, or other public coastal resources or to see the 
shoreline; 

 

• The proposed project is located at 620 Monterey Avenue.  The project 
will not block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the 
tidelands, public recreation areas, or views to the shoreline. 

 
e. Other Adverse Impacts on Access and Recreation. Description of the 

development’s physical proximity and relationship to the shoreline and any 
public recreation area. Analysis of the extent of which buildings, walls, 
signs, streets or other aspects of the development, individually or 
cumulatively, are likely to diminish the public’s use of tidelands or lands 
committed to public recreation. Description of any alteration of the aesthetic, 
visual or recreational value of public use areas, and of any diminution of the 
quality or amount of recreational use of public lands which may be attributable 
to the individual or cumulative effects of the development. 

 

• The proposed project is located on a public school property that will not 
negatively impact access and recreation.  The project does not 
diminish the public’s use of tidelands or lands committed to public 
recreation nor alter the aesthetic, visual, or recreational value of public 
use areas. 

 
3. Required Findings for Public Access Exceptions. Any determination that one of 

the exceptions of subsection (F)(2) applies to a development shall be supported 
by written findings of fact, analysis and conclusions which address all of the 
following: 

a. The type of access potentially applicable to the site involved (vertical, 
lateral, bluff top, etc.) and its location in relation to the fragile coastal resource 
to be protected, the agricultural use, the public safety concern, or the military 
facility which is the basis for the exception, as applicable; 

b. Unavailability of any mitigating measures to manage the type, character, 
intensity, hours, season or location of such use so that agricultural resources, 
fragile coastal resources, public safety, or military security, as applicable, are 
protected; 

c. Ability of the public, through another reasonable means, to reach the same 
area of public tidelands as would be made accessible by an accessway on the 
subject land. 

 

• The project is not requesting a Public Access Exception, therefore 
these findings do not apply. 

 
4. Findings for Management Plan Conditions. Written findings in support of a 

condition requiring a management plan for regulating the time and manner or 
character of public access use must address the following factors, as 
applicable: 

5.A

Packet Pg. 98



 
 

 

a. Identification and protection of specific habitat values including the reasons 
supporting the conclusions that such values must be protected by limiting the 
hours, seasons, or character of public use; 

 

• The project is located on a public school campus without sensitive 
habitat areas. 

 
b. Topographic constraints of the development site; 

 

• The project is located on a flat lot. 
 

c. Recreational needs of the public; 
 

• The project does not impact the recreational needs of the public. 
 

d. Rights of privacy of the landowner which could not be mitigated by setting the 
project back from the access way or otherwise conditioning the development; 

e. The requirements of the possible accepting agency, if an offer of dedication is 
the mechanism for securing public access; 

f. Feasibility of adequate setbacks, fencing, landscaping, and other methods as 
part of a management plan to regulate public use. 

 
5. Project complies with public access requirements, including submittal of 

appropriate legal documents to ensure the right of public access whenever, 
and as, required by the certified land use plan and Section 17.46.010 (coastal 
access requirements); 

 

• No legal documents to ensure public access rights are required for the 
proposed project. 

 
6. Project complies with visitor-serving and recreational use policies; 

 
SEC. 30222 
The use of private lands suitable for visitor-serving commercial recreational 
facilities designed to enhance public opportunities for coastal recreation shall 
have priority over private residential, general industrial, or general commercial 
development, but not over agriculture or coastal-dependent industry. 

 

• The project involves a school within the public facilities zone. 
 

SEC. 30223 
Upland areas necessary to support coastal recreational uses shall be reserved 
for such uses, where feasible. 
 

• The project involves a school within the public facilities zone. 
 
c) Visitor-serving facilities that cannot be feasibly located in existing developed 
areas shall be located in existing isolated developments or at selected points of 
attraction for visitors. 
 

• The project involves a school within the public facilities zone. 

5.A

Packet Pg. 99



 
 

 

 
7. Project complies with applicable standards and requirements for provision of 

public and private parking, pedestrian access, alternate means of 
transportation and/or traffic improvements; 

 

• The project involves the construction of four school buildings. The 
project complies with applicable standards and requirements for 
provision for parking, pedestrian access, alternate means of 
transportation, and/or traffic improvements. 

 
8. Review of project design, site plan, signing, lighting, landscaping, etc., by the 

city’s architectural and site review committee, and compliance with adopted 
design guidelines and standards, and review committee recommendations; 

 

• The project complies with the design guidelines and standards 
established by the Municipal Code. 

 
9. Project complies with LCP policies regarding protection of public landmarks, 

protection or provision of public views; and shall not block or detract from 
public views to and along Capitola’s shoreline; 

 

• The project will not negatively impact public landmarks and/or public 
views. The project will not block or detract from public views to and 
along Capitola’s shoreline. 

 
10. Demonstrated availability and adequacy of water and sewer services; 

 

• The project is located on a legal lot of record with available water and 
sewer services. 

 
11. Provisions of minimum water flow rates and fire response times; 

 

• The project is located within a mile of the Capitola fire department. 
Water is available at the location. 

 
12. Project complies with water and energy conservation standards; 

 

• The project is for school classrooms and a locker room. The GHG 
emissions for the project are projected at less than significant impact. 
All water fixtures must comply with the low-flow standards of the 
Soquel Creek Water District. 

 
13. Provision of park dedication, school impact, and other fees as may be required; 

 

• The project will be required to pay appropriate fees prior to building 
permit issuance. 

 
14. Project complies with coastal housing policies, and applicable ordinances 

including condominium conversion and mobile home ordinances; 
 

• The project does not involve a condo conversion or mobile homes. 

5.A

Packet Pg. 100



 
 

 

 
15. Project complies with natural resource, habitat, and archaeological protection 

policies; 
 

• Conditions of approval have been included to ensure compliance with 
established policies. 

 
16. Project complies with Monarch butterfly habitat protection policies; 

 

• The project is outside of any identified sensitive habitats, specifically 
areas where Monarch Butterflies have been encountered, identified 
and documented. 

 
17. Project provides drainage and erosion and control measures to protect marine, 

stream, and wetland water quality from urban runoff and erosion; 
 

• Conditions of approval have been included to ensure compliance with 
applicable erosion control measures. 

 
18. Geologic/engineering reports have been prepared by qualified professional for 

projects in seismic areas, geologically unstable areas, or coastal bluffs, and 
project complies with hazard protection policies including provision of 
appropriate setbacks and mitigation measures; 

 

• The property is not located in the geological hazards zone.  
 
19. All other geological, flood and fire hazards are accounted for and mitigated in 

the project design; 
 

• Conditions of approval have been included to ensure the project 
complies with geological, flood, and fire hazards and are accounted for 
and will be mitigated in the project design. 

 
20. Project complies with shoreline structure policies; 

 

• The proposed project is not located along a shoreline. 
 
21. The uses proposed are consistent with the permitted or conditional uses of the 

zoning district in which the project is located; 
 

• This use is an allowed use consistent with the public facilities zoning 
district. 

 
22. Conformance to requirements of all other city ordinances, zoning requirements, 

and project review procedures; and 
 

• The project conforms to the requirements of all city ordinances, zoning 
requirements, and project development review and development 
procedures. 

 
23. Project complies with the Capitola parking permit program as follows: 

5.A

Packet Pg. 101



 
 

 

a. The village area preferential parking program areas and conditions as 
established in Resolution No. 2596 and no permit parking of any kind shall be 
allowed on Capitola Avenue. 

b. The neighborhood preferential parking program areas are as established in 
Resolution Numbers 2433 and 2510. 

c. The village area preferential parking program shall be limited to three hundred 
fifty permits. 

d. Neighborhood permit areas are only in force when the shuttle bus is operating 
except that: 

i. The Fanmar area (Resolution No. 2436) program may operate year-
round, twenty-four hours a day on weekends, 

ii. The Burlingame, Cliff Avenue/Grand Avenue area (Resolution No. 
2435) have year-round, twenty-four hour per day “no public parking.” 

e. Except as specifically allowed under the village parking program, no 
preferential residential parking may be allowed in the Cliff Drive parking areas. 

f. Six Depot Hill twenty-four minute “Vista” parking spaces (Resolution No. 2510) 
shall be provided as corrected in Exhibit A attached to the ordinance codified 
in this section and found on file in the office of the city clerk. 

g. A limit of fifty permits for the Pacific Cove parking lot may be issued to village 
permit holders and transient occupancy permit holders. 

h. No additional development in the village that intensifies use and requires 
additional parking shall be permitted. Changes in use that do not result in 
additional parking demand can be allowed and exceptions for onsite parking 
as allowed in the land use plan can be made. 

 

• The project site is not located within the area of the Capitola parking 
permit program. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. 620 Monterey Plans 
 
Prepared By: Katie Herlihy 
  Community Development Director 

5.A

Packet Pg. 102



CO
NS

UL
TA

NT
S

SC
O

PE
 O

F 
W

O
RK

AP
N:

03
-6

10
-1

38
ZO

NI
NG

:
PF

-S
NO

 C
HA

NG
E 

PR
O

PO
SE

D

CU
RR

EN
T 

US
E:

EL
EM

EN
TA

RY
 &

 M
ID

DL
E 

SC
HO

O
L

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
US

E:
NO

 C
HA

NG
E

AC
RE

AG
E:

11
.4

06
 A

C 
 =

  4
96

,8
50

 S
F

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
ST

RU
CT

UR
ES

:

CL
AS

SR
O

O
M

S 
&

 R
ES

TR
O

O
M

S
FO

O
TP

RI
NT

:
8,

88
1 

SF

AR
T 

&
 W

O
O

DS
HO

P
FO

O
TP

RI
NT

:
3,

55
2 

SF

LO
CK

ER
 R

O
O

M
 &

 D
AN

CE
/M

AT
 C

LA
SS

RO
O

M
S:

FO
O

TP
RI

NT
:

6,
72

0 
SF

TO
TA

L:
19

,1
53

 S
F 

(1
 S

TO
RY

)

PR
O

JE
CT

 D
AT

A
SH

EE
T 

LI
ST

DE
FE

RR
ED

 A
PP

RO
VA

LS
TH

E 
FO

LL
O

W
IN

G 
IT

EM
S 

SH
AL

L B
E 

SU
BM

IT
TE

D 
FO

R 
DE

FE
RR

ED
 A

PP
RO

VA
L:

XX
XX

XX
XX

XX
XX

XX
XX

XX
XX

XX
XX

ST
AT

EM
EN

T 
O

F 
GE

NE
RA

L C
O

NF
O

RM
AN

CE
TH

ES
E 

DR
AW

IN
GS

 A
ND

/O
R 

SP
EC

IF
IC

AT
IO

NS
 A

ND
/O

R 
CA

LC
UL

AT
IO

NS
 LI

ST
ED

 B
EL

O
W

 H
AV

E 
BE

EN
 P

RE
PA

RE
D 

BY
 O

TH
ER

 D
ES

IG
N 

PR
O

FE
SS

IO
NA

LS
 O

R
CO

NS
UL

TA
NT

S 
W

HO
 A

RE
 LI

CE
NS

ED
 A

ND
/O

R 
AU

TH
O

RZ
IE

D 
TO

 P
RE

PA
RE

 S
UC

H 
DR

AW
IN

GS
 IN

 T
HI

S 
ST

AT
E.

  T
HE

SE
 D

O
CU

M
EN

TS
 H

AV
E 

BE
EN

EX
AM

IN
ED

 B
Y 

M
E 

FO
R 

CO
M

PL
IA

NC
E 

W
IT

H 
TH

E 
DE

SI
GN

 IN
TE

NT
 O

F 
RE

GU
LA

TI
O

NS
 A

ND
 T

HE
 P

RO
JE

CT
 S

PE
CI

FI
CA

TI
O

NS
 P

RE
PA

RE
D 

BY
 M

E.

IT
EM

S 
LI

ST
ED

 B
EL

O
W

 A
RE

 A
CC

EP
TA

BL
E 

FO
R 

IN
CO

RP
O

RA
TI

O
N 

IN
TO

 T
HE

 C
O

NS
TR

UC
TI

O
N 

O
F 

TH
IS

 P
RO

JE
CT

 F
O

R 
W

HI
CH

 I 
AM

 T
HE

 IN
DI

VI
DU

AL
DE

SI
GN

AT
ED

 T
O

 B
E 

IN
 G

EN
ER

AL
 R

ES
PO

NS
IB

LE
 C

HA
RG

E 
(O

R 
FO

R 
W

HI
CH

 I 
HA

VE
 B

EE
N 

DE
LE

GA
TE

D 
RE

SP
O

NS
IB

IL
IT

Y 
FO

R 
TH

IS
 P

O
RT

IO
N 

O
F 

TH
E

W
O

RK
)

LI
ST

 O
F 

IT
EM

S 
RE

VI
EW

ED
 A

ND
 A

CC
EP

TE
D:

 A
LL

 IT
EM

S 
IN

 T
HE

 S
HE

ET
 IN

DE
X,

 E
XC

EP
T 

AR
CH

IT
EC

TU
RA

L D
RA

W
IN

GS
.

SI
GN

AT
UR

E 
O

F 
AR

CH
IT

EC
T

DA
TE

LI
CE

NS
E 

NU
M

BE
R

EX
PI

RA
TI

O
N 

DA
TE

GE
NE

RA
L

G0
.1

TI
TL

E 
SH

EE
T

T0
.1

SU
RV

EY
 (E

XI
ST

IN
G 

CO
ND

IT
IO

NS
)

A1
.1

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

A2
.1

0
FL

O
O

R 
PL

AN
S 

- C
LA

SS
RO

O
M

S
A2

.1
1

FL
O

O
R 

PL
AN

S 
- A

RT
 &

 W
O

O
DS

HO
P

A2
.1

2
FL

O
O

R 
PL

AN
S 

- L
O

CK
ER

 R
O

O
M

A3
.1

0
EL

EV
AT

IO
NS

 - 
CL

AS
SR

O
O

M
S

A3
.1

1
EL

EV
AT

IO
NS

 - 
AR

T 
&

 W
O

O
DS

HO
P

A3
.1

2
EL

EV
AT

IO
NS

 - 
LO

CK
ER

 R
O

O
M

A3
.1

3
EL

EV
AT

IO
NS

 - 
LO

CK
ER

 R
O

O
M

AD
M

IN
IS

TR
AT

IV
E 

RE
Q

UI
RE

M
EN

TS
1.

A 
M

IN
IM

UM
 O

F 
48

 H
O

UR
S 

NO
TI

CE
 T

O
 T

HE
 F

IR
E 

DE
PA

RT
M

EN
T 

IS
 R

EQ
UI

RE
D 

PR
IO

R 
TO

 IN
SP

EC
TI

O
N

2.
TH

E 
JO

B 
CO

PI
ES

 O
F 

TH
E 

BU
IL

DI
NG

 A
ND

 F
IR

E 
SY

ST
EM

S 
PL

AN
S 

AN
D 

PE
RM

IT
S 

M
US

T 
BE

 O
N-

SI
TE

 D
UR

IN
G 

IN
SP

EC
TI

O
NS

@
AT

A.
B.

AN
CH

O
R 

BO
LT

AC
AS

PH
AL

T 
CO

NC
RE

TE
AC

C.
 

AC
CE

SS
IB

LE
A.

D.
AR

EA
 D

RA
IN

AD
D'

L
AD

DI
TI

O
NA

L
AD

J. 
HT

.
AD

JU
ST

ED
 H

EI
GH

T
A.

F.
F.

AB
O

VE
 F

IN
IS

H 
FL

O
O

R
AG

G.
AG

GR
EG

AT
E

AL
T.

AL
TE

RN
AT

E
AL

UM
.

AL
UM

IN
UM

AM
P

AM
PE

RE
 O

R 
AM

PE
RA

GE
AP

A
AM

ER
IC

AN
 P

LY
W

O
O

D 
AS

SO
CI

AT
IO

N
AP

PR
O

X.
AP

PR
O

XI
M

AT
E

A.
S.

L.
AB

O
VE

 S
EA

 LE
VE

L
AS

TM
AM

ER
IC

AN
 S

O
CI

ET
Y 

O
F 

TE
ST

IN
G 

M
AT

ER
IA

LS
B.

F.
F.

BE
LO

W
 F

IN
IS

H 
FL

O
O

R
BL

K'
G 

/ B
LK

NG
BL

O
CK

IN
G

BM
BE

AM
BT

M
. /

 B
O

TT
.

BO
TT

O
M

BT
W

N
BE

TW
EE

N
B.

U.
R.

BU
IL

T-
UP

 R
O

O
FI

NG
CA

LC
S.

CA
LC

UL
AT

IO
NS

CE
M

. P
LA

ST
.

CE
M

EN
T 

PL
AS

TE
R

C.
I.

CA
ST

 IR
O

N
C.

J.
CO

NS
TR

UC
TI

O
N 

JO
IN

T
C.

L.
CE

NT
ER

 LI
NE

CL
G.

CE
IL

IN
G

C.
M

.U
.

CO
NC

RE
TE

 M
AS

O
NR

Y 
UN

IT
CO

L.
CO

LU
M

N
CO

NC
.

CO
NC

RE
TE

CO
NT

R.
CO

NT
RA

CT
O

R
CS

M
T

CA
SE

M
EN

T
(D

) O
R 

DE
M

O
DE

M
O

LI
SH

DB
L.

DO
UB

LE
DB

L.
 P

L.
DO

UB
LE

 P
LA

TE
DE

G.
DE

GR
EE

DE
T.

 O
R 

DT
L.

DE
TA

IL
D.

F.
DR

IN
KI

NG
 F

O
UN

TA
IN

DI
A.

DI
AM

ET
ER

DN
DO

W
N

DS
DO

W
NS

PO
UT

DW
DI

SH
W

AS
HE

R
(E

)
EX

IS
TI

NG
EA

.
EA

CH
EL

EC
T.

EL
EC

TR
IC

AL
EL

EV
.

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
E.

J.
EX

PA
NS

IO
N 

JO
IN

T
EM

BE
D.

EM
BE

DM
EN

T
E.

P.
S.

EX
TR

UD
ED

 P
O

LY
ST

YR
EN

E 
FO

AM
EX

T.
EX

TE
RI

O
R

F.
D.

FL
O

O
R 

DR
AI

N
FD

N.
 / 

FO
UN

D.
FO

UN
DA

TI
O

N
F.

F.
FI

NI
SH

ED
 F

LO
O

R
F.

G.
FU

EL
 G

AS
F.

J. 
/ F

LR
. J

ST
.

FL
O

O
R 

JO
IS

T
FL

AS
H'

G
FL

AS
HI

NG
FL

R.
FL

O
O

R
FL

UO
R.

FL
UO

RE
SC

EN
T

F.
O

.S
.

FA
CE

 O
F 

ST
UD

FR
.

FR
EN

CH
FT

G.
FO

O
TI

NG
GA

.
GA

UG
E

GA
LV

.
GA

LV
AN

IZ
ED

GF
CI

GR
O

UN
D 

FA
UL

T 
CI

RC
UI

T 
IN

TE
RR

UP
TE

R
GI

R
GI

RD
ER

GL
U-

LA
M

GL
UE

-L
AM

IN
AT

ED
G.

S.
M

.
GA

LV
AN

IZ
ED

 S
HE

ET
 M

ET
AL

GY
P.

 B
D.

GY
PS

UM
 B

O
AR

D
H.

B.
HO

SE
 B

IB
B

HD
HO

LD
 D

O
W

N
H.

H.
HE

AD
 H

EI
GH

T
HM

F
HO

RI
ZO

NT
AL

 M
ET

AL
 F

RA
M

E
HO

RI
Z.

 
HO

RI
ZO

NT
AL

HR
.

HO
UR

IN
FO

.
IN

FO
RM

AT
IO

N
IN

SU
L

IN
SU

LA
TI

O
N

IN
T.

IN
TE

RI
O

R
JS

T.
JO

IS
T

LB
.

PO
UN

D
LE

V.
 / 

LV
L

LE
VE

L
LT

.
LI

GH
T

LT
W

T.
LI

GH
TW

EI
GH

T

GO
VE

RN
IN

G 
CO

DE
S

ST
UD

IO
11

7

A

B

C

D

10
1A

10
1A

M
AT

CH
 LI

NE
TA

RG
ET

30 A6
.0

1

W
O

RK
 P

O
IN

T
TA

RG
ET

1A
RE

VI
SI

O
N

AD
DE

ND
UM

 LE
TT

ER
SU

PP
LE

M
EN

TA
L I

NS
TR

UC
TI

O
N

RE
VI

SI
O

N 
CL

O
UD

10 A9
.0

3

IN
TE

RI
O

R 
EL

EV
AT

IO
NS

DE
TA

IL
 ID

EN
TI

FI
CA

TI
O

N
SH

EE
T 

NU
M

BE
R 

/ E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

10 A5
.0

2

SE
CT

IO
N 

CU
T

SE
CT

IO
N 

ID
EN

TI
FI

CA
TI

O
N

SH
EE

T 
NU

M
BE

R

DE
TA

IL
 R

EF
ER

EN
CE

DE
TA

IL
 ID

EN
TI

FI
CA

TI
O

N
SH

EE
T 

NU
M

BE
R

CT
-1

FI
NI

SH
 S

YM
BO

L
FI

NI
SH

 M
AT

ER
IA

L I
ND

EN
TI

FI
CA

TI
O

N

W
IN

DO
W

 S
YM

BO
L

W
IN

DO
W

 N
UM

BE
R

DO
O

R 
SY

M
BO

L
DO

O
R 

NU
M

BE
R

A

RO
O

M
 ID

RO
O

M
 N

AM
E 

&
 N

UM
BE

R

1

AR
CH

IT
EC

TU
RA

L W
AL

L
PA

NE
L S

YM
BO

L
1

SH
EE

T 
NO

TE
 S

YM
BO

L
1

EL
EV

AT
IO

N 
TA

G

CO
LU

M
N 

GR
ID

 LI
NE

NU
M

BE
R 

HO
RI

ZO
NT

AL
LE

TT
ER

S 
VE

RT
IC

AL

AB
BR

EV
IA

TI
O

NS

SY
M

BO
LS

PR
O

JE
CT

 LO
CA

TI
O

N
M

AX
.

M
AX

IM
UM

M
BR

S
M

EM
BE

RS
M

.D
.F

.
M

ED
IU

M
-D

EN
SI

TY
 F

IB
ER

BO
AR

D
AG

G.
M

AN
UF

AC
TU

RE
R

M
IN

.
M

IN
IM

UM
M

.S
UI

TE
 / 

M
.S

.
M

AS
TE

R 
SU

IT
E

(N
)

NE
W

NA
T.

NA
TI

O
NA

L
N.

I.C
.

NO
T 

IN
 C

O
NT

RA
CT

N.
T.

S.
NO

T 
TO

 S
CA

LE
O

.B
.

O
N 

CE
NT

ER
O

.F
.C

.I.
O

W
NE

R-
FU

RN
IS

HE
D,

 C
O

NT
RA

CT
O

R-
IN

ST
AL

LE
D

O
.H

. /
 O

PP
.

O
PP

O
SI

TE
 H

AN
D

P.
B.

PU
SH

 B
UT

TO
N

PE
RF

.
PE

RF
O

RA
TE

D
PL

PL
AT

E
PL

. H
T.

PL
AT

E 
HE

IG
HT

PL
YW

D.
PL

YW
O

O
D

PR
PA

IR
PS

I
PO

UN
DS

 P
ER

 S
Q

UA
RE

 IN
CH

P.
T.

 
PR

ES
SU

RE
 T

RE
AT

ED
PW

DR
.

PO
W

DE
R

R.
RI

SE
R

RE
CO

M
.

RE
CO

M
M

EN
DA

TI
O

N
RE

IN
F.

RE
IN

FO
RC

IN
G

RF
TR

.
RA

FT
ER

RM
.

RO
O

M
R.

W
. /

 R
W

D
RE

DW
O

O
D

SA
F

SE
LF

-A
DH

ES
IV

E 
FL

AS
HI

NG
S.

A.
SO

LI
D 

CO
RE

S.
A.

D.
SE

E 
AR

CH
IT

EC
TU

RA
L D

RA
W

IN
GS

S.
C.

D.
SE

E 
CI

VI
L D

RA
W

IN
GS

SC
HE

D.
SC

HE
DU

LE
SD

SM
O

KE
 D

ET
EC

TO
R

S.
E.

D.
SE

E 
EL

EC
TR

IC
AL

 D
RA

W
IN

GS
S.

F.
 / 

SQ
. F

T.
SQ

UA
RE

 F
O

O
T

SH
R.

SH
EA

R
SI

M
.

SI
M

IL
AR

S.
L.

D.
SE

E 
LA

ND
SC

AP
E 

DR
AW

IN
GS

S.
M

.D
.

SE
E 

M
EC

HA
NI

CA
L D

RA
W

IN
GS

S.
P.

D.
SE

E 
PL

UM
BI

NG
 D

RA
W

IN
GS

SQ
.

SQ
UA

RE
SQ

. I
N.

SQ
UA

RE
 IN

CH
S.

S.
D.

SE
E 

ST
RU

CT
UR

AL
 D

RA
W

IN
GS

ST
ST

RA
P

ST
O

R.
ST

O
RA

GE
ST

R1
ST

RU
CT

UR
AL

 1
S.

W
.

SH
EA

R 
W

AL
L O

R 
SW

IT
CH

SY
M

.
SY

M
BO

L
S3

S 
/ S

4S
SM

O
O

TH
 3

 O
R 

4 
SI

DE
S

TE
M

P.
 / 

T
TE

M
PE

RE
D

T.
H.

TH
RE

SH
O

LD
T.

 / 
TH

ER
M

TH
ER

M
O

ST
AT

T.
O

.C
.

TO
P 

O
F 

CU
RB

T.
O

.F
.

TO
P 

O
F 

FL
O

O
R

T.
O

.G
.B

.
TO

P 
O

F 
GR

AD
E 

BE
AM

T.
O

.P
. /

 T
/P

TO
P 

O
F 

PL
AT

E
T.

 O
F 

PL
TO

P 
O

F 
PL

AT
E

T.
O

.S
.

TO
P 

O
F 

SL
AB

T.
O

.W
.

TO
P 

O
F 

W
AL

L
TP

O
TH

ER
M

O
PL

AS
TI

C 
PO

LY
O

LE
FI

N
TR

NS
M

.
TR

AN
SO

M
T&

G
TO

NG
UE

 A
ND

 G
RO

O
VE

TY
P.

TY
PI

CA
L

U.
N.

O
.

UN
LE

SS
 N

O
TE

D 
O

TH
ER

W
IS

E
UT

L.
 / 

UT
IL

.
UT

IL
IT

Y
V

VO
LT

S 
O

R 
VO

LT
AG

E
VE

RT
.

VE
RT

IC
AL

V.
I.F

.
VE

RI
FY

 IN
 F

IE
LD

W
D.

W
O

O
D

W
.A

.
W

RO
UG

HT
 IR

O
N

W
L

W
AL

L
W

.P
.

W
EA

TH
ER

PR
O

O
F

W
P.

 S
CR

D.
W

EE
P 

SC
RE

ED
W

.W
.F

.
W

EL
DE

D 
W

IR
E 

FA
BR

IC
W

.W
.M

.
W

EL
DE

D 
W

IR
E 

M
ES

H
W

/D
W

AS
HE

R 
/ D

RY
ER

# 
PO

UN
D 

O
R 

NU
M

BE
R

20
16

 C
AL

IF
O

RN
IA

 A
DM

IN
IS

TR
AT

IV
E 

CO
DE

, T
IT

LE
 2

4,
 P

AR
T 

1
20

16
 C

AL
IF

O
RN

IA
 B

UI
LD

IN
G 

CO
DE

, T
IT

LE
 2

4,
 P

AR
T 

2,
 V

O
LU

M
ES

 1
 A

ND
 2

20
16

 C
AL

IF
O

RN
IA

 E
LE

CT
RI

CA
L C

O
DE

, T
IT

LE
 2

4,
 P

AR
T 

3
20

16
 C

AL
IF

O
RN

IA
 M

EC
HA

NI
CA

L C
O

DE
, T

IT
LE

 2
4,

 P
AR

T 
4

20
16

 C
AL

IF
O

RN
IA

 P
LU

M
BI

NG
 C

O
DE

, T
IT

LE
 2

4,
 P

AR
T 

5
20

16
 C

AL
IF

O
RN

IA
 E

NE
RG

Y 
CO

DE
, T

IT
LE

 2
4,

 P
AR

T 
6

20
16

 C
AL

IF
O

RN
IA

 F
IR

E 
CO

DE
, T

IT
LE

 2
4,

 P
AR

T 
9

20
16

 C
AL

IF
O

RN
IA

 E
XI

ST
IN

G 
BU

IL
DI

NG
 C

O
DE

, T
IT

LE
 2

4,
 P

AR
T 

10
20

16
 C

AL
IF

O
RN

IA
 G

RE
EN

 B
UI

LD
IN

G 
ST

AN
DA

RD
S,

 T
IT

LE
 2

4,
 P

AR
T 

11
20

16
 C

AL
IF

O
RN

IA
 R

EF
ER

EN
CE

D 
ST

AN
DA

RD
S,

 T
IT

LE
 2

4,
 P

AR
T 

12
TI

TL
E 

19
 C

CR
 S

TA
TE

 F
IR

E 
M

AR
SH

AL
 R

EG
UL

AT
IO

NS
AC

I 3
18

-1
4 

CO
DE

 A
ND

 C
O

M
M

EN
TA

RY
20

10
 A

DA
 S

TA
ND

AR
DS

 F
O

R 
AC

CE
SS

IB
LE

 D
ES

IG
N

AI
SC

 M
AN

UA
L O

F 
ST

EE
L C

O
NS

TR
UC

TI
O

N,
 1

4T
H 

ED
IT

IO
N

20
15

 A
NS

I/A
W

C 
ND

S-
15

 R
EV

IS
ED

 N
AT

IO
NA

L D
ES

IG
N 

SP
EC

IF
IC

AT
IO

N 
FO

R 
W

O
O

D 
CO

NS
TR

UC
TI

O
N

AS
TM

 S
TA

ND
AR

DS
 C

HA
NG

ES
 (E

XA
M

PL
E:

 A
ST

M
 E

64
8-

04
 S

TA
ND

AR
D 

TE
ST

 M
ET

HO
D 

FO
R 

CR
IT

IC
AL

 R
AD

IA
NT

 F
LU

X 
 O

F 
FL

O
O

R)
20

12
 IC

C 
30

0-
12

 S
TA

ND
AR

DS
 O

N 
BL

EA
CH

ER
S,

 F
O

LD
IN

G 
TE

LE
SC

O
PI

C 
SE

AT
IN

G 
&

 G
RA

ND
ST

AN
DS

20
16

 N
FP

A 
13

-1
6 

AU
TO

M
AT

IC
 S

PR
IN

KL
ER

 S
YS

TE
M

S,
 W

IT
H 

20
16

 C
BC

 A
M

EN
DM

EN
TS

20
13

 N
FP

A 
14

-1
3 

IN
ST

AL
LA

TI
O

N 
O

F 
ST

AN
DP

IP
E,

 P
RI

VA
TE

 H
YD

RA
NT

 A
ND

 H
O

SE
 S

YS
TE

M
S,

 W
IT

H 
20

16
 C

BC
 A

M
EN

DM
EN

TS
20

13
 N

FP
A 

17
-1

3 
DR

Y 
CH

EM
IC

AL
 E

XT
IN

GU
IS

HI
NG

 S
YS

TE
M

S
20

13
 N

FP
A 

17
A-

13
 W

ET
 C

HE
M

IC
AL

 E
XT

IN
GU

IS
HI

NG
 S

YS
TE

M
S

20
16

 N
FP

A 
20

-1
6 

IN
ST

AL
LA

TI
O

N 
O

F 
ST

AT
IO

NA
RY

 P
UM

PS
 F

O
R 

FI
RE

 P
RO

TE
CT

IO
N

20
13

 N
FP

A 
22

-1
3 

W
AT

ER
 T

AN
KS

 F
O

R 
PR

IV
AT

E 
FI

RE
 P

RO
TE

CT
IO

N
20

16
 N

FP
A 

24
-1

6 
IN

ST
AL

LA
TI

O
N 

O
F 

PR
IV

AT
E 

FI
RE

 S
ER

VI
CE

 M
AI

NS
 A

ND
 T

HE
IR

 A
PP

UR
TE

NA
NC

ES
, W

IT
H 

20
16

 C
BC

 A
M

EN
DM

EN
TS

20
08

 N
FP

A 
25

-1
3C

A 
IN

SP
EC

TI
O

N,
 T

ES
TI

NG
, M

AI
NT

EN
AN

CE
 O

F 
W

AT
ER

-B
AS

ED
 F

IR
E 

PR
O

TE
CT

IO
N 

SY
ST

EM
S,

 C
AL

IF
O

RN
IA

 E
DI

TI
O

N
20

16
 N

FP
A 

72
-1

6 
NA

TI
O

NA
L F

IR
E 

AL
AR

M
 C

O
DE

, W
IT

H 
20

16
 C

BC
 A

M
EN

DM
EN

TS
20

16
 N

FP
A 

11
0-

16
 E

M
ER

GE
NC

Y 
AN

D 
ST

AN
DB

Y 
PO

W
ER

 S
YS

TE
M

S
20

15
 N

FP
A 

20
01

-1
5 

CL
EA

N 
AG

EN
T 

FI
RE

 E
XT

IN
GU

IS
HI

NG
 S

YS
TE

M
S,

 W
IT

H 
20

16
 C

BC
 A

M
EN

DM
EN

TS
UL

 S
TA

ND
AR

D 
CH

AN
GE

S 
(E

XA
M

PL
E:

 2
00

5 
UL

 3
8 

M
AN

UA
L O

PE
RA

TI
NG

 S
IG

NA
L B

O
XE

S)
20

03
 U

L 4
64

-0
3 

AU
DI

BL
E 

SI
GN

AL
 A

PP
LI

AN
CE

S
19

99
 U

L 5
21

-9
9 

HE
AT

 D
ET

EC
TO

RS
 F

O
R 

FI
RE

 P
RO

TE
CT

IV
E 

SI
GN

AL
IN

G 
SY

ST
EM

S
20

02
 U

L 1
97

1 
SI

GN
AL

IN
G 

DE
VI

CE
S 

FO
R 

HE
AR

IN
G 

IM
PA

IR
ED

SO
Q

UE
L U

NI
O

N 
EL

EM
EN

TA
RY

SC
HO

O
L D

IS
TR

IC
T

62
0 

M
O

NT
ER

EY
 A

VE
NU

E,
 C

AP
IT

O
LA

, C
AL

IF
O

RN
IA

 9
50

10

CO
AS

TA
L D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PE
RM

IT
 S

ET
NE

W
 B

RI
GH

TO
N 

M
ID

DL
E 

SC
HO

O
L

62
0 

M
O

NT
ER

EY
 A

VE
,

CA
PI

TO
LA

, C
A 

95
01

0
AP

N:
 0

3-
61

0-
13

8

CI
VI

L  
EN

GI
N

EE
R:

IF
LA

ND
 E

NG
IN

EE
RS

53
00

 S
O

Q
UE

L A
VE

NU
E,

 S
UI

TE
 1

01
SA

NT
A 

CR
UZ

, C
A 

95
06

2
(T

) 8
31

.4
26

.5
31

3 
 (F

) 8
31

.4
26

.1
76

3
IF

LA
ND

EN
GI

NE
ER

S.
CO

M
CO

NT
AC

T:
 D

AV
ID

 R
AM

SE
Y

EL
EC

TR
IC

AL
  E

N
GI

N
EE

R:
AU

RU
M

 C
O

NS
UL

TI
NG

 E
NG

IN
EE

RS
60

 G
AR

DE
N 

CO
UR

T,
 S

UI
TE

 2
10

M
O

NT
ER

EY
, C

A 
93

94
0

(T
) 8

31
.6

46
.3

33
0 

(F
) 8

31
.6

46
.3

33
6

AC
EM

B.
CO

M
CO

NT
AC

T:
 M

AR
TI

N 
PE

RE
Z

M
EC

HA
N

IC
AL

  E
N

GI
N

EE
R:

AX
IO

M
 E

NG
IN

EE
RS

46
01

 W
. W

AL
NU

T 
ST

. -
SU

IT
E 

#1
SO

Q
UE

L,
 C

A 
95

07
3

(T
) 8

31
.4

64
.4

32
0 

(F
) 8

31
.4

64
.4

32
3

AX
IO

M
EN

GI
NE

ER
S.

CO
M

CO
NT

AC
T:

 S
EA

N 
RI

NG

PL
UM

BI
N

G:
AX

IO
M

 E
NG

IN
EE

RS
46

01
 W

. W
AL

NU
T 

ST
. -

SU
IT

E 
#1

SO
Q

UE
L,

 C
A 

95
07

3
(T

) 8
31

.4
64

.4
32

0 
(F

) 8
31

.4
64

.4
32

3
AX

IO
M

EN
GI

NE
ER

S.
CO

M
CO

NT
AC

T:
 S

EA
N 

RI
NG

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
O

N 
M

AN
AG

ER
:

KR
AM

ER
 P

RO
JE

CT
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

40
20

 M
O

O
RP

AR
K 

AV
E,

 #
22

0
SA

N 
JO

SE
, C

A 
95

11
7

(T
) 4

08
.2

46
.6

32
7 

(F
) 4

08
.2

46
.6

35
4

KR
AM

ER
PD

C.
CO

M
CO

NT
AC

T:
 R

IC
K 

KR
AM

ER

SI
TE

LO
CA

TI
O

N

IN
CR

EM
EN

T 
1;

  I
NC

LU
DI

NG
:

CI
VI

L E
NG

IN
EE

RI
NG

: S
IT

E 
GR

AD
IN

G,
 D

RA
IN

AG
E,

 S
IT

E 
UT

IL
IT

IE
S,

 A
ND

 P
AV

IN
G.

LA
ND

SC
AP

E 
AR

CH
IT

EC
TU

RE
: S

IT
E 

PL
AN

TI
NG

GE
O

TE
CH

NI
CA

L:
 S

O
IL

 A
ND

 P
AD

 P
RE

PA
RA

TI
O

N.
AR

CH
IT

EC
TU

RA
L:

 S
IT

E 
SI

GN
AG

E,
 P

AR
KI

NG
 S

TR
IP

IN
G,

 F
EN

CI
NG

, A
ND

 P
LA

NT
ER

 W
AL

LS
.

M
EC

HA
NI

CA
L:

 S
IT

E 
GA

S 
SI

TE
 D

IS
TR

IB
UT

IO
N.

EL
EC

TR
IC

AL
: S

IT
E 

EL
EC

TR
IC

AL
, D

AT
A 

&
 LI

GH
TI

NG

IN
CR

EM
EN

T 
2:

NE
W

 1
-S

TO
RY

 C
LA

SS
RO

O
M

 B
UI

LD
IN

G 
AN

D 
RE

ST
RO

O
M

S
NE

W
 1

 S
TO

RY
 A

RT
 A

ND
 W

O
O

DS
HO

P 
BU

IL
DI

NG
NE

W
 1

 S
TO

RY
 LO

CK
ER

 R
O

O
M

, D
AN

CE
 A

ND
 M

AT
 R

O
O

M

AR
CH

IT
EC

T

O
W

NE
R

CO
NS

UL
TA

NT

SH
EE

T 
NA

M
E:

IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
S

RE
V

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

PR
O

FE
SS

IO
NA

L S
TA

M
P:

PR
O

JE
CT

:

ST
AR

T 
DA

TE
:  

   
   

  

PR
O

JE
CT

 C
O

DE
:  

   
   

   
   

 
 

SE
NB

-0
1

DR
AW

N 
BY

:
   

   
   

 A
F

CH
EC

KE
D 

BY
:

   
   

   
 X

X

©
 2

01
7

25
0 

W
AS

HB
UR

N 
AV

EN
UE

,
CA

PI
TO

LA
, C

A 
95

01
0

AG
EN

CY
 A

PP
RO

VA
L:

DA
TE

SH
EE

T 
NU

M
BE

R:NA
M

E 
- L

IN
E 

1
NA

M
E 

- L
IN

E 
2

AD
DR

ES
S

CI
TY

, S
TA

TE
, Z

IP

A 
R 

C 
H 

I T
 E

 C
 T

 U
 R

 E
  +

  P
 L 

A 
N 

N 
I N

 G

W
W

W
.M

AD
I-A

RC
H.

CO
M

P 
I  

80
0.

72
5.

05
71

30
3 

PO
TR

ER
O

 S
TR

EE
T,

 S
UI

TE
 7

B 
I S

AN
TA

 C
RU

Z,
 C

A 
95

06
0

40
 S

O
UT

H 
FI

RS
T 

ST
RE

ET
| 

SA
N 

JO
SE

, C
A 

95
11

3
45

0 
CH

AD
BO

UR
NE

 R
O

AD
, S

UI
TE

 G
 |

 F
AI

RF
IE

LD
, C

A 
94

53
4

CO
AS

TA
L D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

PE
RM

IT
 S

ET

NE
W

 B
RI

GH
TO

N 
M

.S
. &

CA
PI

TO
LA

 E
.S

.

 X
X 

TO
TA

L S
HE

ET
S

-
CP

D 
SE

T
12

/7
/1

7

 NEW BRIGHTON M.S. & CAPITOLA E.S.FOR SOQUEL UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SO
Q

UE
L U

NI
O

N 
EL

EM
EN

TA
RY

SC
HO

O
L D

IS
TR

IC
T

62
0 

M
O

NT
ER

EY
 A

VE
CA

PI
TO

LA
, C

A 
95

01
0

G0
.1

CO
VE

R
SH

EE
T

C6
.0

   
   

   
   

  S
TO

RM
W

AT
ER

 C
O

NT
RO

L P
LA

N 
- 

NO
RT

H
C6

.1
   

   
   

   
  S

TO
RM

W
AT

ER
 C

O
NT

RO
L P

LA
N 

- 
SO

UT
H

C6
.2

   
   

   
   

  S
TO

RM
W

AT
ER

 C
O

NT
RO

L C
AL

CU
LA

TI
O

NS

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

20
 M

o
n

te
re

y 
P

la
n

s 
 (

62
0 

M
o

n
te

re
y 

A
ve

n
u

e)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

20
 M

o
n

te
re

y 
P

la
n

s 
 (

62
0 

M
o

n
te

re
y 

A
ve

n
u

e)



(E
) G

YM
NA

SI
UM

DS
A 

# 
46

23
0

9,
98

8 
SF

(E) A
CCESSI

BLE PARKING

DSA
 # 46230

(E
) M

UL
TI

-U
SE

DS
A 

# 
10

59
30

12
,8

33
 S

F
(E

) S
TU

DE
NT

 S
ER

VI
CE

S
DS

A 
# 

10
56

08
3,

36
0 

SF

Ac
ce

ss
ib

le
To

ile
ts

DS
A 

# 
88

12
,

23
94

8

Tr
as

h
En

clo
su

re

Bi
ke

 P
ar

ki
ng

Ac
ce

ss
ib

le
To

ile
ts

DS
A 

# 
88

12
,

23
94

8

Al
co

ve

To
ile

t

Cu
st

od
ia

n

M
ec

h.

Re
so

ur
ce

Bo
ys

To
ile

ts
Gi

rls
To

ile
ts

M
ec

h.

St
.

MONTEREY AVE

WASH
BURN AVE

M
ON

TE
RE

Y A
VE

Pa
rk

in
g

Lo
t

Pa
rk

in
g

Lo
t

(E) CLASSROOMS - 40 & 50 WINGS
DSA # 23948, 51602, 34870 & 102737

8,720 SF

(E
) D

IS
TR

IC
T 

O
FF

IC
E

NO
N-

DS
A

2,
03

4 
SF

(E
) D

IS
TR

IC
T 

O
FF

IC
E

NO
N-

DS
A

3,
80

0 
SF

DEMO (E) PORTABLE
DSA # 51602

960 SF

(E
) C

LA
SS

RO
O

M
S

RO
O

M
 8

5 
&

 8
6

DS
A 

# 
47

08
6

3,
22

6 
SF

DEMO (E) PORTABLE
DSA # 51602

960 SF

(E
) E

LE
M

 A
DM

IN
BU

IL
DI

NG
DS

A 
# 

88
12

,
25

34
7

1,
19

8 
SF

(E
) K

IN
DE

RG
AR

DE
N

DS
A 

# 
23

94
8

1,
22

0 
SF

24'-5"

20'-3"

(E) ASPHALT

SC
HO

O
L G

AR
DE

N

SC
HO

O
L

GA
RD

EN

ST
O

RA
GE

SH
ED

CURB

STOP

DEMO
Relocatable
DSA # 49042

(E) Relocatable
DSA # 51062

DEMO
(E)Relocatable
DSA # 49042

ART GEN.
ED

(N
) O

NE
ST

O
RY

CL
AS

SR
O

O
M

FLUSH CURB DROP OFF

6

7

9

9

5

5

BU
S

BU
S

11

16

YE
ILD

DEMO
(E)Relocatable
DSA # 49042

(E) Classroom
Relocatable
DSA # 51062

DEMO
Relocatable
DSA # 51062

DEMO
Relocatable

DSA # Unknown

DEMO
(E) Relocatable

DSA # 49042

Relocate
(E) Classroom
DSA # 51062

DEMO
(E) Relocatable

DSA # 49042

DEMO
Relocatable
DSA # 51062

DEMO
(E) Relocatable

DSA # 49042

(N
)  

RE
ST

RO
O

M
S

(N) ONE STORY CLASSROOMS
INCREMENT 3

WOOD
SHOP

DEMO

(N
) G

YM
NA

SI
UM

LO
CK

ER
 R

O
O

M
S 

AN
D

CL
AS

SR
O

O
M

S
IN

CR
EM

EN
T 

2

(E
) A

SP
HA

LT

(E
) T

UR
F

(E
) T

UR
F

(E
) T

UR
F

20'-0"

60
'-0

"

28
'-1

"

21'-0"

ASSUMED PROP. LINE

10'-0"10'-0"

20'-0"

ASSUMED PROP. LI
NE

ASSUMED PROP. LINE

11'-0"

10'-0
" TYP.

14
'-4

"

(N) ONE STORY CLASSROOMS
INCREMENT 2

(E) CLASSROOMS - 10 WING
DSA # 8812, 23948

7,394 SF

(E) CLASSROOMS - 30 WING
DSA # 14071 & 35502

6,740 SF

(E) CLASSROOMS - 20 WING
DSA #8812 & 23948

7,487 SF

1

2

2

2

3

5

6

7

7 7

8

8

8

8

8
9

9

7
12

13

7

12

15

AC
CE

SS
IB

LE
 P

AT
H 

O
F 

TR
AV

EL
 (P

.O
.T

.) 
AS

 IN
DI

CA
TE

D,
 IS

 A
 C

O
M

M
O

N 
BA

RR
IE

R 
FR

EE
AC

CE
SS

 R
O

UT
E 

W
IT

HO
UT

 A
NY

 A
BR

UP
T 

VE
RT

IC
AL

 C
HA

NG
ES

 E
XC

EE
DI

NG
 1

/2
" B

EV
EL

ED
AT

 1
:2

 M
AX

IM
UM

 S
LO

PE
, E

XC
EP

T 
TH

AT
 F

IR
M

, A
ND

 S
M

O
O

TH
. P

AS
SI

NG
 S

PA
CE

S
(1

13
3B

.7
.1

) A
T 

LE
AS

T 
60

" X
 6

0"
 A

RE
 LO

CA
TE

D 
NO

T 
M

O
RE

 T
HA

N 
20

0'
 A

PA
RT

. P
AR

TS
 O

F
P.

O
.T

.W
IT

H 
CO

NT
IN

UO
US

 G
RA

DI
EN

TS
 H

AV
E 

60
" L

EV
EL

 A
RE

AS
 (1

13
3B

.7
.5

) N
O

T 
M

O
RE

TH
AN

 4
00

' A
PA

RT
. T

HE
 C

RO
SS

-S
LO

PE
 D

O
ES

 N
O

T 
EX

CE
ED

 2
%

 A
ND

 S
LO

PE
 IN

TH
E

DI
RE

CT
IO

N 
O

T 
TR

AV
EL

 A
ND

 IS
 LE

SS
 T

HA
N 

5%
 U

NL
ES

S 
O

TH
ER

W
IS

E 
IN

DI
CA

TE
D.

 (P
O

T)
SH

AL
L B

E 
M

AI
NT

AI
NE

D 
FR

EE
 O

F 
O

VE
RH

AN
GI

NG
 O

BS
TR

UC
TI

O
NS

 T
O

 8
0"

 M
IN

IM
UM

(1
13

3B
.8

.2
) A

ND
 P

RO
TR

UD
IN

G 
O

BJ
EC

TS
 G

RE
AT

ER
 T

HA
N 

4"
 P

RO
JE

CT
IO

N 
FR

O
M

 W
AL

L
AN

D 
AB

O
VE

 2
7"

 A
ND

 LE
SS

 T
HA

N 
80

" (
11

33
B.

8.
6)

AC
CE

SS
IB

LE
 P

AT
H 

O
F 

TR
AV

EL

AC
CE

SS
IB

LE
 P

AT
H 

O
F 

TR
AV

EL

KE
YN

O
TE

S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

DE
SI

GN
 P

RO
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

 IN
 G

EN
ER

AL
 R

ES
PO

N
SI

BL
E 

CH
AR

GE
 S

TA
TE

M
EN

T:
 T

HE
 P

O
T

ID
EN

TI
FI

ED
 IN

 T
HE

SE
 C

O
NS

TR
UC

TI
O

N 
DO

CU
M

EN
TS

 IS
 C

O
M

PL
IA

NT
 W

IT
H 

TH
E 

CU
RR

EN
T

AP
PL

IC
AB

LE
 C

AL
IF

O
RN

IA
 B

UI
LD

IN
G 

CO
DE

 A
CC

ES
SI

BI
LI

TY
 P

RO
VI

SI
O

NS
 F

O
R 

PA
TH

 O
F

TR
AV

EL
 R

EQ
UI

RE
M

EN
TS

 F
O

R 
AL

TE
RA

TI
O

N
S,

 A
DD

IT
IO

N
S 

AN
D 

ST
RU

CT
UR

AL
 R

EP
AI

RS
.

AS
 P

AR
T 

O
F 

TH
E 

DE
SI

GN
 O

F 
TH

IS
 P

RO
JE

CT
, T

HE
 P

O
T 

W
AS

 E
XA

M
IN

ED
 A

ND
 A

NY
EL

EM
EN

TS
, C

O
M

PO
NE

NT
S 

O
R 

PO
RT

IO
NS

 O
F 

TH
E 

PO
T 

TH
AT

 W
ER

E 
DE

TE
RM

IN
ED

 T
O

 B
Y

NO
NC

O
M

PL
IA

NT
 1

) H
AV

E 
BE

EN
 ID

EN
TI

FI
ED

 A
ND

 2
) T

HE
 C

O
RR

EC
TI

VE
 W

O
RK

 N
EC

ES
SA

RY
TO

 B
RI

NG
 T

HE
M

 IN
TO

 C
O

M
PL

IA
NC

E 
HA

S 
BE

EN
 IN

CL
UD

ED
 W

IT
HI

N 
TH

E 
SC

O
PE

 O
F 

TH
IS

PR
O

JE
CT

'S
 W

O
RK

 T
HR

O
UG

H 
DE

TA
IL

S,
 D

RA
W

IN
GS

 A
ND

 S
PE

CI
FI

CA
TI

O
NS

 IN
CO

RP
O

RA
TE

D
IN

TO
 T

HE
SE

 C
O

NS
TR

UC
TI

O
N 

DO
CU

M
EN

TS
. A

NY
 N

O
NC

O
M

PL
IA

NT
 E

LE
M

EN
TS

,
CO

M
PO

NE
NT

S 
O

R 
PO

RT
IO

NS
 O

F 
TH

E 
PO

T 
TH

AT
 W

IL
L N

O
T 

BE
 C

O
RR

EC
TE

D 
BY

 T
HI

S
PR

O
JE

CT
 B

AS
ED

 O
N 

VA
LU

AT
IO

N 
TH

RE
SH

O
LD

 LI
M

IT
AT

IO
NS

 O
R 

A 
FI

ND
IN

G 
O

F
UN

RE
AS

O
NA

BL
E 

HA
RD

SH
IP

 A
RE

 S
O

 IN
DI

CA
TE

D 
IN

 T
HE

SE
 C

O
NS

TR
UC

TI
O

N 
DO

CU
M

EN
TS

.
DU

RI
NG

 C
O

NS
TR

UC
TI

O
N,

 IF
 P

O
T 

IT
EM

S 
W

IT
HI

N 
TH

E 
SC

O
PE

 O
F 

TH
E 

PR
O

JE
CT

RE
PR

ES
EN

TE
D 

AS
 C

O
DE

 C
O

M
PL

IA
NT

 A
RE

 F
O

UN
D 

TO
 B

E 
NO

NC
O

NF
O

RM
IN

G 
BE

YO
ND

RE
AS

O
NA

BL
E 

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
O

N 
TO

LE
RA

NC
ES

 T
HE

Y 
SH

AL
L B

E 
BR

O
UG

HT
 IN

TO
CO

M
PL

IA
NC

E 
W

IT
H 

TH
E 

CB
C 

AS
 P

AR
T 

O
F 

TH
IS

 P
RO

JE
CT

 B
Y 

M
EA

NS
 O

F 
A 

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
O

N
CH

AN
GE

 D
O

CU
M

EN
T.

(E
) A

CC
ES

SI
BL

E 
PA

RK
IN

G,
 D

SA
 #

46
23

0

(E
) F

IR
E 

HY
DR

AN
T

(E
) T

O
W

 S
IG

NA
GE

, S
EE

 D
ET

AI
L X

/A
1.

2,
 D

SA
 #

01
-1

05
38

2

(E
) A

CC
ES

SI
BL

E 
PA

RK
IN

G 
SI

GN
, D

SA
 #

01
-1

05
38

2

(N
) F

LU
SH

 D
RO

P 
O

FF
 C

UR
B 

- S
EE

 C
IV

IL

(N
) A

CC
ES

SI
BL

E 
PA

RK
IN

G 
- S

EE
 D

ET
AI

L 1
/A

1.
2 

&
 C

IV
IL

(N
) M

ET
AL

 S
HA

DE
 S

TR
UC

TU
RE

 P
ER

 P
C#

 0
4-

11
41

67

(N
) 4

2"
 T

AL
L G

UA
RD

RA
IL

 - 
SE

E 
DE

TA
IL

 3
/A

1.
3

(N
) C

O
NC

 S
EA

T 
W

AL
L,

 T
YP

 - 
SE

E 
DE

TA
IL

 5
/A

1.
2

10 11
(N

) H
YD

RA
TI

O
N 

ST
AT

IO
N 

- S
EE

 D
ET

AI
L 1

/A
1.

3

(N
) B

IO
-R

ET
EN

TI
O

N 
AR

EA
 - 

SE
E 

CI
VI

L

AC
CE

SS
IB

LE
RE

GU
LA

R
 S

TD
 (V

AN
)

(E
) P

AR
KI

NG
  S

TA
LL

S

DE
M

O
 P

AR
KI

NG
 S

TA
LL

S

(N
) P

AR
KI

NG
 S

TA
LL

S

 Δ TO
TA

L

PA
RK

IN
G 

CA
LC

UL
AT

IO
NS

6(
1)

1 3(
1)

2(
1)

8 
(2

)

14
1

61 60 -1 14
0

12
(N

) 6
'-0

" T
AL

L C
HA

IN
LI

NK
 F

EN
CE

 W
IT

H 
PV

C 
PR

IV
AC

Y 
SL

AT
S

13
(E

) C
HA

IN
LI

NK
 F

EN
CE

14
(N

) B
US

 P
AR

KI
NG

 O
NL

Y 
SI

GN
 - 

SE
E 

6/
A1

.2

15
(N

) S
TO

P 
SI

GN
 - 

SE
E 

8/
A1

.2

16
(N

) D
O

 N
O

T 
EN

TE
R 

SI
GN

 - 
SE

E 
7/

A1
.2

A1
.1

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
S

AR
CH

IT
EC

T

O
W

NE
R

CO
NS

UL
TA

NT

SH
EE

T 
NA

M
E:

IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
S

RE
V

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

PR
O

FE
SS

IO
NA

L S
TA

M
P:

PR
O

JE
CT

:

ST
AR

T 
DA

TE
:  

   
   

  

PR
O

JE
CT

 C
O

DE
:  

   
   

   
   

 
 

SE
NB

-0
0

DR
AW

N 
BY

:
   

   
   

 A
F

CH
EC

KE
D 

BY
:

   
   

   
 X

X

©
 2

01
7

25
0 

W
AS

HB
UR

N 
AV

EN
UE

,
CA

PI
TO

LA
, C

A 
95

01
0

AG
EN

CY
 A

PP
RO

VA
L:

DA
TE

SH
EE

T 
NU

M
BE

R:NA
M

E 
- L

IN
E 

1
NA

M
E 

- L
IN

E 
2

AD
DR

ES
S

CI
TY

, S
TA

TE
, Z

IP

A 
R 

C 
H 

I T
 E

 C
 T

 U
 R

 E
  +

  P
 L 

A 
N 

N 
I N

 G

W
W

W
.M

AD
I-A

RC
H.

CO
M

P 
I  

80
0.

72
5.

05
71

30
3 

PO
TR

ER
O

 S
TR

EE
T,

 S
UI

TE
 7

B 
I S

AN
TA

 C
RU

Z,
 C

A 
95

06
0

40
 S

O
UT

H 
FI

RS
T 

ST
RE

ET
| 

SA
N 

JO
SE

, C
A 

95
11

3
45

0 
CH

AD
BO

UR
NE

 R
O

AD
, S

UI
TE

 G
 |

 F
AI

RF
IE

LD
, C

A 
94

53
4

IN
CR

EM
EN

T 
1:

SI
TE

 W
O

RK
 A

T
NE

W
 B

RI
GH

TO
N 

M
.S

. &
CA

PI
TO

LA
 E

.S
.

 X
X 

TO
TA

L S
HE

ET
S

A
LF

AR
11

/2
0/

17

INC. 1 SITE WORK AT NEW BRIGHTON M.S. & CAPITOLA E.S.FOR SOQUEL UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SO
Q

UE
L U

NI
O

N 
EL

EM
EN

TA
RY

SC
HO

O
L D

IS
TR

IC
T

62
0 

M
O

NT
ER

EY
 A

VE
CA

PI
TO

LA
, C

A 
95

01
0

JU
NE

 3
0,

 2
01

9
No

. C
-2

38
73

S
TA

E
O

F

TI L

DE S

E CN

O
LA

C
IF

R
AI N

TI

R
A

HC

E TC

RE
NE

W
AL

 D
AT

E

DA
VI

D 
R.

RH
O

DE
S

1
O

VE
R

AL
L 

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
NO

RT
H

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

20
 M

o
n

te
re

y 
P

la
n

s 
 (

62
0 

M
o

n
te

re
y 

A
ve

n
u

e)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

20
 M

o
n

te
re

y 
P

la
n

s 
 (

62
0 

M
o

n
te

re
y 

A
ve

n
u

e)



1

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

20
 M

o
n

te
re

y 
P

la
n

s 
 (

62
0 

M
o

n
te

re
y 

A
ve

n
u

e)



2

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

20
 M

o
n

te
re

y 
P

la
n

s 
 (

62
0 

M
o

n
te

re
y 

A
ve

n
u

e)



0

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

20
 M

o
n

te
re

y 
P

la
n

s 
 (

62
0 

M
o

n
te

re
y 

A
ve

n
u

e)



1

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

20
 M

o
n

te
re

y 
P

la
n

s 
 (

62
0 

M
o

n
te

re
y 

A
ve

n
u

e)



2

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

20
 M

o
n

te
re

y 
P

la
n

s 
 (

62
0 

M
o

n
te

re
y 

A
ve

n
u

e)



3

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

20
 M

o
n

te
re

y 
P

la
n

s 
 (

62
0 

M
o

n
te

re
y 

A
ve

n
u

e)



AR
CH

IT
EC

T

O
W

NE
R

CO
NS

UL
TA

NT

SH
EE

T 
NA

M
E:

IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
S

RE
V

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

PR
O

FE
SS

IO
NA

L S
TA

M
P:

PR
O

JE
CT

:

ST
AR

T 
DA

TE
:  

   
   

  

DR
AW

N 
BY

:
   

   
   

JM

CH
EC

KE
D 

BY
:

   
   

   
 R

T

©
 2

01
7

AG
EN

CY
 A

PP
RO

VA
L:

DA
TE

SH
EE

T 
NU

M
BE

R:

A 
R 

C 
H 

I T
 E

 C
 T

 U
 R

 E
  +

  P
 L 

A 
N 

N 
I N

 G

W
W

W
.M

AD
I-A

RC
H.

CO
M

P 
I  

80
0.

72
5.

05
71

30
3 

PO
TR

ER
O

 S
TR

EE
T,

 S
UI

TE
 7

B 
I S

AN
TA

 C
RU

Z,
 C

A 
95

06
0

30
0 

SO
UT

H 
FI

RS
T 

ST
RE

ET
, S

UI
TE

 3
47

 |
 S

AN
 JO

SE
, C

A 
95

11
3

45
0 

CH
AD

BO
UR

NE
 R

O
AD

, S
UI

TE
 G

 |
 F

AI
RF

IE
LD

, C
A 

94
53

4

SO
Q

UE
L U

NI
O

N 
EL

EM
EN

TA
RY

SC
HO

O
L D

IS
TR

IC
T

62
0 

M
O

NT
ER

EY
 A

VE
CA

PI
TO

LA
, C

A 
95

01
0

5
3
0
0
 S

O
Q

U
E

L
 A

V
E

N
U

E
, 

S
U

IT
E

 1
0
1
,

S
A

N
T

A
 C

R
U

Z
, 

C
A

 9
5
0
6
2

 T
E

L
 (

8
3
1
) 

4
2
6
-5

3
1
3

 F
A

X
 (

8
3
1
) 

4
2
6
-1

7
6
3

w
w

w
.i
fl
a
n
d
e
n
g
in

e
e
rs

.c
o
m

25
0 

W
AS

HB
UR

N 
AV

EN
UE

,
CA

PI
TO

LA
, C

A 
95

01
0

PR
O

JE
CT

 C
O

DE
:  

   
   

   
   

 
 S

EN
B-

01
-IN

C-
1

25
0 

W
AS

HB
UR

N 
AV

EN
UE

,
CA

PI
TO

LA
, C

A 
95

01
0

IN
CR

EM
EN

T 
1:

SI
TE

 W
O

RK
 A

T
NE

W
 B

RI
GH

TO
N 

M
.S

. &
CA

PI
TO

LA
 E

.S
.

INC. 1 SITE WORK AT NEW BRIGHTON M.S. & CAPITOLA E.S.FOR SOQUEL UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

-
DS

A 
SU

BM
IT

TA
L

11
/2

0/
17

DS
A 

BA
CK

CH
EC

K
2/

8/
18

-

ID
E

N
T

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

 S
T

A
M

P
D

IV
. 

O
F

 T
H

E
 S

T
A

T
E

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

A
C

 _
_
_
_
_
_
 F

L
S

 _
_
_
_
_
_
 S

S
_
_
_
_
_
_

D
A

T
E

A
P

P
L
 #

0
1
-1

1
7
1
1
3

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 113

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

20
 M

o
n

te
re

y 
P

la
n

s 
 (

62
0 

M
o

n
te

re
y 

A
ve

n
u

e)



AR
CH

IT
EC

T

O
W

NE
R

CO
NS

UL
TA

NT

SH
EE

T 
NA

M
E:

IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
S

RE
V

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

PR
O

FE
SS

IO
NA

L S
TA

M
P:

PR
O

JE
CT

:

ST
AR

T 
DA

TE
:  

   
   

  

DR
AW

N 
BY

:
   

   
   

JM

CH
EC

KE
D 

BY
:

   
   

   
 R

T

©
 2

01
7

AG
EN

CY
 A

PP
RO

VA
L:

DA
TE

SH
EE

T 
NU

M
BE

R:

A 
R 

C 
H 

I T
 E

 C
 T

 U
 R

 E
  +

  P
 L 

A 
N 

N 
I N

 G

W
W

W
.M

AD
I-A

RC
H.

CO
M

P 
I  

80
0.

72
5.

05
71

30
3 

PO
TR

ER
O

 S
TR

EE
T,

 S
UI

TE
 7

B 
I S

AN
TA

 C
RU

Z,
 C

A 
95

06
0

30
0 

SO
UT

H 
FI

RS
T 

ST
RE

ET
, S

UI
TE

 3
47

 |
 S

AN
 JO

SE
, C

A 
95

11
3

45
0 

CH
AD

BO
UR

NE
 R

O
AD

, S
UI

TE
 G

 |
 F

AI
RF

IE
LD

, C
A 

94
53

4

SO
Q

UE
L U

NI
O

N 
EL

EM
EN

TA
RY

SC
HO

O
L D

IS
TR

IC
T

62
0 

M
O

NT
ER

EY
 A

VE
CA

PI
TO

LA
, C

A 
95

01
0

5
3
0
0
 S

O
Q

U
E

L
 A

V
E

N
U

E
, 

S
U

IT
E

 1
0
1
,

S
A

N
T

A
 C

R
U

Z
, 

C
A

 9
5
0
6
2

 T
E

L
 (

8
3
1
) 

4
2
6
-5

3
1
3

 F
A

X
 (

8
3
1
) 

4
2
6
-1

7
6
3

w
w

w
.i
fl
a
n
d
e
n
g
in

e
e
rs

.c
o
m

25
0 

W
AS

HB
UR

N 
AV

EN
UE

,
CA

PI
TO

LA
, C

A 
95

01
0

PR
O

JE
CT

 C
O

DE
:  

   
   

   
   

 
 S

EN
B-

01
-IN

C-
1

25
0 

W
AS

HB
UR

N 
AV

EN
UE

,
CA

PI
TO

LA
, C

A 
95

01
0

IN
CR

EM
EN

T 
1:

SI
TE

 W
O

RK
 A

T
NE

W
 B

RI
GH

TO
N 

M
.S

. &
CA

PI
TO

LA
 E

.S
.

INC. 1 SITE WORK AT NEW BRIGHTON M.S. & CAPITOLA E.S.FOR SOQUEL UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

-
DS

A 
SU

BM
IT

TA
L

11
/2

0/
17

DS
A 

BA
CK

CH
EC

K
2/

8/
18

-

ID
E

N
T

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

 S
T

A
M

P
D

IV
. 

O
F

 T
H

E
 S

T
A

T
E

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

A
C

 _
_
_
_
_
_
 F

L
S

 _
_
_
_
_
_
 S

S
_
_
_
_
_
_

D
A

T
E

A
P

P
L
 #

0
1
-1

1
7
1
1
3

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 114

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

20
 M

o
n

te
re

y 
P

la
n

s 
 (

62
0 

M
o

n
te

re
y 

A
ve

n
u

e)



AR
CH

IT
EC

T

O
W

NE
R

CO
NS

UL
TA

NT

SH
EE

T 
NA

M
E:

IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
S

RE
V

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

PR
O

FE
SS

IO
NA

L S
TA

M
P:

PR
O

JE
CT

:

ST
AR

T 
DA

TE
:  

   
   

  

DR
AW

N 
BY

:
   

   
   

JM

CH
EC

KE
D 

BY
:

   
   

   
 R

T

©
 2

01
7

AG
EN

CY
 A

PP
RO

VA
L:

DA
TE

SH
EE

T 
NU

M
BE

R:

A 
R 

C 
H 

I T
 E

 C
 T

 U
 R

 E
  +

  P
 L 

A 
N 

N 
I N

 G

W
W

W
.M

AD
I-A

RC
H.

CO
M

P 
I  

80
0.

72
5.

05
71

30
3 

PO
TR

ER
O

 S
TR

EE
T,

 S
UI

TE
 7

B 
I S

AN
TA

 C
RU

Z,
 C

A 
95

06
0

30
0 

SO
UT

H 
FI

RS
T 

ST
RE

ET
, S

UI
TE

 3
47

 |
 S

AN
 JO

SE
, C

A 
95

11
3

45
0 

CH
AD

BO
UR

NE
 R

O
AD

, S
UI

TE
 G

 |
 F

AI
RF

IE
LD

, C
A 

94
53

4

SO
Q

UE
L U

NI
O

N 
EL

EM
EN

TA
RY

SC
HO

O
L D

IS
TR

IC
T

62
0 

M
O

NT
ER

EY
 A

VE
CA

PI
TO

LA
, C

A 
95

01
0

5
3
0
0
 S

O
Q

U
E

L
 A

V
E

N
U

E
, 

S
U

IT
E

 1
0
1
,

S
A

N
T

A
 C

R
U

Z
, 

C
A

 9
5
0
6
2

 T
E

L
 (

8
3
1
) 

4
2
6
-5

3
1
3

 F
A

X
 (

8
3
1
) 

4
2
6
-1

7
6
3

w
w

w
.i
fl
a
n
d
e
n
g
in

e
e
rs

.c
o
m

25
0 

W
AS

HB
UR

N 
AV

EN
UE

,
CA

PI
TO

LA
, C

A 
95

01
0

PR
O

JE
CT

 C
O

DE
:  

   
   

   
   

 
 S

EN
B-

01
-IN

C-
1

25
0 

W
AS

HB
UR

N 
AV

EN
UE

,
CA

PI
TO

LA
, C

A 
95

01
0

IN
CR

EM
EN

T 
1:

SI
TE

 W
O

RK
 A

T
NE

W
 B

RI
GH

TO
N 

M
.S

. &
CA

PI
TO

LA
 E

.S
.

INC. 1 SITE WORK AT NEW BRIGHTON M.S. & CAPITOLA E.S.FOR SOQUEL UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

-
DS

A 
SU

BM
IT

TA
L

11
/2

0/
17

DS
A 

BA
CK

CH
EC

K
2/

8/
18

-

ID
E

N
T

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

 S
T

A
M

P
D

IV
. 

O
F

 T
H

E
 S

T
A

T
E

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

A
C

 _
_
_
_
_
_
 F

L
S

 _
_
_
_
_
_
 S

S
_
_
_
_
_
_

D
A

T
E

A
P

P
L
 #

0
1
-1

1
7
1
1
3

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 115

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

20
 M

o
n

te
re

y 
P

la
n

s 
 (

62
0 

M
o

n
te

re
y 

A
ve

n
u

e)



 

 

 
 

S T A F F  R E P O R T  

 
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 
DATE: JUNE 7, 2018 
 
SUBJECT: 105 Stockton Avenue #18-0170 APN: 035-171-21 
 

Amendment to the Master Sign Program at 103/105 Stockton Avenue to allow an 
additional wall sign in the C-V (Central Village) Zoning District. 
This project is located within the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal 
Development Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Peter Hubback 
Representative: Vahan Tchakerian, Filed: 04.17.2018 

 
APPLICANT PROPOSAL 
The applicant submitted an amendment to the Master Sign Program (MSP) for the existing 
commercial building located at 105 Stockton Avenue in the C-V (Central Village) zoning district.  
The proposed amendment is to increase the maximum sign dimensions and allow an additional 
wall sign for the tenant at 105 Stockton Avenue on the east elevation along Riverview Avenue.   
 
BACKGROUND 
Zoning Ordinance §17.57.080 outlines the process for adopting a MSP for multi-tenant 
developments.  A MSP establishes the allowed materials, letter style, height, color and 
illumination of signs for multi-tenant buildings.  A MSP is approved by the Planning Commission, 
with subsequent approvals administered by the Community Development Director or his/her 
designee for signs which comply with the program.  In 2002, a MSP was approved for 103 and 
105 Stockton Avenue (Attachment 3).   
 
The current application is the result of a code enforcement complaint.  The applicant installed 
two signs at 105 Stockton Avenue without a permit.  The two exterior signs are out of 
compliance with the master sign program.  Also included in the code enforcement were two 
large window signs that filled the entire windows.  Upon inspection, staff learned that these were 
large shower curtains which appear as signs from the exterior.  The applicant moved the curtain 
one foot back from the window to be a window display.     
 
DISCUSSION 
The applicant is requesting a change to the MSP to accommodate the signs that were installed 
and effectively allow the tenant at 105 Stockton Avenue to increase the allowed sign area of the 
sign on the awning and add a second wall sign on the side along Riverview Avenue.  The 
existing 2002 MSP is difficult to follow as it not organized well, with five requirements and 

5.B

Packet Pg. 116



 
 

 

additional conditions tied to a specific approval at the Armida Winery.  The basic elements of the 
2002 MSP include:  

• Wall signs shall be externally illuminated. 

• Letter style and sign color are subject to the Community Development Director’s 
approval. 

• Sign height shall be “typical” wall signs – 10-inches (bottom side of awning). 

• Illumination shall be down lighting consistent with the Central Village Design Guidelines 
and subject to the Community Development Director’s approval. 

• Signs shall be limited to the south elevation along Stockton Avenue and the west 
elevation along the Soquel Creek side. 

• The sign area of the sign on the copper awnings in front of the business along Stockton 
Avenue, were designed as 27 inches tall by 10 feet long (18.5 square feet), with the 
capital letters being 18 inches.  (Note: Constructed as 24 inches tall by 8 feet long) 

• The sign area of the sign on the copper awnings on the side along the Riverview path, 
was designed and built as 24 inches tall by 8 feet long (13 square feet), with the capital 
letters being 15 inches. 

 
The applicant is proposing the following two changes to the 2002 MSP: 

1. Allow the tenant at 105 Stockton Avenue to have a second sign on the wall adjacent to 
Riverview Avenue 

2. Increase the maximum sign dimensions allowed under the Master Sign Program to 32 
inches tall by 96 inches wide 

 
Staff supports the request for a second sign on the wall adjacent to Riverview Avenue because 
the applicant is on a corner parcel and allowing a second sign along Riverview Avenue is an 
allowance that currently exists for wall signs on corner lots.  Under Capitola Municipal Code 
(CMC) §17.57.070(B)(1)(a), “businesses which are located adjacent to two streets (corner) shall 
be permitted one additional wall sign, to face the second adjacent street if the business is not 
identified on a monument sign.”   
 
Staff does not support the request for larger sign dimensions.  The proposed dimensions, which 
are illustrated by the nonconforming signs currently in place at 105 Stockton Avenue, are out of 
balance with the other tenant signs.  Under CMC §17.57.060(A), Central Village signs should 
relate to their surroundings “in terms of size, shape, color, texture, and lighting so that they are 
complementary to the overall design of the building and are not in visual competition with other 
conforming signs in the area.” 
 
The previous MSP was too broad and difficult to follow, so as part of this amendment it was 
reformatted and expanded to include additional specifications.  The updated MSP can be found 
in Attachment 1 and below.   
 
Master Sign Program (MSP) 
1. Each tenant is allowed two (2) wall/awning signs 
2. Location of signs: 

a. 103 Stockton Avenue 
i. Signs may be located on the awnings on the south elevation along Stockton 

Avenue and the west elevation along Soquel Creek 
b. 105 Stockton Avenue 

i. Signs may be located on the awning on the south elevation along Stockton 
Avenue and on the wall on the east elevation along Riverview Avenue 

3. Sign Standards: 

5.B

Packet Pg. 117



 
 

 

a. Dimensions 
i. Signs may be up to 8 feet wide and 2 feet high 

b. Number of lines of text 
i. Signs may have up to two (2) lines of text 

c. Text/Lettering size 
i. Text/lettering in the first line of text shall be no greater than 12 inches in 

height 
ii. Text/lettering in the second line of text shall be at least 2 inches smaller than 

the text/lettering in the first line of text 
d. Design 

i. Signs shall relate to their surroundings in terms of shape, color, and texture 
so that they are complimentary to the overall design of the building and are 
not in visual competition with other conforming signs in the area 

e. Mounting 
i. Signs on the east and south elevations shall be attached to top of the 

awnings 
ii. Sign on the west elevation shall be attached to the wall 

f. Illumination 
i. Signs shall be externally illuminated 
ii. Illumination shall be down directed and shielded to light the signs only and 

not light trespass onto adjacent properties 
4. Sign applications that comply with the Master Sign Program shall be approved 

administratively by the Community Development Director 
 
CEQA 
This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California Environmental Quality 
Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations. The 
proposed project involves an amendment to the master sign program for an existing commercial 
space. No adverse environmental impacts were discovered during project review by either the 
Planning Department Staff or the Planning Commission.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve the Master Sign Program as updated 
by Staff and require the applicant to decrease the size of the existing signs at 105 Stockton 
Avenue based on the updated Master Sign Program and the following Conditions and Findings 
for Approval. 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
1.  The two existing 32 inch tall by 96 inch wide signs at 105 Stockton Avenue shall be reduced 

in size to 24 inches tall by 96 inches wide to conform to the amended Master Sign Program 
requirements.   

 
2.  All future signs at 103/105 Stockton Avenue shall comply with the updated Master Sign 

Program. Individual sign permits may be issued by the Community Development Director or 
designee.  

  
3.  Prior to installation of a new sign, the applicant must obtain a permit from the Community 

Development Department and Building Department. 
   
4.  Prior to operation of a new business, the applicant shall obtain a business license from the 

City of Capitola. 

5.B

Packet Pg. 118



 
 

 

 
FINDINGS 
A. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 
Planning Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the application and determined 
that the proposed Master Sign Program is allowed in the C-V Zoning District.  Future sign 
applications will comply with the requirements of the Master Sign Program.  Conditions of 
approval have been included to ensure that future signs for the commercial suites are 
consistent with the Master Sign Program, Zoning Ordinance, and General Plan. 
 

B. The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood.   
Planning Department Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the project and 
determined that the amended Master Sign Program complements the building form.  The 
MSP establishes requirements for future signs that will maintain the character and integrity 
of this commercial building within the City of Capitola. Conditions of approval have been 
included to carry out these objectives. 
 

C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 
The proposed project involves signs for an existing commercial space. No adverse 
environmental impacts were discovered during project review by either the Planning 
Department Staff or the Planning Commission. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. 103-105 Stockton Avenue - Master Sign Program 
2. 103-105 Stockton Avenue - Proposed Sign Pictures 

 
Prepared By: Matt Orbach 
  Assistant Planner 

5.B

Packet Pg. 119



Master Sign Program - 103/105 Stockton Avenue 
June 7, 2018 

 
Master Sign Program (MSP): 

1. Each tenant is allowed two (2) wall/awning signs 
2. Location of signs: 

a. 103 Stockton Avenue 
i. Signs may be located on the awnings on the south elevation along Stockton 

Avenue and the west elevation along Soquel Creek 
b. 105 Stockton Avenue 

i. Signs may be located on the awning on the south elevation along Stockton 
Avenue and on the wall on the east elevation along Riverview Avenue 

3. Sign Standards: 
a. Dimensions 

i. Signs may be up to 8 feet wide and 2 feet high 
b. Number of lines of text 

i. Signs may have up to two (2) lines of text 
c. Text/Lettering size 

i. Text/lettering in the first line of text shall be no greater than 12 inches in height 
ii. Text/lettering in the second line of text shall be at least 2 inches smaller than 

the text/lettering in the first line of text 
d. Design 

i. Signs shall relate to their surroundings in terms of shape, color, and texture so 
that they are complimentary to the overall design of the building and are not in 
visual competition with other conforming signs in the area 

e. Mounting 
i. Signs on the east and south elevations shall be attached to top of the awnings 

ii. Sign on the west elevation shall be attached to the wall 
f. Illumination 

i. Signs shall be externally illuminated 
ii. Illumination shall be down directed and shielded to light the signs only and not 

light trespass onto adjacent properties 
4. Sign applications that comply with the Master Sign Program shall be approved administratively 

by the Community Development Director 
 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

03
-1

05
 S

to
ck

to
n

 A
ve

n
u

e 
- 

M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
10

5 
S

to
ck

to
n

 A
ve

n
u

e)



5.B.b

Packet Pg. 121

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

03
-1

05
 S

to
ck

to
n

 A
ve

n
u

e 
- 

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 S
ig

n
 P

ic
tu

re
s 

 (
10

5 
S

to
ck

to
n

 A
ve

n
u

e)



5.B.b

Packet Pg. 122

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

03
-1

05
 S

to
ck

to
n

 A
ve

n
u

e 
- 

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 S
ig

n
 P

ic
tu

re
s 

 (
10

5 
S

to
ck

to
n

 A
ve

n
u

e)



5.B.b

Packet Pg. 123

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

03
-1

05
 S

to
ck

to
n

 A
ve

n
u

e 
- 

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 S
ig

n
 P

ic
tu

re
s 

 (
10

5 
S

to
ck

to
n

 A
ve

n
u

e)



5.B.b

Packet Pg. 124

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

03
-1

05
 S

to
ck

to
n

 A
ve

n
u

e 
- 

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 S
ig

n
 P

ic
tu

re
s 

 (
10

5 
S

to
ck

to
n

 A
ve

n
u

e)



5.B.b

Packet Pg. 125

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

03
-1

05
 S

to
ck

to
n

 A
ve

n
u

e 
- 

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 S
ig

n
 P

ic
tu

re
s 

 (
10

5 
S

to
ck

to
n

 A
ve

n
u

e)



5.B.b

Packet Pg. 126

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

03
-1

05
 S

to
ck

to
n

 A
ve

n
u

e 
- 

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 S
ig

n
 P

ic
tu

re
s 

 (
10

5 
S

to
ck

to
n

 A
ve

n
u

e)



 

 

 
 

S T A F F  R E P O R T  

 
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 
DATE: JUNE 7, 2018 
 
SUBJECT: Retail Marijuana Sales in Regional Commercial Zoning District   
 

Amendment to Regional Commercial Zoning District to allow a new conditional 
use for a limited number of retail cannabis establishments, subject to regulations 
and review criteria, in compliance with state law.  The proposed ordinance shall 
only go into effect if a ballot measure for a cannabis tax is passed by Capitola 
voters in November 2018.  
This zoning amendment will not impact properties in the Coastal Zone and 
therefore does not require Coastal Commission adoption.  
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: All properties in the Regional Commercial zone 
Representative: Katie Herlihy, Community Development Director 

 
BACKGROUND 
The City Council adopted Urgency Ordinance No. 989 on January 9, 2014, to prohibit 

commercial cultivation and processing of medical marijuana within the City of Capitola. In 2016, 

California voters approved Proposition 64 which decriminalized the possession, use, and sale of 

recreational marijuana for adults 21 or older and authorized the recreational sale of marijuana 

beginning on January 1, 2018. 

On March 9, 2017, the City Council held a public hearing to consider the 2014 ordinance in light 

of Proposition 64. Citing concerns with the lack of state regulations and guidance on commercial 

marijuana activities, the Council ultimately adopted an amended ordinance to ban all 

commercial marijuana uses, except for laboratory testing facilities. The City Council also 

directed staff to schedule a review of the ordinance once state regulations were adopted for 

commercial marijuana activities. 

The City Council reviewed the ordinance on February 8, 2018, and expressed support to retain 
current prohibitions on manufacturing, cultivation, and recreational delivery services. The 
Council also directed staff to return with additional information and recommendations to allow 
limited retail sales exclusively in the Regional Commercial zoning district. 
 
On April 12, 2018, the City Council directed staff to move forward with drafting amended 

ordinances for retail cannabis sales within the Regional Commercial zoning district.  The 

ordinance will be contingent on passage of a local cannabis tax. Staff will work with the City 

Attorney to craft the ordinances so they would only go into effect if a ballot measure passed in 

November 2018. 

5.C

Packet Pg. 127



 
 

 

 
DISCUSSION 
To allow retail marijuana sales in the City, the recently adopted zoning code must be amended 

to establish retail marijuana establishments as a land use type and include appropriate 

conditions and performance standards to minimize land use conflicts. Based on previous 

Council direction and a review of best practices applied by other California jurisdictions, staff 

drafted an ordinance to amend the Regional Commercial (CR) zoning district to add retail 

cannabis establishment to the land use table as a conditional use. The CR zoning district 

includes an approximately 2,800-foot-long area along 41st Avenue between Capitola Road and 

Highway 1, the Clares Street loop around the mall, and Auto Plaza Drive.  The ordinance 

includes the following standards: 

• Require a 1,000-foot minimum path of travel (buffer) distance between a retail cannabis 

establishments and schools/churches; 

• Require a minimum 500-foot buffer distance between retail cannabis establishments; 

• Require establishments to have an independent exterior entrance that is not shared with 

another business; 

• Require retailers to maintain a current Cannabis Retail License, issued through the 

Police Department, as outlined below; and 

• Require specific sign regulations to protect youth from marketing. 

 
Signs 
Many jurisdictions have adopted specific regulation for cannabis retail establishment signs in an 
effort to limit marketing to youth.  For instance, Santa Cruz County Code 17.130.110(G)(12) 
limits signs for cannabis dispensaries to one sign stating the dispensary name, address, hours 
of operation, a green cross, that is limited to six square feet in area, “shall not be directly 
illuminated, shall not contain graphics identifying cannabis, and must comply with all existing 
County regulations and restrictions regarding signs.”  Similarly, the City of Watsonville’s 
ordinance requires content “to not have reference, through language or symbol, to cannabis,” 
limits illumination to operating hours, and limits sign area to 15 square feet. 
 
The proposed ordinance includes three options for sign regulations, as follows: 
 
Option 1- Compliance with sign code. A retail cannabis establishment shall be limited to the sign 
regulations of Chapter 17.80 of the new zoning code applicable outside the Coastal Zone, as 
follows: 

• Each establishment may have a mix of the sign types provided the area of all signs on 
the property do not exceed 1 square foot per linear foot of building frontage up to a 
maximum of 50 square feet; 

• No limits to logo size or design; 

• Illumination allowed pursuant to 17.80.070.D; and 

• Signs shall otherwise be subject to a Sign Permit Application in accordance with Section 
17.132. 

 
Option 2 – Restricted marketing. 

• Limited to one exterior building sign per business location to identify the business, 

• Sign may include name of business and one logo. 

• Sign area maximum of 20 square feet, or one square foot per linear frontage of the 

5.C

Packet Pg. 128



 
 

 

business; whichever is less. 

• Sign shall not contain reference in language to cannabis. 

• Sign may have one graphic limited to the business logo or one green cross. 

• Sign shall otherwise be subject to Planning Commission review through a Sign Permit 
Application in accordance with Section 17.132. 

 
Option 3 – More restricted marketing. 

• Limited to one exterior building sign per business location to identify the business as a 
retail cannabis establishment in compliance with the following standards: 

• Sign may include name of business only; 

• Sign area maximum of 15 square feet, or one square foot per linear frontage of the 
business; whichever is less; 

• Sign may not have any reference, through symbols or language, to cannabis; 

• Sign shall not be directly illuminated except during operating hours; and 

• Sign shall otherwise be subject to Planning Commission review through a Sign Permit 
Application in accordance with Section 17.132. 

 
Cannabis Retail License 
In conjunction with the conditional use permit, staff has drafted amendments to chapter 9.61 of 
the municipal code for a separate Cannabis Retail License maintained by the Police 
Department. The regulations for a Cannabis Retail License would be outside the zoning code; 
therefore, the license ordinance is not under the purview of the Planning Commission.  Such 
licenses would require renewal on a periodic basis, and incorporate best-practice physical 
security and retail measures. In addition, the ordinance would: 

• Establish a maximum number of Cannabis Retail licenses. 

• Establish a competitive, merit-based license issuance system that accounts for legal 
cannabis retail experience, civil and criminal records, operations and security plans, and 
residency. The Council may also include criteria to promote minority- or woman-owned 
businesses, employee wages/benefits, or other factors. 

• Licenses would not run with the property and would have requirements for transferring 
locations and/or operators. 

• Require operators to undergo periodic review by the Police and Community 
Development Departments. If the retailer has serious or multiple violations, the Police 
Chief and/or Community Development Director may suspend or revoke the Cannabis 
Retail license. 

• Prohibit specific products that are attractive to children or youth and products with 
packaging or labeling that is attractive to children or youth. 

• Incorporate and require compliance with Conditional Use Permit requirements. 
 
Next Steps 
Upon recommendation by the Planning Commission, the City Council will begin review of 
amendments to the zoning ordinance, as well as amendments to Municipal Code Chapter 9.61 
(Marijuana Sales, Processing and Cultivation) to include regulations for a Cannabis Retail 
License; an amendment to the fee schedule, and a ballot measure to consider the related local 
cannabis tax. 
 
The first reading of the retail cannabis ordinance must occur by the June 28th City Council 
meeting to meet the ballot measure deadline.   
 
CEQA 

5.C

Packet Pg. 129



 
 

 

This project is categorically exempt under Section 15061 of the California Environmental Quality 
Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations. The 
proposed project involves retail sales of cannabis in an existing regional commercial zoning 
district. The activity is covered by the general rule that CEQA applies only to projects, which 
have the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment.  Where it can be seen with 
certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on 
the environment, the activity is not subject to CEQA.  No possible adverse environmental 
impacts were discovered during ordinance review by Planning Staff as the retail use will occur in 
a zone where retail use has been principally permitted. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission provide staff with direction on the prefered 
option for retail cannabis establishment signs and provide a positive recommendation to the City 
Council on the draft ordinance to conditionally allow retail cannabis establishments in the 
Regional Commercial zoning district. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
AMENDING CAPITOLA MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 17.24 “COMMERCIAL AND 

INDUSTRIAL ZONING DISTRICTS” AT SECTION 17.24.020 TO AUTHORIZE RETAIL 
CANNABIS SALES IN THE C-R – REGIONAL COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICT 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1: Section 17.24.020 of the Capitola Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 
 
 

17.20.020 Land Use Regulations 

A. Permitted Land Uses.  Table 17.24-1 identifies land uses permitted in the commercial and 

industrial zoning districts. 

TABLE 17.24-1:  PERMITTED LAND USES IN COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL ZONING DISTRICTS 

Key 
P Permitted Use 
A Administrative Permit required 
M Minor Use Permit required 
C Conditional Use Permit required 
–    Use not allowed 

Zoning District  

C-C C-R I Additional Requirements 

Residential Uses     

Single-Family Dwellings - - -  

Multi-Family Dwellings C C [9] -  

Residential Mixed Use C  C [7] - Section 17.24.040 

Public and Quasi-Public Uses     

Colleges and Trade Schools C C C  

Community Assembly C C -  

Cultural Institutions C C -  

5.C

Packet Pg. 130



 
 

 

Day Care Centers C C -  

Emergency Shelters - - P  Section 17.96.030 

Government Offices See 17.24.020.C C  

Medical Offices and Clinics See 17.24.020.C -  

Public Safety Facilities C C C  

Commercial Uses     

Alcoholic Beverage Sales C C C  

Banks  P [2] P [2] - 
 

Financial Institutions P [2] P [2] - Section 17.24.020.C 

Business Services  P [2] P [2] P 
 

Commercial Entertainment and 

Recreation 
M M - 

 

Drive-Through Facilities - C [4] -  

Eating and Drinking Establishments     

Bars and Lounges C C C  

Mobile Food Vendors - A [6]/C A [6]/C  

Restaurants and Cafes M [2] M [2] C  

Take-Out Food and Beverage M [2] M [2] -  

Food Preparation M [2] - P  

Gas and Service Stations C C -  

Liquor Stores C C -  

Lodging     

Bed and Breakfast C - -  

Hotel C C -  

Maintenance and Repair Services M C P  

Personal Services P [1] P [1] -  

Professional Offices See 17.24.020.C P  

Salvage and Wrecking - - P  

Self-Storage C - C Section 17.96.140 

Retail P  P -  

Retail Cannabis Establishment - C [10] - Section 17.20.020.D 

Vehicle Repair C C P  

Vehicle Sales and Rental C [5] C [5] -  

Vehicle Sales Display Room [8] P P -  

Wholesaling  - M [3] P  

Heavy Commercial and Industrial 

Uses 

  
  

Construction and Material Yards - - P  

Custom Manufacturing M M P  

Light Manufacturing - - P  

5.C

Packet Pg. 131



 
 

 

Warehousing and Distribution - - P  

Transportation, Communication, 

and Utility Uses 

  
  

Utilities, Major - C C  

Utilities, Minor P P P  

Recycling Collection Facilities C C C Section 17.96.130 

Wireless Communications Facilities See 17.104  

Other Uses     

Accessory Uses See 17.52  

Home Occupations A A - Chapter 17.96.040 

Permanent Outdoor Display C C C Section 17.96.100 

Temporary Uses See 17.76.180  

Urban Agriculture     

Home Garden P P -  

Community Garden M M -  

Urban Farm C C -  

 Notes: 
[1] Combination of two or more tenant suites within a multi-tenant building or greater than 5,000 sq. ft. requires Minor Use Permit 
[2] Combination of two or more tenant suites within a multi-tenant building or greater than 5,000 sq. ft. requires Conditional Use 
Permit 
[3] Without stock.  Storage of merchandise limited to samples only. 
[4] Prohibited within 100 feet of a residential zoning district or residential use including residential properties outside the City limits. 
 [5] Majority of vehicles for sale must be new. 
[6] Mobile food vendors in one location two times or less per year are regulated as a temporary use in accordance with Section 
17.96.180 and are allowed with an Administrative Permit in accordance with Municipal Code Chapter 9.36. Mobile food venders in 
one location more than two times per year require a Conditional Use Permit. 
[7] Residential uses are prohibited on the first story. 
[8] Maximum 5,000 square feet. 
[9] Allowed only as a part of a mixed-use project integrated with commercial structures located on the same development site. 
[10] Requires Cannabis Retail License (Chapter 9.61) and compliance with 17.20.020.D 
 

B. Additional Permits.  In addition to permits identified in Table 17.24-1, development projects 

in the commercial and industrial zoning districts may also require a Design Permit pursuant to 

Chapter 17.120 (Design Permits).  Modifications to a historic resource may require a Historic 

Alternation Permit pursuant to Chapter 17.84 (Historic Preservation).  Development in the 

coastal zone may require a Coastal Permit pursuant to Chapter 17.32 (Coastal Overlay Zone) 

independent of and in addition to any other required permit or approval. 

C. Office Uses in the C-C and C-R Zoning Districts. 

1. New Office Uses. In the C-C and C-R zoning districts, permits required for new office 

uses and conversions of non-office space to office use are shown in Table 17.24-2. Offices 

include professional, medical, financial institutions and governmental offices. 

2. Existing Office Uses.  Within office building utilized exclusively for office uses as of 

[effective date of Zoning Ordinance], office uses may continue to occupy ground floor 

tenant spaces.   Within such office building, a new tenant is not subject to the permit 

requirements in Table 17.24-2 until such time that the building is redeveloped or all office 

space in the ground floor level is converted to a non-office use. 

 

5.C

Packet Pg. 132



 
 

 

TABLE 17.24-2:  PERMITTED NEW OFFICE USES IN THE C-C AND C-R ZONING DISTRICTS 
Key 
P Permitted Use 
A Administrative Permit required 
M Minor Use Permit required 
C Conditional Use Permit required 
–    Use not allowed 

C-C Zoning District C-R Zoning District 

Location and Size of Office Use   

Ground floor, less than 5,000 sq. ft. P - 

Ground floor, 5,000 sq. ft. or more C - 

Upper floor above a ground floor  P P 

Located within a multi-tenant site in which the office space 

is not located within a storefront and is setback from the 

front façade. 

P - 

D. Retail Cannabis in the C-R Zoning District.  A Retail Cannabis Establishment in the C-R 

zoning district must be in compliance with the following standards. 

1. Permit Requirements.   

a. Cannabis Retail License. Prior to conditional use permit application, an applicant 

shall obtain a potential Retail Cannabis License from the City, as outlined in Chapter 

9.61.   

b. Conditional Use Permit. A Retail Cannabis Establishment must obtain a 

Conditional Use Permit from the Planning Commission.  The Retail Cannabis 

Establishment shall be in compliance with the following standards:   

(1) Distance from Schools and Churches.  Retail Cannabis Establishment are not 

permitted within a path of travel of 1,000 feet from any schools and churches.  

The path of travel shall be measured following the shortest path of travel along a 

public right-of-way from the property line of the proposed Retail Cannabis 

Establishment parcel to the church or school.   

(2) Distance between Retail Cannabis Establishments.  A retail cannabis 

establishment shall not be located within a path of travel of 500 feet of another 

retail cannabis establishment.    

(3) Independent Access.  A retail cannabis establishment shall have an independent 

exterior entrance that is not shared with any other business or residence. 

(4) Signs. [Option 1- Comply with sign code] A retail cannabis establishment shall 

be limited to the sign regulations of Chapter 17.80.   

(4) Signs. [Option 2 - Conservative] Notwithstanding other sections of the code for 

signs, a retail cannabis establishment shall be limited to one exterior building sign 

per business location to identify the business as a retail cannabis establishment in 

compliance with the following standards: 

a) Sign may include name of business and one logo.     

b) Sign area maximum of 20 square feet, or one square foot per linear 

frontage of the business; whichever is less.  

c) Sign shall not contain reference in language to cannabis. 

5.C

Packet Pg. 133



 
 

 

d) Sign may have one graphic limited to the business logo or one green 

cross. 

e) Sign shall otherwise be subject to Planning Commission review 

through a Sign Permit Application in accordance with Section 17.132.  

(5) Signs. [Option 3 - More Conservative] Notwithstanding other sections of the 

code for signs, a retail cannabis establishment shall be limited to one exterior 

building sign per business location to identify the business as a retail cannabis 

establishment in compliance with the following standards: 

a) Sign may include name of business only.  

b) Sign area maximum of 15 square feet, or one square foot per linear 

frontage of the business; whichever is less.  

c) Sign may not have any reference, through symbols or language, to 

cannabis.   

d) Sign shall not be directly illuminated except during operating hours  

e) Sign shall otherwise be subject to Planning Commission review 

through a Sign Permit Application in accordance with Section 17.132. 

 

Section 2.  Effective Date. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect thirty (30) days from 
the date of its adoption by the City Council or upon the certification of the passage of a ballot 
measure authorizing the establishment of a tax on retail cannabis sales by voters at the 
November 6, 2018 general election, whichever is later. 

This ordinance was introduced on the 28th day of June, 2018, and was passed and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of Capitola on the ____ day of July, 2018, by the following vote: 

   
AYES:  

NOES:   

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  
   

 
APPROVED:  
 
______________________ 
Michael Termini, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Linda Fridy, City Clerk 
 
 
 

 
 

5.C

Packet Pg. 134



 
 

 

 
Prepared By: Katie Herlihy 
  Community Development Director 

5.C

Packet Pg. 135



 

 

 
 

S T A F F  R E P O R T  

 
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 
DATE: JUNE 7, 2018 
 
SUBJECT: 4015 Capitola Road #17-019 APN: 034-261-40 
 

Design Permit to renovate the existing SEARS into three tenant 
spaces (Sears, TJ Maxx/Homegoods, and PetSmart) with remodeled 
exterior facades, two 4,000 square foot building pads for a future 
development phase, and a Master Sign Program located for the three 
tenants within the CC (Community Commercial) zoning district.  
This project is not located in the Coastal Zone. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption, Section 15270 
of the CEQA guidelines  
Property Owner: Seritage SRC Finance LLC 
Representative: Mark Rone, Cypress Equities   

 
APPLICANT PROPOSAL 
The applicant submitted a design permit application to remodel the Sears building and convert 
the space into three separate tenant spaces with updated exterior facades.  The west side of 
the existing Sears space would be converted into three tenant spaces to accommodate TJ 
Maxx/Homegoods (40,772 sf), Petco (11,478 sf), and Sears (58,741 sf).  The proposal includes 
two new 4,000 square feet building pads; one on 41st Avenue frontage and one on Capitola 
Road frontage and a Master Sign Program for the three tenants. (Attachment 1: Plans; 
Attachment 2: Master Sign Program) 
 
The proposed project is not in compliance with Capitola Municipal Code 13.16 Stormwater 
Pollution Prevention and Protection, Resolution No. R3-2013-0032 of the California Regional 
Water Quality Control Board for the Central Coast Region, the Capitola Zoning Code, the 
Capitola General Plan, and Santa Cruz County Code 7.100.060.  Therefore, staff is 
recommending denial of the application.  
 
BACKGROUND 
On December 1, 2016, the Planning Commission provided direction on a Conceptual Review 
Application for the Sears building.  The Planning Commission advised the applicant to improve 
the Sears façade, provide phased buildout information, and coordinate with the mall owner to 
show how the project fits within the mall redevelopment and future circulation plans.  
 
On February 10, 2017, the City received an application for Design Permit and Master Sign 
Permit for the property at 4015 Capitola Road.  
 

5.D

Packet Pg. 136



 
 

 

On March 9, 2017, the City provided the applicant with an incomplete letter which outlined 
outstanding items (Attachment 3).  On April 19, 2018, the City provided an updated incomplete 
letter that separated required incomplete items from advisory items, as a follow-up from a 
discussion with the applicant (Attachment 4: KH email). 
 
On December 14, 2017, the City received copies of a Phase 1 and 2 ESA from the project 
architect for the partial removal of joist.  
 
On January 9, 2018, the applicant provided an updated application submittal (Attachment 1). 
 
On February 7, 2018, city staff emailed the applicant explaining that comments were not ready.  
Also, staff informed the applicant that a new zoning code and zoning map had been adopted on 
January 25, 2018.  The property zoning changed from Community Commercial to Regional 
Commercial.  Staff explained that the new zoning and development standards would apply to 
the project on February 25, 2018 (Attachment 5).      
 
On February 15, 2018, City staff informed applicant’s Architect that Phase 1 and 2 ESA had 
been reviewed by a third party and found that facility closure work was incomplete (Attachment 
6). 
 
On February 28, 2018, City staff provided the applicant with a second incomplete letter relative 
to the project under the new zoning district and new development standards (Attachment 7).   
 
On May 9, 2018, the applicant submitted a letter from their attorney, suggesting that application 
is “deemed complete” under the Permit Streamlining Act (PSA) and request that the application 
be set for public hearing at the earliest opportunity, and within 30 days at the latest.  The PSA 
sets forth a time limit of 30 days after an application is submitted in which to inform the applicant 
of whether the application is complete.  If the agency does not inform the applicant within the 
30-day period, the application will be “deemed complete” even when the application is deficient.  
Upon deeming the application complete, the application must be noticed for public hearing and 
the placed on the Planning Commission agenda (Attachment 8: Letter).  The first attachment to 
letter is included in the Attachment 8.  It is the letter from Merlone Geier providing approval of 
the plans including one 2,656-square-foot pad along Capitola Road.  The entire letter with 
attachments is voluminous with over 600 pages. In an effort to save paper, the full letter with 
attachments is available at City Hall for the public to review and on the City’s Website on the 
Community Development webpage at http://www.cityofcapitola.org/communitydevelopment. 
 
On May 17, 2018, Santa Cruz County Environmental Health Division (SCCEHD) provided the 
applicant with a Notice of Violation (NOV) for the unpermitted removal of ten underground 
hydraulic lifts.   The NOV noted that the ten underground lifts that were removed in 2017 were in 
violation of Santa Cruz County Code 7.100.060.  SCCEHD directed the property owner to apply 
for and obtain a permit retroactively for the closure of the underground storage lifts that were 
removed and to do so by June 29, 2018 (Attachment 9). 
 
On May 18, 2018, the City Attorney confirms completeness determination (Attachment 10). 
 
On May 23, 2018, the City informed the applicant that the application would be reviewed by the 
Planning Commission on June 7, 2018 (Attachment 11). 
 
DISCUSSION 
Sears is located on the south-east corner of the Capitola Mall with frontage on Capitola Road 
and 41st Avenue.  The building is setback 280 feet from Capitola Road and 316 feet from 41st 

5.D

Packet Pg. 137

http://www.cityofcapitola.org/communitydevelopment


 
 

 

Avenue with surface parking and limited landscaping within the setback area.  The existing 
Takara restaurant building at 3775 Capitola Road is part of the same parcel as the proposed 
development.     
 
The subject property is 10.5 acres in size, the second largest ownership parcel on the mall site.  
The Sears building was built in 1971 and has had minor renovations in its 47-years of existence.  
Sears was the first structure to be built on the regional shopping mall property, followed by the 
mall and three larger department stores.  The mall site has been identified in the Capitola 
General Plan (2014) and the 41st Avenue/Capitola Mall Re-visioning Plan (2011) as an area 
prime for redevelopment.   
 
General Plan 
The 2014 Capitola General Plan outlines the vision for future development in Capitola through 
establishing guiding principles, goals, policies and actions. Attachment 12 includes relative 
excerpts from the General Plan related to the propose project and future development of the 
mall. The project has improved since the 2016 conceptual review, with the inclusion of two 
future building pads along the frontage of 41st Avenue and Capitola Road.  However, the project 
application fails to demonstrate how the proposed project coordinates with adjacent property 
owner plans, and implements the General Plan goals for mall redevelopment.  
 
As the mall evolves it is important to ensure the incremental changes within each parcel 
incorporate site improvements that fit within the greater vision for mall redevelopment, otherwise 
the General Plan goals may be missed entirely.  As proposed, the project has been designed to 
function independently from the mall, with no pedestrian connectivity between the two new 
tenant spaces and the mall.  It is unclear how the proposed project would fit into a larger mall 
redevelopment effort.  The application provides no indication of cooperation between adjacent 
property owners toward the General Plan goal LU-8 and Policies LU-8.1 and LU-8.5, as follows:  
 

Goal LU-8: Support the long-term transformation of Capitola Mall into a more 
pedestrian-friendly commercial district with high quality architecture and outdoor 
amenities attractive to shoppers and families. 
 
Policy LU-8.1: Phased Mall Redevelopment. Encourage a phased approach to 
redevelopment of the Mall property. Early phases may include improvements to the Mall 
façade and front entrance, and new retail pads fronting 41st Avenue. These early 
improvements shall not conflict with the ultimate vision for the property, as represented 
in the 41st Avenue/Capitola Mall Vision Plan (see Figure LU-6). 

 
Policy LU-8.5: New Interior Street. As a long-term vision for Capitola Mall, support the 
addition of a new interior street within the Mall property lined with sidewalk-oriented 
retail, outdoor dining, and pedestrian amenities. This new street should be connected 
with the existing street network surrounding the Mall property to enhance mall access for 
all modes of transportation. 

 
The current proposal disregards the relationship of the property to the regional mall with a lack 
of internal connectivity.  Furthermore, the only suggestion of cooperation with the mall owner, 
Merlone-Geier, was within a letter of support. The applicant did not submit a schematic build out 
or circulation plans for the mall site to understand how the proposal fits within the larger vision, 
as suggested by the Planning Commission during the conceptual review. 
 
Master Sign Program 

5.D

Packet Pg. 138



 
 

 

The proposed project includes a master sign program (MSP) application. (Attachment 2) A MSP 
establishes unified and coordinated approach to materials, size, type, placement, and general 
design for signs within a multi-tenant project.  The Planning Commission may approve a MSP 
that deviates from the standards of the sign regulations relating to height, number of signs, sign 
area, and type of signs.   
 
The proposed MSP includes: 

• Maximum letter height - 5 feet.  

• Maximum sign area - 1 square foot per linear foot of building frontage  
o Petco 75.6 square feet,  
o TJ Maxx/Homegoods 200 square feet, and  
o Sears 180 square feet east elevation and 251 square feet south elevation.   

• “The signage location and configuration are conceptual in nature, subject to change 
based on the final signage permit submission.”  

 
When a MSP is approved by the Planning Commission, all subsequent signs proposed for a 
development must comply with the standards and specification included in the MSP.  Signs 
consistent with an approved MSP are allowed with an administrative sign permit approved by 
staff.  The proposed MSP would administratively allow signs between 75 and 251 square feet.     
 
The new zoning code establishes a maximum cumulative sign area in the Regional Commercial 
zone of one square foot of sign area per one square foot of linear building frontage, up to a 
maximum of 50 square feet.  An additional 25% increase in sign area can be approved by 
Planning Commission.  This would allow up to 62.5 square feet of sign area per commercial 
establishment.  The proposed MSP includes allowances of up to 251 square feet, more than 
four times the amount allowed by code. Staff recommends the Planning Commission deny the 
MSP and require approval of future signs consistent with Chapter 17.80.   
 
Design Permit 
When considering Design Permit applications, the Planning Commission is required to evaluate 
applications to ensure they comply with the development standards of the zoning district, 
conform to policies of the General Plan and other design policies and regulations adopted by 
the City Council.  To obtain Design Permit approval, projects must satisfy the criteria of 
§17.120.070(A-S), as listed in Attachment 13. The following list includes the criteria in which the 
project is not in compliance:  

 

D. Sustainability. The project supports natural resource protection and environmental 

sustainability through features such as on-site renewable energy generation, passive solar 

design, enhanced energy efficiency, water conservation measures, and other green 

building techniques. 

N.   Drainage.  The site plan is designed to maximize efficiency of on-site drainage with runoff 

directed towards permeable surface areas and engineered retention.  

 
Staff Analysis: Per Capitola Municipal Code Chapter 2.20, the Santa Cruz County Health 
Services Agency (SCCHSA) serves as the City’s Health Department and its Department Head 
is the designated County Health Officer. To this end, the Health Officer enforces County Health 
Department ordinances within the City including Santa Cruz County Code Chapter 7.100 
governing hazardous materials and underground storage tanks.  
 

5.D

Packet Pg. 139



 
 

 

Per Santa Cruz County Code Section 7.100.060, no person or business may close a hazardous 
material storage facility or underground storage tank without first obtaining a permit from the 
County Health Services Agency. In order to obtain a permit, the applicant must submit a written 
hazardous materials management plan for SCCHSA’s approval.  Per Section 7.100.140, the 
Health Officer may request information in addition to the hazardous materials management plan 
deemed necessary to protect human health, safety or the environment. Per Section 7.100.160, 
the Health Officer has the discretion to impose reasonable permit conditions and performance 
standards necessary to protect human health, safety, or the environment. Section 7.100.260 
pertains specifically to out-of-service storage facilities and reiterates the requirement to obtain a 
permit to close a storage facility assuring that the closure minimizes any threat to public safety, 
the possibility of water runoff from the facility and the possibility of water and soil contamination.   
 
A portion of the Sears facility was utilized as automotive center from 1971 to 2016.  To close the 
automotive facility, the owner is required to obtain a facility closure permit through Santa Cruz 
County Environmental Health Division (SCCEHD) as explained above. 
 
On December 14, 2017, the City received copies of a Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment 
(ESA) and Phase 2 ESA, for partial removal of joists, dated December 19, 2014 and April 6, 
2016 respectively.  The City contracted Weber-Hayes and Associates to review the submitted 
ESA documents.  Weber-Hayes found that the environmental work was for the partial removal 
of onsite joists, not a full facility closure as required with the proposed change of use.  On 
February 15, 2018, City staff informed the applicant of Weber-Hayes’ finding that the facility 
closure work had not been completed.  
 
On May 17, 2018, Santa Cruz County Environmental Health Division (SCCEHD) provided the 
applicant with a Notice of Violation (NOV) for the unpermitted removal of ten underground 
hydraulic lifts.  (Attachment 9)   The NOV notes that the ten underground lifts that were removed 
in 2017 were in violation of Santa Cruz County Code 7.100.060.  SCCEHD directed the property 
owner to apply for and obtain a permit retroactively for the closure of the underground storage 
lifts that were removed and to do so by June 29, 2018.  As noted in the letter, the SCCEHD has 
found underground lifts can leak oil and pose potential long term environmental and possible 
human health problems.  There is evidence that some of the oil in the lift systems contain 
Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs), which are probable human carcinogens.  
    
Drainage: A third party technical review of the stormwater plans was completed by 
HydroScience. (Attachment 14)  HydroScience made findings that based on the documents 
submitted, the project is not in compliance with the Capitola Municipal Code Section 13.16 
Stormwater Pollution Prevention and Protection and the Post Construction Requirements 
(PCRs) as specified in Resolution No. R3-2013-0032 issued by the California Regional Water 
Quality Control Board for the Central Coast Region in July 2013.   The Post Construction 
regulations emphasize protecting and restoring key watershed processes on site to create and 
sustain linkages between hydrology, channel geomorphology, and biological health necessary 
for healthy watersheds.  The performance requirements for this project require the project to 
minimize impervious surfaces, minimize stormwater runoff, treat all on-site generated runoff by 
constructing biofiltration systems or other similar devices, retain runoff on-site, and manage 
peak stormwater discharges.  The specific requirements of these requirements are contained in 
attachment 1 of the resolution. 
 
E.   Pedestrian Environment.  The primary entrances are oriented towards and visible from the 

street to support an active public realm and an inviting pedestrian environment. 
 

5.D

Packet Pg. 140



 
 

 

Staff Analysis:  The two proposed tenant spaces do not include an internal connection to the 
mall.  The proposed lack of internal connectivity is counter to the established circulation pattern 
of a mall.  The proposed lack of connectivity will negatively impact the synergistic pedestrian 
relationship between the property and the established regional mall.    

 
I.   Architectural Style.  Buildings feature an architectural style that is compatible with the 

surrounding built and natural environment, is an authentic implementation of appropriate 
established architectural styles, and reflects Capitola’s unique coastal village character.  

 
J.   Articulation and Visual Interest.  Building facades are well articulated to add visual 

interest, distinctiveness, and human scale.  Building elements such as roofs, doors, 
windows, and porches are part of an integrated design and relate to the human scale. 
Architectural details such as trim, eaves, window boxes, and brackets contribute to the 
visual interest of the building. 

 
K.   Materials. Building facades include a mix of natural, high-quality, and durable materials that 

are appropriate to the architectural style, enhance building articulation, and are compatible 
with surrounding development. 

 
P. Signs.  The number, location, size, and design of signs complement the project design and 

are compatible with the surrounding context. 
 
Staff Analysis: The proposed façade improvements of Sears create a modern look for the tenant 
that has an authentic design as a stand-alone retail establishment.  The architectural style has a 
California modern look with a mix of high quality finishes including metal panels, metal louvers, 
brick veneer in a charcoal color, horizontal wood siding, stone veneer, and a mix of walkway 
finishes.    

 
The proposed design for Petco and TJ Maxx/Homegoods is generic in style with large billboard 
like entryway design features added to the existing exterior finishes of the building. Other than 
the new entryways, the wall plane between Petco and TJ Maxx will remain straight, with minor 
articulation through repeated exterior finishes and landscaping.  There is no defined 
architectural style and limited differentiation for the proposed new tenant facades. The 
architectural improvements for Petco and TJ Maxx/Homegoods appear to have been designed 
for the signs, rather than sign fitting within the context of the architecture.   
 
 
L.  Parking and Access.  Parking areas are located and designed to minimize visual impacts 

and maintain Capitola’s distinctive neighborhoods and pedestrian-friendly environment. Safe 
and convenient connections are provided for pedestrians and bicyclists.  

 
Staff Analysis: There is a lack of pedestrian and bicycle connectivity through the property.  The 
Public Works Director recommends that bike lanes should be added in both directions on 38th 
Avenue, 40th Avenue, the entrance off of 41st Avenue, and along the internal drive around the 
structure from Target to northern connecting to 40th Avenue.  The 2040 Regional Transportation 
Plan project list includes separated bicycle facility through Capitola Mall parking lot to connect 
38th Avenue bike lanes and 40th Avenue.   
 
In terms of pedestrian safety, many pedestrians walk between Target and the Sears building. 
Staff recommends adding a new sidewalk between Target and Sears.   
 

5.D

Packet Pg. 141



 
 

 

Also, the project does not comply with the bicycle rack regulations of zoning code §17.76.080(A-
H), for short and long-term bicycle parking.  Bicycle parking standards are included in the zoning 
code to promote sustainable transportation alternative. 
 
The new building pads along 41st Avenue and Capitola Road will create additional trips and new 
circulation patterns.  Traffic and circulation impacts associated with the future phases have not 
be evaluated and therefore the impacts are unknown.    

 
O.  Open Space and Public Places. Non-residential development provides semi-public outdoor 

spaces, such as plazas and courtyards, which help support pedestrian activity within an 
active and engaging public realm.  

 
Staff Analysis: Minimal improvements are incorporated into the semi-public outdoor space 
around the exterior of the building.  Two typical wooden benches with black iron railing are 
proposed along the south elevation between Petco and TJ Maxx.  The design incorporates 
reutilizing existing planters, as well as introducing trellises on the building wall for plant growth.  
The plan lacks efforts toward an engaging public realm.  Opportunities exist to create an 
active/engaging public realm in the corner where the building steps back along the south 
elevation.  During the conceptual review, the Planning Commission had identified this area as 
an area of opportunity to engage the public.   
 
CEQA  
Section 15270 of the CEQA guidelines exempts projects which a public agency disapproves.  
More specifically, (a)CEQA does not apply to projects which a public agency rejects or 
disapproves; (b) This section is intended to allow an initial screening of projects on the merits for 
quick disapprovals prior to the initiation of the CEQA process where the agency can determine 
that the project cannot be approved; and (c) This section shall not relieve an applicant from 
paying the costs for an EIR or negative declaration prepared for his project prior to the lead 
agency’s disapproval of the project after normal evaluation and processing.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION   
Staff recommends the Planning Commission deny the design permit because the required 
findings of §17.120.070 cannot be made.  Aside from the larger design issues and inconsistency 
with the General Plan, two technical issue prevent approval of the application.  The project does 
not comply with environmental health regulations (CMC Chapter 2.20) and does not comply with 
storm water regulation (CMC 13.16).  Staff also recommends denial of the master sign program. 
 

FINDINGS 
 

A. The proposed project is inconsistent with the General Plan, and any applicable 
specific plan, area plan, or other design policies and regulations adopted by 
the City Council. 
Community Development Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the 
project and found that the project is inconsistent with the General Plan and the 41st 
Avenue/Capitola Mall re-visioning plan.  The project has been designed to function 
independently from the mall, with no pedestrian connectivity between the two new tenant 
spaces and the mall.  It is unclear how the proposed project would fit into a larger mall 
redevelopment effort.  The application is not consistent with General Plan goal LU-8 and 
Policies LU-8.1 and LU-8.5. 

 
B. The proposed project does not comply with all applicable provisions of the 

5.D

Packet Pg. 142



 
 

 

Zoning Code and Municipal Code. 
The project does not comply with environmental health regulations (CMC Chapter 
2.20); does not comply with stormwater regulations (CMC 13.16); and does not 
comply with the zoning code (CMC 17). 
 

C. The proposed project qualifies for a CEQA exemption 15270. 
Section 15270 of the CEQA guidelines exempts projects which a public agency 
disapproves.  
 

D. The proposed development would be detrimental to the public health, safety, or 
welfare or materially injurious to the properties or improvements in the vicinity.  
The Sears Automotive Center has potential environmental impacts associated with 
underground hydraulic lifts.  The Santa Cruz County Environmental Health Division 
(SCCEHD) requires permits to remove underground lifts.  The SCCEHD has found 
underground lifts can leak oil and pose potential long term environmental and possible 
human health problems.  There is evidence that some of the oil in the lift systems 
contained Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs), which are probable human carcinogens.  
On May 17, 2018, SCCEHD provided the applicant with a Notice of Violation (NOV) for 
the unpermitted deactivation and capping of ten in ground lifts at the project location.  
Without the SCCEHD permit insuring that the hydraulic lift closure has been completed 
in accordance with Santa Cruz County Chapter 7.100, summarized earlier, there is 
insufficient evidence in the record that the project will not be environmentally detrimental 
and will not pose the risk of injury to persons or properties in the vicinity of the project. 

 
Also, the stormwater plans have not been found in compliance with Municipal Code 
Chapter 13.16.  A third party technical review of the stormwater plans was completed by 
HydroScience.  HydroScience made findings that the project is not in compliance with 
the Capitola Municipal Code Section 13.16 Stormwater Pollution Prevention and 
Protection and the Post Construction Requirements (PCRs) as specified in Resolution 
No. R3-2013-0032 issued by the California Regional Water Quality Control Board for the 
Central Coast Region in July 2013.  Without compliance to Capitola Municipal Code 
Section 13.16 Stormwater Pollution Prevention and Protection and compliance with the 
PCRs as specified in Resolution No. R3-2013-0032 issued by the California Regional 
Water Quality Control Board for the Central Coast Region in July 2013, there is 
insufficient evidence in the record that the project will not be environmentally detrimental 
and will not pose the risk of injury to persons or properties in the vicinity of the project.   
 

E. The proposed project does not comply with all applicable design review 
criteria in Section 17.120.070 (Design Review Criteria) 
The proposed project does not comply with all applicable design review criteria in 
Section 17.120.070 as outlined within the staff report and incorporated within.   
 

F. The proposed Master Sign Program unreasonably exceeds the sign 
regulations of the zoning code.  
The proposed Master Sign Program includes allowances of up to 251 square feet of 
sign area for an individual tenant sign on one façade, more than four times the 
maximum permissible by code.  

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. 2018.01.09 4015 Capitola Road Plan Set 

5.D

Packet Pg. 143



 
 

 

2. 4015 Capitola Road Master Sign Program 
3. 2017.03.09 Completeness letter 
4. 2017.04.19 Herlihy Email Lists Incomplete and Advisory 
5. 2018.02.07 KH email to Applicant 
6. 2018.02.15 KH email to Applicant 
7. 2018.02.28 4015 Capitola Road Completeness Letter 
8. 2018.05.09 CC&W letter to City 
9. 2018.05.17 SCCEHD Notice of Violation 
10. 2018.05.18 City Attorney Letter to Applicant 
11. 2018.05.23  City Attorney letter to CC&N 
12. Sections of General Plan 
13. Design Permit Criteria of 17.120.010(A-S) 
14. 2018.05.24 HydroSciene Memo 

 
Prepared By: Katie Herlihy 
  Community Development Director 

5.D

Packet Pg. 144



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 145

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

01
.0

9 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 P

la
n

 S
et

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 146

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

01
.0

9 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 P

la
n

 S
et

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 147

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

01
.0

9 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 P

la
n

 S
et

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 148

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

01
.0

9 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 P

la
n

 S
et

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 149

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

01
.0

9 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 P

la
n

 S
et

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 150

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

01
.0

9 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 P

la
n

 S
et

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 151

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

01
.0

9 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 P

la
n

 S
et

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 152

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

01
.0

9 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 P

la
n

 S
et

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 153

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

01
.0

9 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 P

la
n

 S
et

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 154

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

01
.0

9 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 P

la
n

 S
et

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 155

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

01
.0

9 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 P

la
n

 S
et

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 156

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

01
.0

9 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 P

la
n

 S
et

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 157

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

01
.0

9 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 P

la
n

 S
et

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 158

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

01
.0

9 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 P

la
n

 S
et

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 159

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

01
.0

9 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 P

la
n

 S
et

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 160

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

01
.0

9 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 P

la
n

 S
et

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 161

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

01
.0

9 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 P

la
n

 S
et

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 162

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

01
.0

9 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 P

la
n

 S
et

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 163

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

01
.0

9 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 P

la
n

 S
et

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 164

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

01
.0

9 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 P

la
n

 S
et

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 165

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

01
.0

9 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 P

la
n

 S
et

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 166

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

01
.0

9 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 P

la
n

 S
et

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 167

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

01
.0

9 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 P

la
n

 S
et

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 168

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

01
.0

9 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 P

la
n

 S
et

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 169

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

01
.0

9 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 P

la
n

 S
et

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 170

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

01
.0

9 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 P

la
n

 S
et

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 171

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

01
.0

9 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 P

la
n

 S
et

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 172

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

01
.0

9 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 P

la
n

 S
et

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 173

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

01
.0

9 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 P

la
n

 S
et

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 174

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

01
.0

9 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 P

la
n

 S
et

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 175

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

01
.0

9 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 P

la
n

 S
et

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.a

Packet Pg. 176

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

01
.0

9 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 P

la
n

 S
et

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.b

Packet Pg. 177

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.b

Packet Pg. 178

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.b

Packet Pg. 179

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.b

Packet Pg. 180

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.b

Packet Pg. 181

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.b

Packet Pg. 182

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.b

Packet Pg. 183

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.b

Packet Pg. 184

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.b

Packet Pg. 185

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.b

Packet Pg. 186

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.b

Packet Pg. 187

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.b

Packet Pg. 188

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.b

Packet Pg. 189

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.b

Packet Pg. 190

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.b

Packet Pg. 191

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.b

Packet Pg. 192

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.b

Packet Pg. 193

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.b

Packet Pg. 194

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.b

Packet Pg. 195

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.b

Packet Pg. 196

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.c

Packet Pg. 197

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
7.

03
.0

9 
C

o
m

p
le

te
n

es
s 

le
tt

er
  (

40
15

 C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



5.D.c

Packet Pg. 198

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
7.

03
.0

9 
C

o
m

p
le

te
n

es
s 

le
tt

er
  (

40
15

 C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



5.D.c

Packet Pg. 199

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
7.

03
.0

9 
C

o
m

p
le

te
n

es
s 

le
tt

er
  (

40
15

 C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



5.D.c

Packet Pg. 200

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
7.

03
.0

9 
C

o
m

p
le

te
n

es
s 

le
tt

er
  (

40
15

 C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



5.D.c

Packet Pg. 201

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
7.

03
.0

9 
C

o
m

p
le

te
n

es
s 

le
tt

er
  (

40
15

 C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



5.D.c

Packet Pg. 202

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
7.

03
.0

9 
C

o
m

p
le

te
n

es
s 

le
tt

er
  (

40
15

 C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



1

Herlihy, Katie (kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us)

From: Herlihy, Katie (kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us)
Sent: Wednesday, April 19, 2017 9:51 AM
To: Brian Walsh; Grunow, Rich (rgrunow@ci.capitola.ca.us)
Cc: Goldstein, Jamie (jgoldstein@ci.capitola.ca.us); Chas Fisher Jr.
Subject: RE: Sears Redevelopment

Hi Brian and Chas, 
 
I created two list for you for the pending items to assist in your update of the proposal.  
 
Let me know if you have questions. 
 
Regards, 

 

Katie Herlihy, AICP 
Senior Planner 
 
City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 
(831) 475‐7300 
 

 
 
 
 
Incomplete Items 
1) The existing Sears auto repair center is proposed to convert to retail space.  This site has been used for

decades to perform auto repair services which involves the routine use of petroleum products and other
potentially hazardous materials.  Consequently, a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) must be
prepared to research and document historic uses of the site and to determine if further testing, analysis, or
remediation is necessary prior to construction or use of the area as retail space.  The City of Capitola will 
select a qualified consultant to prepare the ESA.  The applicant shall be responsible for all costs to prepare
the ESA plus a 21% City administration fee.  Please be aware that a Phase II ESA may be subsequently
required based on the findings of the Phase I report.  
 

2) The application includes a request for a master sign program; however, it is unclear if the intent is to receive
sign permits concurrently with the design permit, or if the intent is to provide guidelines for tenants to obtain
their own sign permits in the future.  If it’s the desire to obtain sign permits now, additional details are
necessary to allow staff to evaluate the proposal.  Similarly, more refined design standards would be 
necessary for a master sign program.  Staff has provided guidance below on additional submittal
requirements for both a master sign program and a sign permit: 

 
a) Information needed for a master sign program: Master sign program must be updated to include: 

i) Proposed sign area on pages 4, 5, and 6 
ii) Master sign program should include all businesses onsite.  Include existing restaurant.  
iii) As drafted, clarify that all signs require Planning Commission approval OR modify master sign

program to set more defined standards with predictable outcome. 
iv) Page 17.  Add linear frontage for each tenant and maximum area for wall sign per tenant.   
v) Define incidental wall sign.  

5.D.d

Packet Pg. 203

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
7.

04
.1

9 
H

er
lih

y 
E

m
ai

l L
is

ts
 In

co
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d

 A
d

vi
so

ry
  (

40
15

 C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



2

vi) Define ancillary signs.  Note that the addition of allowing ancillary signs (in addition to wall signs) at
a maximum size of one square foot per lineal foot of building (page 17) doubles the current Capitola
maximum.  Staff suggests decreasing this standard.  

 
b) Information needed for a sign permit:  

i) Specifications for the proposed signs for each individual tenant.  There are discrepancies between 
the master sign program, the conceptual images, and the elevations that include signs.  Include 
specific sign sheets for each tenant for all proposed signs specifying sign area, materials, 
illumination, height and width, letter height, and location in color.   

ii) Include incidental wall signs and ancillary signs.  
iii) If signs exceed the limitations of the sign code, a variance may be required.  Due to the incomplete 

nature of the sign submittal staff is unable to determine if a variance is required at this time. 
 

3) Sheet C1.1 notes sidewalk replacement. There are no details of new sidewalk material.  A sidewalk plan 
should be submitted to show the location and width of sidewalk. 
 

4) Stamped survey of existing conditions by licensed surveyor.  Include locations of all existing features, 
buildings, trees and shrubs, and location of structures on adjacent lots.   

 
5) Exterior elevations must include existing and proposed for each elevation.  The proposed Sears elevations 

are not included in the plan set, only existing elevations were included on page A4.2.  Included existing and 
proposed for each elevations on the same sheet for easy comparison.   

 
6) Landscape plan only addresses 38th Avenue entrance.  Plan should include improvements to entire site. 

Landscape plan must show plant type, size, and quantity of plants and trees.  Exact location should be 
shown on the landscape plan.  Include irrigation plan.  Indicate any trees to be removed and the size of 
trunk. A tree removal permit may be required.   

 
7) Third party technical deposit of $5,000 for preparation and review of Phase 1 Environmental Site 

Assessment.  
 
8) Location of existing and proposed on-site lighting, height, and hooding devices. 
 
9) Parking.  Parking Calculation on page T0.0 does not include existing restaurant on site.  Also, the first page 

of the applications states that 10 spaces are removed and the application states 6 spaces are removed.  If 
less than required by code are available, the city can hire a 3rd party to evaluate shared parking funded by 
applicant.  

 
10) Sheet C1.1 notes sidewalk replacement. Sheet 1 suggests new pavers witin the sidewalk but hardscape 

details are not labeled or described. Add hardscape plan that include details of hardscape including 
materials.  Widths of sidewalks should be identified.  

 
11) Circulation plan delineating pedestrian, bicycle, and automobile circulation.   

 
12) Additional information required by Public Works as outlined in the memo from Danielle Uharriet.   

 

13) $3,231.90 fee for storm water development review fee  
 

 
Advisory Items 
1) During the conceptual review of the project, the Planning Commission emphasized that the applicant should 

closely coordinate with Merlone Geier to develop a comprehensive mall redevelopment project which
advances the City’s General Plan goals for the site.  The application did not include any other mall properties
nor any information about how the proposal would complement a future comprehensive mall redevelopment

5.D.d

Packet Pg. 204

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
7.

04
.1

9 
H

er
lih

y 
E

m
ai

l L
is

ts
 In

co
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d

 A
d

vi
so

ry
  (

40
15

 C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



3

project.  Please submit additional information demonstrating that the proposal has been coordinated with
other mall property owners and explain how the redeveloped Sears would complement and enhance a 
comprehensive mall redevelopment project.   

 
2) High quality architecture desired rather than minor entryway modifications.  Break up long, uninteresting

facades and utilize high quality materials. Additional in-line tenants would be supported. 
 

3) Include a phasing plan with development pads for future development 
 

4) Circulation improvements for pedestrian, cyclist, and automobiles in following locations:   
a) 40th Avenue  
b) 41st Avenue entrance 
c) Between Sears and Target  

 
5) Improve public realm and pedestrian experience.  Add opportunities for people to gather and interact. Note: 

This is difficult to gauge in the current plan set.  The landscape concept plan includes public realm 

examples but they are not shown on the site plan.  Update site plan to show exact location of public 

improvements.  

6) Improve placemaking and visitor experience.  
1. Building and public realm should relate to Capitola. 
2. Concern for mix-matched design and lack of aesthetic experience,  

 
7) Public Art – Include public art on the premise rather than donation off-site. 

   
8) Shared parking on the site is appropriate.             

 

9) The site is located along 41st Avenue and the design permit is subject to the 41st Avenue design guidelines 

(http://www.cityofcapitola.org/sites/default/files/fileattachments/community_development/page/1458/41st_a

venue_design_guidelines.pdf).  The design as proposed is not aligned with the following underlined 

guidelines as further explained by staff in italics: 

 
o Separate pedestrian and vehicular traffic patterns shall be provided.  Linkages between adjoining

commercial developments shall be provided as well as distinct pedestrian access from parking
areas to activity areas.  The use of specialty paving materials shall be encouraged to dress up
and direct pedestrian movement.  Sheet C1.1 notes sidewalk replacement. There are no details
of new sidewalk material.  A sidewalk plan should be submitted to show the location and width of
sidewalk.  Three areas suggested during the conceptual review for improved pedestrian and
vehicular flow include 40th Avenue, the 41st Avenue entrance, and the connection to Target.
These areas have not been addressed within the plans. 
 

o Easily identifiable bicycle parking shall be incorporated in all developments.  On-site bicycle 
circulation is encouraged for large developments, coordinated with the City’s bicycle plan.  Bicycle 
parking shall be located close to the building entrance, but should not interfere with pedestrian 
traffic.  Bicycle lockers are encouraged due to wet climate and providing adequate shelter for
employee bikes for longer periods of time.  Bicycle parking should be incorporated on both the
east and south elevations close to entrances. Plans should include bicycle circulation plan.  

 
o Develop sites in cooperation with owners of adjoining properties to improve the overall

development patterns of the area by providing coordinated access, shared parking areas and
enhanced traffic flow.  See #2 above regarding cooperation with owners of adjoining properties
to improve overall development patterns. Two areas that could be improved include the

5.D.d

Packet Pg. 205

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
7.

04
.1

9 
H

er
lih

y 
E

m
ai

l L
is

ts
 In

co
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d

 A
d

vi
so

ry
  (

40
15

 C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



4

connection between Target and Sears for automobile and pedestrian circulation, as well as the
40th Avenue access.  
 

o Buildings shall use design elements in public areas which provide a sense of human scale (insets,
overhangs).  Elements of pedestrian interest shall be included at ground floor levels (courtyard,
display windows). The PetSmart and TJ Maxx/Homegoods façade changes by the entryways are
large and not human scale.  There is no articulation between the tenant spaces. More
transparency through the introduction of windows and/or additional inline stores would assist in
breaking break up the long façade and create a better pedestrian experience.  The location of 
improvements to the public realm, such a sidewalk, courtyards, stone seat wall, benches, etc.,
should be identified on plans.  They are shown in the landscape conceptual design but not 
identified in a site plan.  Consistency in public realm adds to the customer aesthetic
experience.  Collaborative efforts with owners throughout the mall property to identifying a style
for public realm improvements will assist in placemaking efforts.    
 

o Projects containing many buildings of single large structures shall provide variety in building
shape, height, roof lines and setbacks.  Front of buildings shall provide variety and interest. The 
Sears design does a nice job of creating an authentic style that differentiates the Sears from the
new tenants.  The PetSmart and TJ Maxx façade improvements are dramatic entryways with large
backgrounds for the signs, rather than defining architecture.  Each tenant should have a unique 
architectural style. 

 
o Distinctive “trademark” buildings are discouraged.  The proposed PetCo and TJ Maxx designs 

could be categorized as anywhere USA design.  Incorporate architectural materials or features 
that relate to Capitola through a specific architectural style within the design. 
 

o Note: When updating the landscape plan, incorporate applicable guidelines into design.   

 
 

From: Brian Walsh [mailto:bwalsh@seritage.com]  
Sent: Thursday, April 13, 2017 1:20 PM 
To: Grunow, Rich (rgrunow@ci.capitola.ca.us) <rgrunow@ci.capitola.ca.us> 
Cc: Herlihy, Katie (kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us) <kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us>; Goldstein, Jamie 
(jgoldstein@ci.capitola.ca.us) <jgoldstein@ci.capitola.ca.us> 
Subject: Re: Sears Redevelopment 
 
Thank you 

Brian T. Walsh 
VP, Development 
Seritage Growth Properties 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
On Apr 13, 2017, at 1:10 PM, Grunow, Rich (rgrunow@ci.capitola.ca.us) <rgrunow@ci.capitola.ca.us> wrote: 

Mr. Walsh: 
  
Sure…we’ll segregate the information necessary for a completeness determination from the advisory 
requests and comments.  We’ll provide this info to you next week. 
  
Thanks, Rich 
  

5.D.d

Packet Pg. 206

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
7.

04
.1

9 
H

er
lih

y 
E

m
ai

l L
is

ts
 In

co
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d

 A
d

vi
so

ry
  (

40
15

 C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



5

  

Richard Grunow 
Community Development Director 
City of Capitola 
831‐475‐7300 
rgrunow@ci.capitola.ca.us 
  
  

From: Brian Walsh [mailto:bwalsh@seritage.com]  
Sent: Thursday, April 13, 2017 12:02 PM 
To: Grunow, Rich (rgrunow@ci.capitola.ca.us) <rgrunow@ci.capitola.ca.us>; Herlihy, Katie 
(kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us) <kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us> 
Subject: Sears Redevelopment 
  
Rich and Katie‐ During a recent conversation I had with Jamie Goldstein he recommended that I ask you 
the planning staff to separate the technical deficiencies from the advisory deficiencies contained within 
the completeness letter staff issued to Seritage on March 9, 2017. As such, I ask that you please do so 
and send back to me so we can better evaluate where we stand. Thanks   
  
Brian T. Walsh 
VP Development 
Seritage Growth Properties 
10960 Wilshire Blvd‐ Suite 1420 | Los Angeles, California 90024           
Office: (424) 901‐7656 
Cell:     (203) 313‐6990 
  

5.D.d

Packet Pg. 207

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
7.

04
.1

9 
H

er
lih

y 
E

m
ai

l L
is

ts
 In

co
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d

 A
d

vi
so

ry
  (

40
15

 C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



1

Herlihy, Katie (kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us)

From: Herlihy, Katie (kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us)
Sent: Wednesday, February 07, 2018 4:43 PM
To: 'Craig Chinn'
Cc: 'Blake Carroll'; 'Ban Potrus'; 'Steve Carter'; 'Mark Rone'; 'Nikhil Gera'; Uharriet, Danielle 

(duharriet@ci.capitola.ca.us)
Subject: RE: Seritage Capitola-Update

Hi All, 
 
I am going to have to push out my comments one more week.  Not sure if you are aware that we just adopted a new 
zoning code.  It should not have any major impacts on your development proposal but I need to do a second review with 
all the new standards.  They will be applied 30 days from adoption of the new code (January 25th) so I figure I’ll add that 
analysis to the review as well 
 
I met with Public Works.  They are working on the storm water calculations with the new phase II pads.  I will be back in 
the office on Tuesday February 13th.   I plan to have a letter to you that week.   
 
Regards,  
 
Katie Herlihy, AICP 
Senior Planner 
 
City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 
(831) 475‐7300 
 

 
 
Planning Counter Hours: 1 ‐ 4 p.m., Monday ‐ Friday 

 
 
 
 
 

From: Herlihy, Katie (kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us)  
Sent: Friday, February 02, 2018 3:50 PM 
To: 'Craig Chinn' <cchinn@adcollaborative.com> 
Cc: Blake Carroll <Blake.Carroll@cypressequities.com>; Ban Potrus <Bpotrus@adcollaborative.com>; Steve Carter 
<Steve.Carter@cypressequities.com>; Mark Rone <Mark.Rone@cypressequities.com>; Nikhil Gera <nikhil@gera.in> 
Subject: RE: Seritage Capitola‐Update 
 
Hi All, 
 
Quick update.  Thank you for the updated plans and addressing many of the City’s concerns.  I plan to send out a letter 
next week with all Planning and Public Works comments on the updated set of plans.  Also, we have a third party that 
will do the technical review of the phase I and phase II ESA.   I will forward an electronic copy of the letter once it is 
finalized.  

5.D.e

Packet Pg. 208

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

02
.0

7 
K

H
 e

m
ai

l t
o

 A
p

p
lic

an
t 

 (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



2

 
Regards, 
 
Katie Herlihy, AICP 
Senior Planner 
 
City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 
(831) 475‐7300 
 

 
 
Planning Counter Hours: 1 ‐ 4 p.m., Monday ‐ Friday 

 
 
 
 
 
 

From: Craig Chinn [mailto:cchinn@adcollaborative.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, January 24, 2018 3:31 PM 
To: Herlihy, Katie (kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us) <kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us> 
Cc: Blake Carroll <Blake.Carroll@cypressequities.com>; Ban Potrus <Bpotrus@adcollaborative.com>; Steve Carter 
<Steve.Carter@cypressequities.com>; Mark Rone <Mark.Rone@cypressequities.com> 
Subject: Seritage Capitola‐Update 
Importance: High 
 
Hi Katie, 
 
I understand that you are out sick. I hope that you feel better soon. When you have a moment can you please provide us 
with an update on where the resubmittal stands as well as the environmental review. Please feel free to respond via 
email or call me on my cell phone to discuss. Take care and talk to you soon. 
 

Craig Chinn, AIA 
Principal 

architecture design collaborative 
www.adcollaborative.com 
23231 South Pointe Drive 
Laguna Hills, CA 92653 
cchinn@adcollaborative.com 
cell  949.677.7165 
ph    949.267.1660 ext 201 
 
“Fastest Growing Private Companies”  
‐Awarded by Orange County Business Journal 
 
CONFIDENTIALITY: The information contained in this e‐mail, including any accompanying documents or attachments, is from architecture design collaborative, Inc. (adc), is intended only for 
the use of the individual or entity named above, and is privileged and confidential.  If you are the intended recipient of this e‐mail, then by utilizing the information contained in this e‐mail, 
you agree that such information may not be compatible with your software and/or may have been modified or damaged during transfer;  further, you agree to use such information only for 
the purpose or project for which it was intended, and, to the full extent provided by California law, agree to release and indemnify adc and its affiliated entities and individuals for all 
damages arising out of any such misuse of the information.  If you are not the intended recipient of this e‐mail, be aware that any disclosure, dissemination, distribution, copying or use of 
the contents of this message is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e‐mail in error, please return the e‐Mail message and destroy (delete) the original. 

5.D.e

Packet Pg. 209

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

02
.0

7 
K

H
 e

m
ai

l t
o

 A
p

p
lic

an
t 

 (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



3

 

5.D.e

Packet Pg. 210

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

02
.0

7 
K

H
 e

m
ai

l t
o

 A
p

p
lic

an
t 

 (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



1

Herlihy, Katie (kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us)

From: Herlihy, Katie (kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us)
Sent: Thursday, February 15, 2018 4:04 PM
To: 'Craig Chinn'
Cc: 'Blake Carroll'; 'Ban Potrus'; 'Steve Carter'; 'Mark Rone'; 'Nikhil Gera'; Uharriet, Danielle 

(duharriet@ci.capitola.ca.us); Grunow, Rich (rgrunow@ci.capitola.ca.us)
Subject: RE: Seritage Capitola-Update

Dear Mr. Chinn,  
 
I have been reviewing your updated plans and have generated comments based on the current code.  On February 28th, 
our new zoning code takes effect.  The application will be subject to the new code.  I am currently drafting a list of 
comments based on the new code.  I recall prior to the holiday your questions regarding timing and my response being 
that I could not provide you with an estimate on a hearing date until I receive the pending documentation.       
 
The City contracted Weber‐Hayes and Associates to review the recently submitted ESA documents (Phase I dated 
December 19, 2014, Phase II dated April 6, 2016).  He informed me this week that based on information from the County 
of Santa Cruz Department of Environmental Health, the facility closure work has not been completed as there are still 
hoists and tanks on site.  Since the new tenants will not be utilizing the infrastructure, the hoists and tanks are required 
to be removed under the oversite of a County Health permit.  The facility closure permit is a requirement for businesses 
managing hazardous materials, prior to shutting the business. According to the County Website, the last action was an 
inspection dated November 2016, when it was still an active service center.   
 
Unfortunately, this is going to set the review back considerably.  Your application cannot be considered by the Planning 
Commission until the Phase I and Phase II and CEQA process are complete.  It is anticipated that a Negative Declaration 
or Mitigated Negative Declaration will be necessary depending on the results of the ESA. 
 
According to the consultant, the next step for you is to hire a qualified HAZMAT contractor to remove the hoists and 
tanks, flush floor drains, and pump out/clean the oil/water separator and to obtain necessary permits from the County 
DEH.  
 
Following completion of the closure process, the City’s ESA consultant will perform soil testing and analysis and prepare 
necessary documentation.  Note – this work must be completed by a City‐commissioned contractor.  The applicant will 
be responsible for the consultants cost.  This work is estimated to cost approximately $2,300 for Phase I ESA 
and  $10,000 to $12,000 for the limited Phase II confirmation soil/vapor sampling to document conditions.  This will take 
an estimated 6‐8 weeks to complete. 
 
I will continue to work on the zoning review under the new code.  Once the adopted version of the code is published, I 
will provide you with a copy.   

Regards, 

Katie Herlihy, AICP 
Senior Planner 
 
City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 
(831) 475‐7300 
 

5.D.f

Packet Pg. 211

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

02
.1

5 
K

H
 e

m
ai

l t
o

 A
p

p
lic

an
t 

 (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



2

 
 
Planning Counter Hours: 1 ‐ 4 p.m., Monday ‐ Friday 

 
 
 
 

From: Craig Chinn [mailto:cchinn@adcollaborative.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, February 14, 2018 10:07 PM 
To: Herlihy, Katie (kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us) <kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us> 
Cc: Blake Carroll <Blake.Carroll@cypressequities.com>; Ban Potrus <Bpotrus@adcollaborative.com>; Steve Carter 
<Steve.Carter@cypressequities.com>; Mark Rone <Mark.Rone@cypressequities.com>; Nikhil Gera <nikhil@gera.in>; 
Uharriet, Danielle (duharriet@ci.capitola.ca.us) <duharriet@ci.capitola.ca.us> 
Subject: RE: Seritage Capitola‐Update 
 
Hi Katie, 
 
Just following up on your email and checking in on your comments as well as the date for our hearing. We are still 
expecting to be on for early March as previously discussed. Please let us know and thanks for your help. We appreciate 
your help. 
 

Craig Chinn, AIA 
Principal 

architecture design collaborative 
www.adcollaborative.com 
23231 South Pointe Drive 
Laguna Hills, CA 92653 
cchinn@adcollaborative.com 
cell  949.677.7165 
ph    949.267.1660 ext 201 
 
“Fastest Growing Private Companies”  
‐Awarded by Orange County Business Journal 
 
CONFIDENTIALITY: The information contained in this e‐mail, including any accompanying documents or attachments, is from architecture design collaborative, Inc. (adc), is intended only for 
the use of the individual or entity named above, and is privileged and confidential.  If you are the intended recipient of this e‐mail, then by utilizing the information contained in this e‐mail, 
you agree that such information may not be compatible with your software and/or may have been modified or damaged during transfer;  further, you agree to use such information only for 
the purpose or project for which it was intended, and, to the full extent provided by California law, agree to release and indemnify adc and its affiliated entities and individuals for all 
damages arising out of any such misuse of the information.  If you are not the intended recipient of this e‐mail, be aware that any disclosure, dissemination, distribution, copying or use of 
the contents of this message is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e‐mail in error, please return the e‐Mail message and destroy (delete) the original. 

 

From: Herlihy, Katie (kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us) [mailto:kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us]  
Sent: Wednesday, February 7, 2018 4:43 PM 
To: Craig Chinn <cchinn@adcollaborative.com> 
Cc: Blake Carroll <Blake.Carroll@cypressequities.com>; Ban Potrus <Bpotrus@adcollaborative.com>; Steve Carter 
<Steve.Carter@cypressequities.com>; Mark Rone <Mark.Rone@cypressequities.com>; Nikhil Gera <nikhil@gera.in>; 
Uharriet, Danielle (duharriet@ci.capitola.ca.us) <duharriet@ci.capitola.ca.us> 
Subject: RE: Seritage Capitola‐Update 
 
Hi All, 
 
I am going to have to push out my comments one more week.  Not sure if you are aware that we just adopted a new 
zoning code.  It should not have any major impacts on your development proposal but I need to do a second review with 

5.D.f

Packet Pg. 212

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

02
.1

5 
K

H
 e

m
ai

l t
o

 A
p

p
lic

an
t 

 (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



3

all the new standards.  They will be applied 30 days from adoption of the new code (January 25th) so I figure I’ll add that 
analysis to the review as well 
 
I met with Public Works.  They are working on the storm water calculations with the new phase II pads.  I will be back in 
the office on Tuesday February 13th.   I plan to have a letter to you that week.   
 
Regards,  
 
Katie Herlihy, AICP 
Senior Planner 
 
City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 
(831) 475‐7300 
 

 
 
Planning Counter Hours: 1 ‐ 4 p.m., Monday ‐ Friday 

 
 
 
 
 

From: Herlihy, Katie (kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us)  
Sent: Friday, February 02, 2018 3:50 PM 
To: 'Craig Chinn' <cchinn@adcollaborative.com> 
Cc: Blake Carroll <Blake.Carroll@cypressequities.com>; Ban Potrus <Bpotrus@adcollaborative.com>; Steve Carter 
<Steve.Carter@cypressequities.com>; Mark Rone <Mark.Rone@cypressequities.com>; Nikhil Gera <nikhil@gera.in> 
Subject: RE: Seritage Capitola‐Update 
 
Hi All, 
 
Quick update.  Thank you for the updated plans and addressing many of the City’s concerns.  I plan to send out a letter 
next week with all Planning and Public Works comments on the updated set of plans.  Also, we have a third party that 
will do the technical review of the phase I and phase II ESA.   I will forward an electronic copy of the letter once it is 
finalized.  
 
Regards, 
 
Katie Herlihy, AICP 
Senior Planner 
 
City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 
(831) 475‐7300 
 

5.D.f

Packet Pg. 213

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

02
.1

5 
K

H
 e

m
ai

l t
o

 A
p

p
lic

an
t 

 (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



4

 
 
Planning Counter Hours: 1 ‐ 4 p.m., Monday ‐ Friday 

 
 
 
 
 
 

From: Craig Chinn [mailto:cchinn@adcollaborative.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, January 24, 2018 3:31 PM 
To: Herlihy, Katie (kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us) <kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us> 
Cc: Blake Carroll <Blake.Carroll@cypressequities.com>; Ban Potrus <Bpotrus@adcollaborative.com>; Steve Carter 
<Steve.Carter@cypressequities.com>; Mark Rone <Mark.Rone@cypressequities.com> 
Subject: Seritage Capitola‐Update 
Importance: High 
 
Hi Katie, 
 
I understand that you are out sick. I hope that you feel better soon. When you have a moment can you please provide us 
with an update on where the resubmittal stands as well as the environmental review. Please feel free to respond via 
email or call me on my cell phone to discuss. Take care and talk to you soon. 
 

Craig Chinn, AIA 
Principal 

architecture design collaborative 
www.adcollaborative.com 
23231 South Pointe Drive 
Laguna Hills, CA 92653 
cchinn@adcollaborative.com 
cell  949.677.7165 
ph    949.267.1660 ext 201 
 
“Fastest Growing Private Companies”  
‐Awarded by Orange County Business Journal 
 
CONFIDENTIALITY: The information contained in this e‐mail, including any accompanying documents or attachments, is from architecture design collaborative, Inc. (adc), is intended only for 
the use of the individual or entity named above, and is privileged and confidential.  If you are the intended recipient of this e‐mail, then by utilizing the information contained in this e‐mail, 
you agree that such information may not be compatible with your software and/or may have been modified or damaged during transfer;  further, you agree to use such information only for 
the purpose or project for which it was intended, and, to the full extent provided by California law, agree to release and indemnify adc and its affiliated entities and individuals for all 
damages arising out of any such misuse of the information.  If you are not the intended recipient of this e‐mail, be aware that any disclosure, dissemination, distribution, copying or use of 
the contents of this message is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e‐mail in error, please return the e‐Mail message and destroy (delete) the original. 

 

5.D.f

Packet Pg. 214

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

02
.1

5 
K

H
 e

m
ai

l t
o

 A
p

p
lic

an
t 

 (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



      420 Capitola Avenue 
      Capitola, California  95010 

      Telephone:  (831) 475-7300 
      FAX: (831) 479-8879 

      Website: www.ci.capitola.ca.us  

 
 
February 28, 2018 
 
Mark Rone, Cypress Equities 
8343 Douglas Avenue 
Suite 200 
Dallas, TX 75225 
 
Subject:  4015 Capitola Road, Design Permit, #17-019 
 
Dear Mark Rone: 
 
The City of Capitola Community Development Department has completed its review of your 
application for a design permit and master sign permit at the existing SEARS retail business location 
at 4015 Capitola Road, and is providing you with the following information as a guide for further 
processing of your application. 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
Below is the project description that staff has developed based on the information submitted in your 
application package.  Please review this project description carefully.  If the description is inaccurate 
or incomplete, please contact your assigned planner immediately to correct the information. 
 

This is a request for a Design Permit to renovate the existing SEARS into 3 tenant 
spaces with new exterior facades and new signs at 4015 Capitola Road.  The 
applicant is proposing new signs for the three tenants for visibility from Capitola 
Road and 41st Avenue.  The new configurations will convert the site from a single 
Sears retail and automotive shop into three tenant spaces including Sears retail, 
TJ Maxx/Homegoods, and PetSmart.  The property is located at the corner of 
Capitola Road and 41st Avenue, within the CC (Community Commercial) zoning 
district.  Phase 2 of the project is to develop two commercial pads, one 4,000 
square foot pad along the frontage of Capitola Road and a second 4,000 square 
foot pad on the frontage of 41st Avenue.  

 
APPLICATION COMPLETENESS DETERMINATION 
The Community Development Department has completed its review of your application and has 
found it incomplete pursuant to Section 65943 of the California Government Code.  As detailed 
herein, additional information and/or corrections need to be submitted for staff to continue 
processing your application. 
 
PROJECT ISSUES/CORRECTIONS 
The following project issues and/or corrections to submitted plans and documents must be 
completed prior to scheduling your project for public hearings before the Architecture and Site 
Review Committee, and subsequently, the Planning Commission. 
 
Project Issues 
The following project issue(s) were identified during review of your application.  These issue(s) may 
require a substantial redesign of the project or, if not resolved, may result in the Department 
recommending denial of your project.  These issues were identified based upon information presently 
available to the City and are subject to change upon submittal of further information or studies: 
 

5.D.g

Packet Pg. 215

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

02
.2

8 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 C

o
m

p
le

te
n

es
s 

L
et

te
r 

 (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)

http://www.ci.capitola.ca.us/


1. During the conceptual review of the project, the Planning Commission emphasized that the 
applicant should closely coordinate with Merlone Geier to develop a comprehensive mall 
redevelopment project which advances the City’s General Plan goals for the site.  The 
application did not include any other mall properties nor any information about how the 
proposal would complement a future comprehensive mall redevelopment project.  Please 
submit additional information demonstrating that the proposal has been coordinated with 
other mall property owners and explain how the redeveloped Sears would complement and 
enhance a comprehensive mall redevelopment project.   
 

The submitted plans are missing additional necessary information. The plans must be updated to 
include the necessary information detailed below prior to the application being brought before the 
Architecture and Site Review Committee or the Planning Commission. 

 
Plan Corrections/Additional Information 
The following corrections or additional information is necessary to continue processing your 
application.   
 

1. Parking Plan.  Staff is having difficulty matching the parking in the site plan to the 
parking breakdown on sheet T0.0.  Provide a parking sheet that identifies the available 
parking, City required parking (Table to show: Each retail/restaurant space floor area 
and required parking: retail 1 space per 300 sf, Restaurant dining 1 space per 60 all 
other restaurant 1 space per 300 sf), and REA shared parking agreements. Number 
parking spaces.  Provide parking plan for phase 1 and phase 2.  

2. Location of existing and proposed on-site lighting, height, and hooding devices. 
3. Bicycle Racks shall be identified on the plans.  The new zoning code (17.76.080) 

requires: 
a. Short-term spaces: 10% of required automobile spaces.  Must be within 100 feet 

of primary entrance.   
b. Long term bicycle parking spaces: 1 space per 20 automobile spaces for uses 

10,000 square feet or greater. 
c. See 17.76.080 A – H for specific bicycle rack regulations.  

4. Additional information required by Public Works as outlined in the attached memo from 
Danielle Uharriet.   

a. Submit a revised storm water permit project application form.  Calculations are 
for the entire project (Phase 1 and Phase 2). 

b. Based on a review of the current plans, the project may be a Tier 3 or 4 project 
and will require compliances with the Post-Construction Stormwater 
Management requirements.  Refer to the attached Tier 3 and 4 Storm Water 
Technical Guide and the California Regional Water Quality Control Board 
Central Coast Region Resolution No. R3-2013-0032 pertaining to post-
construction requirements (PCRs). 

5. Phase I/Phase II ESA – to be completed by third party contractor hired by the City.  
 

Please resubmit the above listed information by March 30th, 2018.  Please note that any delays 
in providing revised documents to the City may also result in your tentative public hearing 
date being postponed. 
 
Advisory Items 
The following advisory items, are advisory and are not required prior to processing your application. 

1. Increase architectural differentiation between Petco and TJ Maxx facades.  The Sears façade 
creates the aesthetic of a separate entity through defined contemporary finishes.  The Petco 
and TJ Maxx both utilize the existing exterior brick veneer and stucco and are not of a specific 
architectural style other than defined large entryways.  Suggest clear delineation between 
the two entities with a specific architectural style.   

2. Modernize proposed bench and planters to complement updated design.   

5.D.g

Packet Pg. 216

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

02
.2

8 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 C

o
m

p
le

te
n

es
s 

L
et

te
r 

 (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



3. The City would condition the project to provide an Irrevocable Offer of Dedication (IOD) to 
provide a through street at 40th Avenue in line with the General Plan as a condition of 
approval.  

4.  Modify bicycle circulation to create internal circulation throughout the property.  Specifically, 
bike lanes should be added in both directions on the 38th Avenue, 40th Avenue, Entrance off 
of 41st Avenue, and within the internal drive connecting around the structure from Target to 
northern connection of 40th Avenue.  Within the updates for 2040 Regional Transportation 
Plan Project List the plan includes Separated bicycle facility through Capitola Mall parking lot 
to connect 38th Avenue bike lanes and 40th Avenue.    

5. Add a crosswalk between Target and Sears. 
6. Internal pedestrian connection between the mall and new tenants at 4015 Capitola Road.  

City suggest checkout near internal mall entrances to maintain established internal 
pedestrian circulation patterns.   
 

 
ESTIMATED PROCESSING COST 
Based upon our preliminary review of your application, we estimate that your initial deposit will not 
be adequate to complete the processing of your application.  Accordingly, please submit an 
additional deposit of $26,844.65 for the third party ESA, technical review of stormwater, and 
additional planner cost recovery funds.  The estimated breakdown of the costs are as follows: (1) 
$18,513 for third party technical deposit of for completion of Phase 1/Phase 2 Environmental Site 
Assessment ($15,300) and 21% director fee ($3,213); and (2) $3331.65 for the storm water 
development review fee ($3,173.00) and 5% tech fee ($158.65); and (3) $5,000 additional planner 
cost recovery deposit to allow continued processing of your application.  Please note that this cost 
estimate is only for your planning applications and does not include building permit costs, outside 
agency fees, or private engineering, architecture, or contractor costs.  
 
ESTIMATED PROCESSING TIMELINE 
As stated in my February 15, 2018 email, the City contracted Weber-Hayes and Associates to 
review the recently submitted ESA documents (Phase I dated December 19, 2014, Phase II dated 
April 6, 2016).  Weber-Hayes and Associates informed the City that the facility closure work has 
not been completed as there are still hoists and tanks on site.  According to the consultant, the 
next step for you is to hire a qualified HAZMAT contractor to remove the hoists and tanks, flush 
floor drains, and pump out/clean the oil/water separator and to obtain necessary permits from the 
County DEH.  
 
Following completion of the closure process, the City’s ESA consultant will perform soil testing and 
analysis and prepare necessary documentation.  Note – this work must be completed by a City-
commissioned contractor.  The applicant will be responsible for the consultants cost.  This work is 
estimated to cost approximately $2,300 for Phase I ESA and  $10,000 to $12,000 for the limited 
Phase II confirmation soil/vapor sampling to document conditions.  This will take an estimated 6-8 
weeks to complete. 
 
Your application cannot be considered by the Planning Commission until the Phase I and Phase II 
and CEQA process are complete.  It is anticipated that a Negative Declaration or Mitigated 
Negative Declaration may be necessary depending on the results of the ESA. 
 
Based upon your application status and remaining application processing steps, we estimate that 
your project will be scheduled for an Architecture and Site Review Committee in the summer of 2018 
followed by Planning Commission hearing.  Please note this estimate assumes a timely and 
complete resubmittal of all information noted in this letter.   

 
Task/Activity Estimated Duration 

(Days) 
Estimated Completion 

Date 

Applicant resubmits 30 March 30, 2018 

Third party review of Phase I/II ESA 60* May 30, 2018 

5.D.g

Packet Pg. 217

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

02
.2

8 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 C

o
m

p
le

te
n

es
s 

L
et

te
r 

 (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



Release of CEQA document 14 June 14, 2018 

Public review of CEQA document 30 July 16, 2018 

Response to public comments 14 July 31, 2018 

Architecture and Site Review 
Committee meeting 

15 August 22, 2018 

Planning Commission hearing 21 October 4, 2018 

Appeal period 10 working days October 18, 2018 
*Dependent upon consultant availability. Additional time may be necessary if study determines need for Phase II 
report. 

 
If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact me at 831.475.7300 or 
by email at kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us. 
 
OTHER REQUIRED PERMITS 

Please be aware that in addition to a design permit and master sign program, you may also be 
required to obtain other permits/approvals as listed below prior to initiating construction.  These 
permits/approvals typically require additional fees which are not covered by your planning 
applications.   
 

• Building Permit from the City of Capitola (bvanson@ci.capitola.ca.us) 

• Will-serve letter from the Santa Cruz Water Department (831-420-5200) 

• Will-serve letter (or plan approval) from the Central Fire Protection District (831-479-6843) 

• Approval from County of Santa Cruz Sanitation District (831-454-2160) 

• Approval from County of Santa Cruz Department of Environmental Health (831-454-2022) 
 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
Katie Herlihy, AICP 
Senior Planner 
 
Seritage SRC Finance LLC, Blake Carrol, Mark Rone, Nikhil Gera, Steve Carter, Brian Walsh 

 

5.D.g

Packet Pg. 218

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

02
.2

8 
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
 C

o
m

p
le

te
n

es
s 

L
et

te
r 

 (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5.D.h

Packet Pg. 219

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

05
.0

9 
C

C
&

W
 le

tt
er

 t
o

 C
it

y 
 (

40
15

 C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



5.D.h

Packet Pg. 220

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

05
.0

9 
C

C
&

W
 le

tt
er

 t
o

 C
it

y 
 (

40
15

 C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



5.D.h

Packet Pg. 221

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

05
.0

9 
C

C
&

W
 le

tt
er

 t
o

 C
it

y 
 (

40
15

 C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



5.D.h

Packet Pg. 222

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

05
.0

9 
C

C
&

W
 le

tt
er

 t
o

 C
it

y 
 (

40
15

 C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



5.D.h

Packet Pg. 223

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

05
.0

9 
C

C
&

W
 le

tt
er

 t
o

 C
it

y 
 (

40
15

 C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



5.D.h

Packet Pg. 224

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

05
.0

9 
C

C
&

W
 le

tt
er

 t
o

 C
it

y 
 (

40
15

 C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



5.D.h

Packet Pg. 225

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

05
.0

9 
C

C
&

W
 le

tt
er

 t
o

 C
it

y 
 (

40
15

 C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



5.D.h

Packet Pg. 226

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

05
.0

9 
C

C
&

W
 le

tt
er

 t
o

 C
it

y 
 (

40
15

 C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



5.D.h

Packet Pg. 227

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

05
.0

9 
C

C
&

W
 le

tt
er

 t
o

 C
it

y 
 (

40
15

 C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



5.D.h

Packet Pg. 228

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

05
.0

9 
C

C
&

W
 le

tt
er

 t
o

 C
it

y 
 (

40
15

 C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



5.D.h

Packet Pg. 229

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

05
.0

9 
C

C
&

W
 le

tt
er

 t
o

 C
it

y 
 (

40
15

 C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



5.D.h

Packet Pg. 230

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

05
.0

9 
C

C
&

W
 le

tt
er

 t
o

 C
it

y 
 (

40
15

 C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



5.D.h

Packet Pg. 231

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

05
.0

9 
C

C
&

W
 le

tt
er

 t
o

 C
it

y 
 (

40
15

 C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



5.D.h

Packet Pg. 232

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

05
.0

9 
C

C
&

W
 le

tt
er

 t
o

 C
it

y 
 (

40
15

 C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



5.D.h

Packet Pg. 233

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

05
.0

9 
C

C
&

W
 le

tt
er

 t
o

 C
it

y 
 (

40
15

 C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



5.D.h

Packet Pg. 234

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

05
.0

9 
C

C
&

W
 le

tt
er

 t
o

 C
it

y 
 (

40
15

 C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



5.D.h

Packet Pg. 235

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

05
.0

9 
C

C
&

W
 le

tt
er

 t
o

 C
it

y 
 (

40
15

 C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



Please note.  The entire letter with all attachments is 646 pages.  The 

full document including attachments B through F are available at 

Capitola City Hall’s  Community Development Department at 420 

Capitola Avenue and available at the Community Development 

Webpage at  http://www.cityofcapitola.org/communitydevelopment. 

 

5.D.h

Packet Pg. 236

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

05
.0

9 
C

C
&

W
 le

tt
er

 t
o

 C
it

y 
 (

40
15

 C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 

County of Santa Cruz 
 

HEALTH SERVICES AGENCY 

701 OCEAN STREET, ROOM 312, SANTA CRUZ, CA  95060-4073 

(831) 454-2022     FAX: (831) 454-3128   
http://www.co.santa-cruz.ca.us/ 

 
May 17, 2018 
 
Seritage SRC Finance, LLC 
489 Fifth Avenue, 18th Floor 
New York, NY 10017 
 
Re: Notice of Violation for Former Sears Auto Service Center # 6461 Located at 4015 Capitola Rd, 
       Capitola, California.  
 
Dear Sir or Madam, 
 
It has been brought to my attention that on February 16th, 2017, ServAll “deactivated” 10 underground 
hydraulic lifts at the Former Sears Service Station #6461, located at 4015 Capitola Road in Capitola, California.  
Under Santa Cruz County Ordinance, Santa Cruz County Environmental Health Division (SCCEHD) requires 
permits to remove underground lifts.   The SCCEHD has found underground lifts can leak oil and pose potential 
long term environmental and possible human health problems.  There is now evidence that some of the oil in 
these lift systems contain Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs), which are probable human carcinogens.  Sears 
was aware of our agency’s permit requirement because a permit was obtained from our agency to remove a 
leaking underground lift from this site in 2015.   
 
The 10 underground lifts that were removed in 2017 were done in violation of Santa Cruz County Code 
7.100.060, and without the required sampling under SCCEHD oversight, to determine if the systems leaked. 
Therefore, by June 29, 2018, you are hereby directed to apply for and obtain a permit retroactively for the 
closure of the underground storage lifts that were removed.   
 
Here is a link to our website for the permit that is required:  
http://scceh.com/Portals/6/Env_Health/hazardous_materials/UST_Closure_Packet.pdf. 
 
Failure to obtain the necessary closure permit for this site and conduct the required testing may result in 
further enforcement action, including forwarding this issue to the District Attorney’s Office.  
  
Please contact the inspector for the area, Mr. John Gerbrandt, at (831) 454-2731, or at his email address of: 
john.gerbrandt@santacruzcounty.us, if you have any questions.  
 
Sincerely, 

 
Rebecca Supplee, R.E.H.S.  
Hazardous Materials Program Manager 
 
Cc: Katie Herlihy, City of Capitola Kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us 
 Mark Rone, mark.rone@cypressequities.com 

John Gerbrandt, john.gerbrandt@santacruzcounty.us 

5.D.i

Packet Pg. 237

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

05
.1

7 
S

C
C

E
H

D
 N

o
ti

ce
 o

f 
V

io
la

ti
o

n
  (

40
15

 C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



 

 

 

 

 

May 18, 2018 

 

Via Electronic Mail (dwaite@coxcastle.com) 

And United States Mail 

 

David P. Waite 

Cox, Castle & Nicholson, LLP 

2029 Century Park East, Suite 2100 

Los Angeles, CA  90067-3284 

 

Re:  4015 Capitola Road Design and Master Sign Permit Application #17-019 

 

Dear Mr. Waite: 

 

I am in the process of reviewing the issues raised in your correspondence to Katie Herlihy, 

Capitola Community Development Director, and separate letter to myself dated May 9, 2018, 

and materials submitted therewith.  Unfortunately, however, I’ve not had an opportunity to 

complete my review and confer with my client prior to my departure tomorrow for a family 

vacation, from which I will be returning the week of May 28th.  I anticipate that I or the City will 

provide a formal response shortly thereafter. 

 

In the meantime, thank you for your patience. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Tony Condotti 

Capitola City Attorney 

5.D.j

Packet Pg. 238

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

05
.1

8 
C

it
y 

A
tt

o
rn

ey
 L

et
te

r 
to

 A
p

p
lic

an
t 

 (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)

mailto:dwaite@coxcastle.com


 

 

 

 

 

May 23, 2018 

 

Via Electronic Mail (dwaite@coxcastle.com) 

And United States Mail 

 

David P. Waite 

Cox, Castle & Nicholson, LLP 

2029 Century Park East, Suite 2100 

Los Angeles, CA  90067-3284 

 

Re:  4015 Capitola Road Design and Master Sign Permit Application #17-019 

 

Dear Mr. Waite: 

 

After further review Planning Department staff have determined that the above-referenced 

application can proceed to hearing at the June 7th meeting of the Planning Commission as has 

been requested.  Formal public notice will be completed by the City. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Tony Condotti 

Capitola City Attorney 

5.D.k

Packet Pg. 239

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

05
.2

3 
 C

it
y 

A
tt

o
rn

ey
 le

tt
er

 t
o

 C
C

&
N

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)

mailto:dwaite@coxcastle.com


General Plan Sections relative to Sears Redevelopment 
 
The General Plan outlines the vision for future development in Capitola through establishing 
guiding principles, goals, policies and actions.  The following excerpts from the General Plan 
relate to future development at the mall.   
 
Capitola General Plan Guiding Principle: Community Identity.  Preserve and enhance 
Capitola’s intimate small-town feel and coastal village charm.  Ensure that all areas of Capitola, 
not just the Village, possess a unique, memorable, and high-quality identity.  Promote Capitola’s 
reputation as a community that is sustainable, historic, welcoming, and family-friendly. 
 
Capitola General Plan Guiding Principle: Economy.  Support a local economy that is vibrant, 
diverse, and dynamic.  Create a brand identity for Capitola that is grounded in the city’s unique 
identity.  Support all local businesses, “green” businesses, and employers that provide jobs for 
Capitola residents. 
 
Land Use Goal 8: Support the long-term transformation of Capitola Mall into a more pedestrian-
friendly commercial district with high quality architecture and outdoor amenities attractive to 
shoppers and families.   
 
Policy LU-8.1: Phased Mall Redevelopment.  Encourage a phased approach to 
redevelopment of the Mall property.  Early phases may include improvements to the Mall façade 
and front entrance, and new retail pads fronting 41st Avenue.  These early improvements shall 
not conflict with the ultimate vision for the property, as represented in the 41st Avenue/Capitola 
Mall Vision Plan (see Figure LU-6) 
 
Portion of Figure LU-6: 

  
 
Policy LU-8.2: Parking Lot Redevelopment.  Encourage the development of commercial and 
mixed-use structures on existing Capitola Mall surface parking lots located adjacent to 41st 
Avenue and Capitola Road including both sides of 41st Avenue.  New pad development along 
41st Avenue should enhance the design character of 41st Avenue and support the long-term 
vision for the Mall as a pedestrian-friendly commercial destination.  Ensure that parking lot 
redevelopment does not result in an inadequate supply of on-site parking that results in overflow 
parking in adjacent residential neighborhoods. 
 

5.D.l

Packet Pg. 240

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ec
ti

o
n

s 
o

f 
G

en
er

al
 P

la
n

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



Policy LU-8.4: Public Gathering Places.  Encourage the establishment of public gathering 
places on the Mall property—such as outdoor dining and courtyards—that provide space for 
people to informally meet and gather 
 
Policy LU-8.5: New Interior Street.  As a long-term vision for Capitola Mall, support the 
addition of a new interior street within the Mall property lined with sidewalk-oriented retail, 
outdoor dining, and pedestrian amenities.  This new street should be connected with the 
existing street network surrounding the Mall property to enhance mall access for all modes of 
transportation. 
 
Goal LU-9: Encourage high quality development within the 41st Avenue corridor that creates an 
active and inviting public realm. 
 
Policy LU-9.1: Public Amenities.  Encourage new development to provide amenities that 
enhance the vitality of the corridor, such as outdoor dining and courtyards, public art, publically 
accessible or semi-public gathering places, and bicycle and pedestrian facilities. 
 
Policy LU-9.3: Destination.  Establish 41st Avenue as an attractive destination with activities 
for families and people of all ages that occur throughout the day and night.  Where feasible, 
incorporate public art into public spaces. 
 
Policy LU-9.8: Public Spaces and Amenities.  Encourage new development at the 41st 
Avenue/Capitola Road intersection to include public spaces and amenities to strengthen the 
intersection as a focal point and activity center for the corridor. 
 
Policy LU-9.9: Streetscape Improvements.  Improve the physical appearance of 41st Avenue 
through the installation of additional landscaping in the public right-of-way, enhanced Highway 1 
interchange features, and improved bicycle and pedestrian facilities. 
 

5.D.l

Packet Pg. 241

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ec
ti

o
n

s 
o

f 
G

en
er

al
 P

la
n

  (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



17.120.010(A-S) 

To obtain Design Permit approval, projects must satisfy the criteria of §17.120.010(A-S), to the 
extent they apply. 

A. Community Character.  The overall project design including site plan, height, massing, 
architectural style, materials, and landscaping contribute to Capitola’s unique coastal village 
character and distinctive sense of place. 

 
B. Neighborhood Compatibility.  The project is designed to respect and complement 

adjacent properties.  The project height, massing, and intensity is compatible with the scale 
of nearby buildings. The project design incorporates measures to minimize traffic, parking, 
noise, and odor impacts on nearby residential properties. 

 
C. Historic Character. Renovations and additions respect and preserve existing historic 

structure.  New structures and additions to non-historic structures reflect and complement 
the historic character of nearby properties and the community at large.   

 
D. Sustainability. The project supports natural resource protection and environmental 

sustainability through features such as on-site renewable energy generation, passive solar 
design, enhanced energy efficiency, water conservation measures, and other green 
building techniques. 
 

E. Pedestrian Environment.  The primary entrances are oriented towards and visible from the 
street to support an active public realm and an inviting pedestrian environment. 

 
F. Privacy. The orientation and location of buildings, entrances, windows, doors, decks, and 

other building features minimizes privacy impacts on adjacent properties and provides 
adequate privacy for project occupants. 

 
G. Safety.  The project promotes public safety and minimizes opportunities for crime through 

design features such as property access controls (e.g., placement of entrances, fences), 
increased visibility and features that promote a sense of ownership of outdoor space.   
 

H. Massing and Scale.  The massing and scale of buildings complement and respect 
neighboring structures and correspond to the scale of the human form.  Large volumes are 
divided into small components through varying wall planes, heights, and setbacks. Building 
placement and massing avoids impacts to public views and solar access. 

 
I. Architectural Style.  Buildings feature an architectural style that is compatible with the 

surrounding built and natural environment, is an authentic implementation of appropriate 
established architectural styles, and reflects Capitola’s unique coastal village character.  

 
J. Articulation and Visual Interest.  Building facades are well articulated to add visual 

interest, distinctiveness, and human scale.  Building elements such as roofs, doors, 
windows, and porches are part of an integrated design and relate to the human scale. 
Architectural details such as trim, eaves, window boxes, and brackets contribute to the 
visual interest of the building. 
 

5.D.m

Packet Pg. 242

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

es
ig

n
 P

er
m

it
 C

ri
te

ri
a 

o
f 

17
.1

20
.0

10
(A

-S
) 

 (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



K. Materials. Building facades include a mix of natural, high-quality, and durable materials that 
are appropriate to the architectural style, enhance building articulation, and are compatible 
with surrounding development. 

 
L. Parking and Access.  Parking areas are located and designed to minimize visual impacts 

and maintain Capitola’s distinctive neighborhoods and pedestrian-friendly environment. 
Safe and convenient connections are provided for pedestrians and bicyclists.  

 
M. Landscaping. Landscaping is an integral part of the overall project design, is appropriate to 

the site and structures, and enhances the surrounding area.  
 
N. Drainage.  The site plan is designed to maximize efficiency of on-site drainage with runoff 

directed towards permeable surface areas and engineered retention.  
 
O. Open Space and Public Places. Single-family dwellings feature inviting front yards that 

enhance Capitola’s distinctive neighborhoods.  Multi-family residential projects include 
public and private open space that is attractive, accessible, and functional.  Non-residential 
development provides semi-public outdoor spaces, such as plazas and courtyards, which 
help support pedestrian activity within an active and engaging public realm.  

 
P. Signs.  The number, location, size, and design of signs complement the project design and 

are compatible with the surrounding context. 
 
Q. Lighting.  Exterior lighting is an integral part of the project design with light fixtures 

designed, located, and positioned to minimize illumination of the sky and adjacent 
properties. 

 
R. Accessory Structures.  The design of detached garages, sheds, fences, walls, and other 

accessory structures relate to the primary structure and are compatible with adjacent 
properties. 

 
S. Mechanical Equipment, Trash Receptacles, and Utilities. Mechanical equipment, trash 

receptacles, and utilities are contained within architectural enclosures or fencing, sited in 
unobtrusive locations, and/or screened by landscaping. 

 

5.D.m

Packet Pg. 243

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

es
ig

n
 P

er
m

it
 C

ri
te

ri
a 

o
f 

17
.1

20
.0

10
(A

-S
) 

 (
40

15
 C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



Memo 

Sacramento • Berkeley • Concord • San Jose 

Concord • 1800 Sutter Street, Suite 590 •Concord, CA  94520 • Tel: 925-332-5221 • Fax: 925-349-4329 

To: Danielle Uharriet, Environmental Projects Manager, and Steve Jesberg, PE, 
Public Works Director, City of Capitola  

From: Leonard Osborne, PE, HydroScience 

Subject: Subject: Seritage - Capitola Project 
4015 Capitola Road 
Planning Permit No.17-019 

Date: May 24, 2018 

HydroScience has reviewed the plans submitted by the Seritage Growth Properties design 
team for the subject project. Based on the documents submitted, the project is not in 
compliance with the Capitola Municipal Code Section 13.16 Stormwater Pollution 
Prevention and Protection and the Post Construction Requirements (PCRs) as specified in 
Resolution No. R3- 2013-0032 issued by the California Regional Water Quality Control 
Board for the Central Coast Region in July 2013. 

Based on our review, the project does not address the performance standards for site 
design and runoff reduction, water quality treatment, runoff retention, peak runoff 
management as specified in Appendix 1 of the above Regional Water Quality Control 
Board resolution. 

Please call me or Alexandra Watson at 925-332-5221 if you have any questions. 

 
 

  

 

5.D.n

Packet Pg. 244

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

05
.2

4 
H

yd
ro

S
ci

en
e 

M
em

o
  (

40
15

 C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)


	Agenda Packet
	1. Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance
	2. Oral Communications
	A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda
	B. Public Comments
	C. Commission Comments
	D. Staff Comments

	3. Approval of Minutes
	1. Minutes of Apr 5, 2018 7:00 PM
	Printout: Minutes of Apr 5, 2018 7:00 PM

	2. Minutes of May 3, 2018 7:00 PM
	Printout: Minutes of May 3, 2018 7:00 PM


	4. Consent Calendar
	A. 734 Orchid Avenue
	Printout: 734 Orchid Avenue
	a. 734 Orchid Avenue - Full Plan Set.pdf

	B. 4795 Garnet Street
	Printout: 4795 Garnet Street
	a. 4795 Garnet Street - Full Plan Set


	5. Public Hearings
	A. 620 Monterey Avenue
	Printout: 620 Monterey Avenue
	a. 620 Monterey Plans

	B. 105 Stockton Avenue
	Printout: 105 Stockton Avenue
	a. 103-105 Stockton Avenue - Master Sign Program
	b. 103-105 Stockton Avenue - Proposed Sign Pictures

	C. Retail Marijuana Sales in Regional Commercial Zoning District
	Printout: Retail Marijuana Sales in Regional Commercial Zoning District

	D. 4015 Capitola Road
	Printout: 4015 Capitola Road
	a. 2018.01.09 4015 Capitola Road Plan Set
	b. 4015 Capitola Road Master Sign Program
	c. 2017.03.09 Completeness letter
	d. 2017.04.19 Herlihy Email Lists Incomplete and Advisory
	e. 2018.02.07 KH email to Applicant
	f. 2018.02.15 KH email to Applicant
	g. 2018.02.28 4015 Capitola Road Completeness Letter
	h. 2018.05.09 CC&W letter to City
	i. 2018.05.17 SCCEHD Notice of Violation
	j. 2018.05.18 City Attorney Letter to Applicant
	k. 2018.05.23  City Attorney letter to CC&N
	l. Sections of General Plan
	m. Design Permit Criteria of 17.120.010(A-S)
	n. 2018.05.24 HydroSciene Memo


	6. Director's Report
	7. Commission Communications
	8. Adjournment

	Appendix
	3.1 · Minutes of Apr 5, 2018 7:00 PM
	3.2 · Minutes of May 3, 2018 7:00 PM
	4.A · 734 Orchid Avenue
	4.A.a · 734 Orchid Avenue - Full Plan Set.pdf

	4.B · 4795 Garnet Street
	4.B.a · 4795 Garnet Street - Full Plan Set

	5.A · 620 Monterey Avenue
	5.A.a · 620 Monterey Plans

	5.B · 105 Stockton Avenue
	5.B.a · 103-105 Stockton Avenue - Master Sign Program
	5.B.b · 103-105 Stockton Avenue - Proposed Sign Pictures

	5.C · Retail Marijuana Sales in Regional Commercial Zoning District
	5.D · 4015 Capitola Road
	5.D.a · 2018.01.09 4015 Capitola Road Plan Set
	5.D.b · 4015 Capitola Road Master Sign Program
	5.D.c · 2017.03.09 Completeness letter
	5.D.d · 2017.04.19 Herlihy Email Lists Incomplete and Advisory
	5.D.e · 2018.02.07 KH email to Applicant
	5.D.f · 2018.02.15 KH email to Applicant
	5.D.g · 2018.02.28 4015 Capitola Road Completeness Letter
	5.D.h · 2018.05.09 CC&W letter to City
	5.D.i · 2018.05.17 SCCEHD Notice of Violation
	5.D.j · 2018.05.18 City Attorney Letter to Applicant
	5.D.k · 2018.05.23  City Attorney letter to CC&N
	5.D.l · Sections of General Plan
	5.D.m · Design Permit Criteria of 17.120.010(A-S)
	5.D.n · 2018.05.24 HydroSciene Memo



